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How to Use the Materials

These Kaplan Publishing learning materials have been
carefully designed to make your learning experience as easy
as possible and to give you the best chances of success in
your examinations.

The product range contains a number of features to help you
in the study process. They include:

1
2

(1) Detailed study guide and syllabus objectives
(2)
(3) Study skills and revision guidance
(4)
(5)

Description of the examination

4
5

Complete text or essential text

Question practice

The sections on the study guide, the syllabus objectives, the
examination and study skills should all be read before you
commence your studies. They are designed to familiarise
you with the nature and content of the examination and give
you tips on how to best to approach your learning.

The complete text or essential text comprises the main
learning materials and gives guidance as to the importance
of topics and where other related resources can be found.
Each chapter includes:

* The learning objectives contained in each chapter,
which have been carefully mapped to the examining
body's own syllabus learning objectives or outcomes.
You should use these to check you have a clear
understanding of all the topics on which you might be
assessed in the examination.

* The chapter diagram provides a visual reference for
the content in the chapter, giving an overview of the
topics and how they link together.

e The content for each topic area commences with a
brief explanation or definition to put the topic into context
before covering the topic in detail. You should follow
your studying of the content with a review of the
illustration/s. These are worked examples which will help
you to understand better how to apply the content for the
topic.
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* Test your understanding sections provide an
opportunity to assess your understanding of the key
topics by applying what you have learned to short
questions. Answers can be found at the back of each
chapter.

 Summary diagrams complete each chapter to show
the important links between topics and the overall
content of the paper. These diagrams should be used to
check that you have covered and understood the core
topics before moving on.

* Question practice is provided at the back of each text.

On-line subscribers

Our on-line resources are designed to increase the flexibility
of your learning materials and provide you with immediate
feedback on how your studies are progressing.

If you are subscribed to our on-line resources you will find:

(1) On-line referenceware: reproduces your Complete or
Essential Text on-line, giving you anytime, anywhere
access.

(2) On-line testing: provides you with additional on-line
objective testing so you can practice what you have
learned further.

(3) On-line performance management: immediate access
to your on-line testing results. Review your performance
by key topics and chart your achievement through the
course relative to your peer group.

Ask your local customer services staff if you are not already
a subscriber and wish to join.

Icon Explanations
Definition - these sections explain important areas of
Knowledge which must be understood and reproduced in an

exam environment.

Key Point - identifies topics which are key to success and
are often examined.

New - identifies topics that are brand new in papers that

build on, and therefore also contain, learning covered in
earlier papers.
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Expandable Text - within the online version of the work
book is a more detailed explanation of key terms, these
sections will help to provide a deeper understanding of core
areas. Reference to this text is vital when self studying.

Test Your Understanding - following key points and
definitions are exercises which give the opportunity to
assess the understanding of these core areas. Within the
work book the answers to these sections are left blank,
explanations to the questions can be found within the online
version which can be hidden or shown on screen to enable
repetition of activities.

Illustration - to help develop an understanding of topics and
the test your understanding exercises the illustrative
examples can be used.

Exclamation Mark - this symbol signifies a topic which can
be more difficult to understand, when reviewing these areas
care should be taken.

Tutorial note - included to explain some of the technical
points in more detail.

Footsteps - helpful tutor tips.

Online subscribers

Paper introduction

Paper background
Objectives of the syllabus
Core areas of the syllabus
Syllabus objectives

The examination

Examination format

Paper based examination tips
Study skills and revision guidance
Preparing to study

Effective studying

Three ways of taking notes:
Revision

Further reading

You can find further reading and technical articles under the
student section of ACCA’s website.
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chapter

Principles of consolidated
financial statements

Chapter learning objectives

Upon completion of this chapter you will be able to:

* describe the concept of a group as a single economic unit
* explain the objective of consolidated financial statements

* explain and apply the definition of a subsidiary according to IFRS
10

* identify circumstances in which a group is required to prepare
consolidated financial statements and those when it can claim
exemption

* explain why directors may not wish to consolidate a subsidiary

* list the circumstances where it is permitted not to consolidate a
subsidiary

* explain the need for using coterminous year ends and uniform
accounting policies when preparing consolidated financial
statements

* explain why it is necessary to eliminate intra-group transactions

* identify the effect that the related party relationship between a
parent and subsidiary may have on the subsidiary’s entity
statements and the consolidated financial statements

* UK syllabus only:

— circumstances when a group may claim exemption from the
preparation of consolidated financial statements under UK
legislation.



Principles of consolidated financial statements

<[ GROUP DEFINITIONS )
PARENT SUBSIDIARY
[ SINGLE ECONOMIC ENTITY ]

EXCLUSIONS FROM

CONSOLIDATION

PRINCIPLES OF
CONSOLIDATION

1 The concept of group accounts

If one company owns more than 50% of the ordinary shares of another
company:

e this will usually give the first company ‘control’ of the second company

* the first company (the parent company, P) has enough voting power to
appoint all the directors of the second company (the subsidiary
company, S)

* Pis, in effect, able to manage S as if it were merely a department of P,
rather than a separate entity

* in strict legal terms P and S remain distinct, but in economic substance
they can be regarded as a single unit (a ‘group’).

m Group concept

2 KAPLAN PUBLISHING
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The key principle underlying group accounts is the need to reflect the
economic substance of the relationship.

Group

* Pis anindividual legal entity.
* Sis anindividual legal entity.

P controls S and therefore they form a single economic entity — the Group.

H

The single economic unit concept

H

Group financial statements

2 Definitions

E IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements uses the following definitions:

e parent — an entity that controls one or more entities

* subsidiary — an entity that is controlled by another entity (known as the
parent)

* control of an investee — an investor controls an investee when the
investor is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee.

;!“esé IFRS 10 outlines the circumstances in which a group is required to prepare
wad  consolidated financial statements.

KAPLAN PUBLISHING 3



Principles of consolidated financial statements

Consolidated financial statements should be prepared when the parent
company has control over the subsidiary (for examination purposes control
is usually established based on ownership of more than 50% of voting
power).

Control is identified by IFRS 10 as the sole basis for consolidation and
comprises the following three elements:

* power over the investee

* exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee

* the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor's returns

Control

A parent need not present consolidated financial statements if and only if:

* the parentitself is a wholly owned subsidiary or a partially-owned
subsidiary and its owners, (including those not otherwise entitled to
vote) have been informed about, and do not object to, the parent not
preparing consolidated financial statements;

* the parent's debt or equity instruments are not traded in a public market;

* the parent did not file its financial statements with a securities
commission or other regulatory organisation for the purpose of issuing
any class of instruments in a public market;

* the ultimate parent company produces consolidated financial
statements that comply with IFRS and are available for public use.

3 IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements

When exemption from the preparation of financial statements is permitted,
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (revised) requires that the following
disclosures are made:

* the fact that consolidated financial statements have not been presented;

* alist of significant investments (subsidiaries, associates etc.) including
percentage shareholdings, principle place of business and country of
incorporation;

* the bases on which those investments listed above have been
accounted for in its separate financial statements.

KAPLAN PUBLISHING



Reasons for wanting to exclude a subsidiary

Excluded subsidiaries

Non-coterminous year ends

Uniform accounting policies

Related parties

H HHHH

4 UK Syllabus Focus

UK Syllabus Focus

H
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Principles of consolidated financial statements

Chapter summary

GROUP
x DEFINITIONS .

PARENT = .| SUBSIDIARY =
CONTROLLING CONTROLLED
ENTITY ENTITY
r p

Show position of
group as single
economic entity
by way of group

accounts.

Exclusions from consolidation acceptable where
e materiality
e subsidiary held for resale.

Principles of consolidation
e non-coterminous year ends
e uniform accounting policies

e elimination of intra-group
transactions.
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Consolidated statement of
financial position

Chapter learning objectives

Upon completion of this chapter you will be able to:

* prepare a consolidated statement of financial position for a
simple group (parent and one subsidiary)

* deal with non-controlling interests (at fair value or proportionate
share of net assets)

* describe and apply the required accounting treatment of
consolidated goodwiill

e account for impairment of goodwill

* explain and account for the consolidation of other reserves (e.g.
share premium and revaluation)

e account for the effects of intra-group trading in the statement of
financial position

* explain why it is necessary to use fair values when preparing
consolidated financial statements

* account for the effects of fair value adjustments

* UK Syllabus only

— outline differences under UK rules of accounting for goodwiill,
non-controlling interest (minority interest), contingent
consideration and acquisition expenses.



Consolidated statement of financial position

[CONSOLIDATEDSFP ]

CONSOLIDATION

WORKINGS

~
PRE- NON- INTRA- MID-YEAR
ACQUISITION | | CONTROLLING GROUP GOODWILL ACQUISITIONS
PROFITS INTEREST TRADING
AND GROUP \\ /
RESERVES
e \ — \
UNREALISED FAIR
PROFITS VALUES
\ PAN Y,

1 Principles of the consolidated statement of financial position

The basic principle of a consolidated statement of financial position is that it
shows all assets and liabilities of the parent and subsidiary.

Intra-group items are excluded, e.g. receivables and payables shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position only include amounts owed
from/to third parties.

(1) The investment in the subsidiary (S) shown in the parent’s (P’s)
statement of financial position is replaced by the net assets of S.

(2) The cost of the investment in S is effectively cancelled with the ordinary
share capital and reserves of the subsidiary

This leaves a consolidated statement of financial position showing:

* the net assets of the whole group (P + S)

* the share capital of the group which always equals the share capital of
P only and

* the retained profits, comprising profits made by the group (i.e. all of P’s
historical profits + profits made by S post-acquisition).

Example 1 - Principles of the consolidated SFP

KAPLAN PUBLISHING
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%74 The mechanics of consolidation

A standard group accounting question will provide the accounts of P and the
accounts of S and will require the preparation of consolidated accounts.

The best approach is to use a set of standard workings.

(W1) Establish the group structure

P
Date of This indicates that P owns 80% of the
isit 80% ordinary shares of S and when they
acquisttion were acquired.
S

(W2) Net assets of subsidiary

At date of acquisition At the reporting date

$ $

Share capital X X
Reserves:

Share premium X X

Retained earnings X X

X

(W3) Goodwill

$
Parent holding (investment) at fair value X
NCI value at acquisition (*) X

X
Less:
Fair value of net assets at acquisition (W2) (X)
Goodwill on acquisition X
Impairment (X)

KAPLAN PUBLISHING 9



Consolidated statement of financial position

10

& H

(*) If fair value method adopted:
NCI value = fair value of NClI's holding at acquisition (number of
NCI own x subsidiary share price).

(*)If proportion of net assets method adopted:
NCI value = NCI % x fair value of net assets at acquisition (from

(W4) Non controlling interest

NCI value at acquisition (as in W3)
NCI share of post-acquisition reserves (W2)
NCI share of impairment (fair value method only)

(W5) Group retained earnings

P's retained earnings (100%)

P's % of sub's post-acquisition retained earnings
Less: Parent share of impairment (W3)

shares

W2).

Goodwill

Test your Understanding 1

Daniel acquired 80% of the ordinary share capital of Craig on 31

December 20X6 for $78,000. At this date the net assets of Craig were

$85,000.

What goodwill arises on the acquisition

(i) ifthe NCl is valued using the proportion of net assets method

(ii) if the NCl is valued using the fair value method and the fair va
the NCI on the acquisition date is $19,0007?

lue of

KAPLAN PUBLISHING
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IFRS 3 Business Combinations

Pre- and post acquisition reserves

Non-controlling interests

H HH

Test your understanding 2

N

The following SFPs have been prepared at 31 December 20X8.

Dickens Jones
$ $
Non-current assets:
Property, plant & equipment 85,000 18,000
Investments:
Shares in Jones 60,000
145,000
Current assets 160,000 84,000
305,000 102,000
Equity:
Ordinary $1 shares 65,000 20,000
Share premium 35,000 10,000
Retained earnings 70,000 25,000
170,000 55,000
Current liabilities 135,000 47,000

305,000 102,000

Dickens acquired 16,000 ordinary $1 shares in Jones on 1 January
20X8, when Jones’ retained earnings stood at $20,000.0n this date, the
fair value of the 20% non-controlling shareholding in Jones was $12,500.

The Dickens Group uses the fair value method to value the non-
controlling interest.

KAPLAN PUBLISHING 11
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Prepare the consolidated statement of financial position of
Dickens as at 31 December 20X8.

2 Fair values

Fair value of consideration and net assets

To ensure that an accurate figure is calculated for goodwill:

* the consideration paid for a subsidiary must be accounted for at fair
value

* the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities acquired must be
accounted for at their fair values.

IFRS 13 Fair value measurement (chapter 7) defines fair value as:

"the price that would be received to transfer an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date" i.e. it is an exit price.

Fair values

Calculation of cost of investment

The cost of acquisition includes the following elements:

* cash paid

* fair value of any other consideration i.e. deferred/contingent
considerations and share exchanges.

Incidental costs of acquisition such as legal, accounting, valuation and other
professional fees should be expensed as incurred. The issue costs of debt
or equity associated with the acquisition should be recognised in
accordance with IFRS 9/IAS 32.

In some situations not all of the purchase consideration is paid at the date of
the acquisition, instead a part of the payment is deferred until a later date —
deferred consideration.

* Deferred consideration should be measured at fair value at the date of
the acquisition (i.e. a promise to pay an agreed sum on a
predetermined date in the future taking into account the time value of
money).

KAPLAN PUBLISHING
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* The fair value of any deferred consideration is calculated by discounting
the amounts payable to present value at acquisition.

* Any contingent consideration should always be included as long as it
can be measured reliably. This will be indicated where relevant in an
exam question. (A contingent consideration is an agreement to settle in
the future provided certain conditions attached to the agreement are
met. These conditions vary depending on the terms of the settlement).

There are two ways to discount the deferred amount to fair value at the
acquisition date:

(1) The examiner may give you the present value of the payment based
on a given cost of capital. (For example, $1 receivable in three years
time based on a cost of capital of 10% = $0.75)

(2) You may need to use the interest rate given and apply the discount
fraction where r is the interest rate and n the number of years to
settlement

1

(1+r)"

Each year the discount is then "unwound". This increases the deferred
liability each year (to increase to future cash liability) and the discount is
treated as a finance cost.

Contingent consideration

Often the parent company will issue shares in its own company in return for
the shares acquired in the subsidiary. The share price at acquisition should
be used to record the cost of the shares at fair value.

Example 2 — Cost of investment

KAPLAN PUBLISHING 13
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Test your understanding 3

Cost of investment

Statements of Financial Position of P and S as at 30 June 20X8 are
given below:

P S

$ $
Property, plant & equipment 15,000 9,500
Investments 5,000
Current assets 7,500 5,000

27,500 14,500

Share capital $1 6,000 5,000
Share premium 4,000
Retained earnings 12,500 7,200

22,500 12,200
Non-current liabilities 1,000 500

Current liabilities 4,000 1,800

27,500 14,500

P acquired 60% of S on 1 July 20X7 when the retained earnings of S
were $5,800. P paid $5,000 in cash. P also issued 2 $1 shares for
every 5 acquired in S and agreed to pay a further $2,000 in 3 years time.
The market value of P’s shares at 1 July 20X7 was $1.80. P has only
recorded the cash paid in respect of the investment in S. Current interest
rates are 6%.

The P group uses the fair value method to value the non-controlling
interests. At the date of acquisition the fair value of the non-controlling
interest was $5,750.

Required:

Prepare the consolidated Statement of Financial Position of P
group as at 30 June 20X8.

KAPLAN PUBLISHING
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IFRS 3 revised requires that the subsidiary’s assets and liabilities are
recorded at their fair value for the purposes of the calculation of goodwill and
production of consolidated accounts.

Adjustments will therefore be required where the subsidiary’s accounts
themselves do not reflect fair value.

(1) Adjust both columns of W2 to bring the net assets to fair value at
acquisition and reporting date.

This will ensure that the fair value of net assets is carried through to the
goodwill and non-controlling interest calculations.

At acquisition At reporting date

$000 $000
Ordinary share capital + reserves X X
Fair value adjustments X X
Fair value depreciation adjustments (X)

X X

(2) Atthe reporting date make the adjustment on the face of the SFP when
adding across assets and liabilities.

ﬂ'i Test your understanding 4

Hazelnut acquired 80% of the share capital of Peppermint two years
ago, when the reserves of Peppermint stood at $125,000. Hazelnut paid
initial cash consideration of $1 million. Additionally Hazelnut issued
200,000 shares with a nominal value of $1 and a current market value of
$1.80. It was also agreed that Hazelnut would pay a further $500,000 in
three years’ time. Current interest rates are 10% pa. The appropriate
discount factor for $1 receivable three years from now is 0.751. The
shares and deferred consideration have not yet been recorded.

KAPLAN PUBLISHING 15
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Below are the statements of financial position of Hazelnut and
Peppermint as at 31 December 20X4:

Hazelnut Peppermint
$000 $000
Non-current assets
Property, plant & equipment 5,500 1,500
Investment in Peppermint at cost 1,000
Current assets
Inventory 550 100
Receivables 400 200
Cash 200 50
7,650 1,850
Equity
Share capital 2,000 500
Retained earnings 1,400 300
3,400 800
Non-current liabilities 3,000 400
Current liabilities 1,250 650
7,650 1,850

Further information:

(i) At acquisition the fair values of Peppermint’s plant exceeded its
book value by $200,000. The plant had a remaining useful life of five
years at this date.

(i) For many years Peppermint has been selling some of its products
under the brand name of ‘Spearmint’. At the date of acquisition the
directors of Hazelnut valued this brand at $250,000 with a remaining
life of 10 years. The brand is not included in Peppermint’s statement
of financial position.

(iii) The consolidated goodwill has been impaired by $258,000.

(iv) The Hazelnut Group values the non-controlling interest using the fair
value method. At the date of acquisition the fair value of the 20%
non-controlling interest was $380,000.

Prepare the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 20X4.

KAPLAN PUBLISHING
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m Uniform accounting policies

3 Intra-group trading

P and S may well trade with each other leading to the following potential
problem areas:

* current accounts between P and S

* |oans held by one company in the other
* dividends and loan interest.

* unrealised profits on sales of inventory

* unrealised profits on sales of non-current assets

Current accounts

If P and S trade with each other then this will probably be done on credit
leading to:

* areceivables (current) account in one company’s SFP
* apayables (current) account in the other company’s SFP.

These are amounts owing within the group rather than outside the group and
therefore they must not appear in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

They are therefore cancelled (contra’d) against each other on consolidation.

At the year end, current accounts may not agree, owing to the existence of
in-transit items such as goods or cash.

KAPLAN PUBLISHING 17



Consolidated statement of financial position

The usual rules are as follows:

* |fthe goods or cash are in transit between P and S, make the adjusting
entry to the statement of financial position of the recipient:

— cashin transit adjusting entry is:
— DrCash

— CrReceivables
— goods in transit adjusting entry is:
—  DrlInventory

— CrPayables

this adjustment is for the purpose of consolidation only.

* Once in agreement, the current accounts may be contra’d and cancelled
as part of the process of cross casting the assets and liabilities.

* This means that reconciled current account balance amounts are
removed from both receivables and payables in the consolidated
statement of financial position .

H

Example 3 - Inter-company current accounts

N

Test your understanding 5

Fair value adjustments/intercompany balance

Statements of Financial Position of P and S as at 30 June 20X8 are

given below:

P S

$ $
Non-current assets:
Land 4,500 2,500
Plant & equipment 2,400 1,750
Investments 8,000

14,900 4,250
o

18 KAPLAN PUBLISHING
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- Q
Current assets
Inventory 3,200 900
Receivables 1,400 650
Bank 600 150
5,200 1,700
20,100 5,950
Ordinary share capital 50c 5,000 1,000
Retained earnings 8,300 3,150
13,300 4,150
Non-current liabilities
8% loan stock 4,000 500
Current liabilities 2,800 1,300
20,100 5,950

(i) P acquired 75% of S on 1 July 20X5 when the balance on S’s
retained earnings was $1,150. P paid $3,500 for its investment in
the share capital of S. At the same time, P invested in 60% of S’s
8% loan stock.

(i) At the reporting date P recorded a payable to S of $400. This did
not agree to the corresponding amount in S's financial statements of
$500. The difference is explained as cash in transit.

(iif) At the date of acquisition it was determined that S’s land, carried at
cost of $2,500 had a fair value of $3,750. S’s plant was determined
to have a fair value of $500 in excess of its carrying value and had a
remaining life of 5 years at this time. These values had not been
recorded by S.

(iv) The P group uses the fair value method to value the non-controlling
interest. For this purpose the subsidiary share price at the date of
acquisition should be used. The subsidiary share price at
acquisition was $2.20 per share.

(v) Goodwill has impaired by $100.
Required:

Prepare the consolidated statement of financial position of the P
group as at 30 June 20X8.

KAPLAN PUBLISHING 19
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4 Unrealised profit

Profits made by members of a group on transactions with other group
members are:

* recognised in the accounts of the individual companies concerned, but

* interms of the group as a whole, such profits are unrealised and must
be eliminated from the consolidated accounts.

Unrealised profit may arise within a group scenario on:

* inventory where companies trade with each other

* non-current assets where one group company has transferred an asset
to another.

When one group company sells goods to another a number of adjustments
may be needed.

*  Current accounts must be cancelled (see earlier in this chapter).

*  Where goods are still held by a group company, any unrealised profit
must be cancelled.

* Inventory must be included at original cost to the group (i.e. cost to the
company which then sold it).

PURP

The process to adjust is:

(1) Determine the value of closing inventory included in an individual
company’s accounts which has been purchased from another company
in the group.

(2) Use mark-up or margin to calculate how much of that value represents
profit earned by the selling company.

(3) Make the adjustments. These will depend on who the seller is.

If the seller is the parent company, the profit element is included in
the holding company’s accounts and relates entirely to the group.

KAPLAN PUBLISHING



Adjustment required:

V4

chapter 2

Dr Group retained earnings (deduct the profit in W5)

Cr Group inventory

If the seller is the subsidiary, the profit element is included in the
subsidiary company’s accounts and relates partly to the group, partly to
non-controlling interests (if any).

Adjustment required:

Dr Subsidiary retained earnings (deduct the profit in W2 - at reporting

date)

Cr Group inventory

% Test your understanding 6

December 20X3 are as follows:

Non-current assets:
Property, plant & equipment
Investment in Safety at cost

Current assets:
Inventory
Receivables
Bank

KAPLAN PUBLISHING

Health (H) bought 90% of the equity share capital of Safety (S), two
years ago on 1 January 20X2 when the retained earnings of Safety
stood at $5,000. Statements of financial position at the year end of 31

Health Safety
$000 $000 $000 $000

100 30
34
134 30
90 20
110 25
10 5
210 50

344 80

21
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Equity:
Share capital
Retained earnings

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

$4,000

31/12/X3.

15
159

174

120
50

344

Safety transferred goods to Health at a transfer price of $18,000 at a
mark-up of 50%. Two-thirds remained in inventory at the year end. The
current account in Health and Safety stood at $22,000 on that day.
Gooduwill has suffered an impairment of $10,000.

The Health group uses the fair value method to value the non-controlling
interest. The fair value of the non-controlling interest at acquisition was

Prepare the consolidated statement of financial position at

31
36
28
16

80

Non-current assets

If one group member sells non-current assets to another group member
adjustments must be made to recreate the situation that would have existed

if the sale had not occurred:

*  There would have been no profit on the sale.

*  Depreciation would have been based on the original cost of the asset to

the group.

m NCA PURP

22
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The easiest way to calculate the adjustment required is to compare the
carrying value (CV) of the asset now with the CV that it would have been
held at had the transfer never occurred:

CV at reporting date with transfer X
CV at reporting date without transfer (X)
Adjustment required X

The calculated amount should be:

(1) deducted when adding across P’s non-current assets + S’s non-current
assets

(2) deducted in the retained earnings of the seller.

m Example 4 - Unrealised profit in NCA

5 Mid-year acquisitions

If a parent company acquires a subsidiary mid-year, the net assets at the
date of acquisition must be calculated based on the net assets at the start of
the subsidiary's financial year plus the profits of up to the date of acquisition.

To calculate this it is normally assumed that S’s profit after tax accrues
evenly over time.
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Test your understanding 7

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

On 1 May 2007 Karl bought 60% of Susan paying $76,000 cash. The
summarised Statements of Financial Position for the two companies as

at 30 November 2007 are:

Karl Susan
$ $
Non-current assets
Property, plant & equipment 138,000 115,000
Investments 98,000 -
Current assets
Inventory 15,000 17,000
Receivables 19,000 20,000
Cash 2,000 -
272,000 152,000
Share capital 50,000 40,000
Retained earnings 189,000 69,000
239,000 109,000
Non-current liabilities
8% Loan notes - 20,000
Current liabilities 33,000 23,000
272,000 152,000
N
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(i)

(Vi)

(vii)

The following information is relevant:

The inventory of Karl includes $8,000 of goods purchased for cash
from Susan at cost plus 25%.

On 1 June 2007 Karl transferred an item of plant to Susan for
$15,000. lIts carrying amount at that date was $10,000. The asset
had a remaining useful economic life of 5 years.

The Karl Group values the non-controlling interest using the fair
value method. At the date of acquisition the fair value of the 40%
non-controlling interest was $50,000.

An impairment loss of $1,000 is to be charged against goodwill at
the year-end.

Susan earned a profit of $9,000 in the year ended 30 November
2007.

The loan note in Susan’s books represents monies borrowed from
Karl during the year. All of the loan note interest has been
accounted for.

Included in Karl’s receivables is $4,000 relating to inventory sold to
Susan during the year. Susan raised a cheque for $2,500 and sent
it to Karl on 29 November 2007. Karl did not receive this cheque
until 4 December 2007.

Required:

Prepare the consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 30
November 2007.

6 UK

Syllabus Focus

m UK Syllabus Focus
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Chapter summary

Pre-acquisition
profits and group
reserves

Only include
post-acquisition
movement in
reserves of
subsidiary in group

Consolidated statement of financial position

CSFP

( )
Non-controlling

CONSOLIDATION WORKINGS

(W1) Group structure
(W2) Net assets
(W3) Goodwill

(W4) Non-controlling interest
(Ws5) Group retained earnings

interest
= non-group
owners of
subsidiary

‘Return’ their share
of sub’s net assets
at reporting date

in non-controlling

accounts. - interest line in CSFP.
. y : . Y,
4 N [ \
. Mid-year
Fair values Goodwill (IFRS 3) acquisitions
Of cost Calculation Need reserves of
Of assets Treatment of subsidiary at date
acquired. positive goodwill of acquisition
\ Y Treatment of W2).
0 negative goodwill.
: \ y
4 \ 5
Unrealised profits - ;
In inventory
and non-current Fair values
assets.
Of cost

Of assets acquired.

N\
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Test your understanding answers

"i Test your Understanding 1

Solution $
(i)
Parent holding (investment) at fair value 78,000
NCI value at acquisition 17,000
(20% x $85,000)
95,000
Less:
Fair value of net assets at acquisition (85,000)
Goodwill on acquisition 10,000
(ii)
Parent holding (investment) at fair value 78,000
NCI value at acquisition 19,000
97,000
Less:
Fair value of net assets at acquisition (85,000)
Goodwill on acquisition 12,000
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Test your understanding 2

Dickens consolidated statement of financial position as at 31

December 20X8

Non-current assets
Goodwill (W3)

PPE
(85,000 + 18,000)

Current assets
(160,000 + 84,000)

Equity

Share capital

Share premium

Group retained earnings (W5)
Non-controlling interest (W4)

Current liabilities
(135,000 + 47,000)

(W1) Group structure

(percentage of shares purchased 16,000 / 20,000 = 80%)
D

1 Jan X8 80%

$
22,500

103,000

244,000

369,500

65,000
35,000
74,000
13,500

187,500

182,000

369,500
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(W2) Net assets of Jones

At date of acquisition At reporting date

Share capital 20,000 20,000

Share premium 10,000 10,000

Retained earnings 20,000 25,000

Net assets 50,000 55,000

(W3) Goodwill

Parent holding (investment) at fair value 60,000

NCI value at acquisition 12,500
72,500

Less:

Fair value of net assets at acquisition (50,000)

Goodwill on acquisition 22,500

(W4) Non-controlling interests

NCI value at acquisition (as in W3) 12,500
NCI share of post-acquisition reserves (W2) 1,000
(20% x (25,000 - 20,000))

13,500
(W5) Group retained earnings
Dickens 70,000
80% Jones post-acquisition profit 4,000
(80% x $(25,000 - 20,000 (W2))
74,000
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Test your understanding 3
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 20X8
Non-current assets $
Goodwill (W3) 3,790
Property, plant & equip (15,000 + 9,500) 24,500
Investments (5,000 — 5,000) -
Current Assets (7,500 + 5,000) 12,500
40,790
Share capital (6,000 + 1,200) 7,200
Share premium (4,000 + 960) 4,960
Retained earnings (W5) 13,239
Non-controlling Interest (W4) 6,310
31,709
Non-current liabilities (1,000 + 500 + 1,680 +101) 3,281
Current liabilities (4,000 + 1,800) 5,800
40,790
Workings
(W1) Group structure
P
60%
S
1)uly 20x7 i.e.1yr
(W2) Net Assets
@ acqg'n @ rep date
Share capital 5,000 5,000
Retained earnings 5,800 7,200
10,800 12,200
N
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(W3) Goodwill

Parent holding (investment) at fair value:

Cash paid 5,000

Share exchange 2,160

(60% x 5,000 x 2/5 x $1.80)

Deferred consideration 1,680

(2.000 x 1/1.06°)

8,840
NCI value at acquisition 5,750
14,590
Less:
Fair value of net assets at acquisition (W2) (10,800)
Goodwill on acquisition 3,790
Shares

P has issued 1,200 shares valued at $1.80 each. These have not yet
been recorded and so an adjustment is required to:

Cr Share capital 1,200

Cr Share premium 960
Deferred consideration
P has a liability to pay $2,000 in 3 yrs time which has not yet been
recorded. The liability is being measured at its present value of $1,680
at the date of acquisition and so the adjustment required is:

Cr Non-current liabilities $1,680
The Statement of Financial Position date is 1 year after the date of
acquisition and so the present value of the liability will have increased by
6% (i.e. it is unwound by 6%) by the Statement of Financial Position
date. An adjustment is therefore required to reflect this increase:

Dr Finance cost i.e. Retained earnings of P (6% x 1,680) $101

Cr Deferred consideration i.e. Non-current liabilities $101
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(W4) Non-controlling interests

NCI value at acquisition (as in W3)
NCI share of post-acquisition reserves (W2)
(40% x (7,200 - 5,800))

(W5) Retained earnings

P retained earnings
Deferred consideration finance cost
S (60% x (12,200 — 10,800 (W2)))

5,750
560

6,310

12,500
(101)
840

13,239
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Hazelnut consolidated statement of financial position at 31
December 20X4

$000
Goodwill (W3) 783
Brand name (W2) 200
Property, plant & equipment (5,500 + 1,500 + 200 - 80) 7,120
Current assets:
Inventory (550 + 100) 650
Receivables (400 + 200) 600
Cash (200 + 50) 250

9,603
Share capital (2,000 + 200) 2,200
Share premium (0 + 160) 160
Retained earnings (W5) 1,151

3,511
Non-controlling interest (W4) 337

3,848
Non-current liabilities (3,000 + 400) 3,400
Current liabilities (1,250 + 650) 1,900
Deferred consideration (376 + 79) 455

9,603
Workings
(W1) Group structure

Hazelnut
2 years ago | 80%
Peppermint

KAPLAN PUBLISHING
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(W2) Net assets of Peppermint

At date of acquisition At reporting date

34

Share capital 500 500
Retained earnings 125 300
Plant fair value adjustment 200 200
Depreciation adjustment (80)
(200 /5 years x 2 years)
Brand fair value adjustment 250 250
Amortisation adjustment (50)
(250 /10 years x 2 years)
1,075 1,120
(W3) Goodwill
Parent holding (investment) at fair value:
Cash paid 1,000
Share exchange (200 x $1.80) 360
Deferred consideration (500 x 0.751) 376
1,736
NCI value at acquisition 380
2,116
Less:
Fair value of net assets at acquisition (W2) (1,075)
Goodwill on acquisition 1,041
Impairment (258)
Carrying goodwill 783
N 4
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Note: the cost of the investment in Hazelnut's SFP is $1 million, i.e. the
cash consideration paid. Hazelnut has:

Dr Investment $1 million
Cr Bank $1 million

Hazelnut has not yet recorded the share consideration or the deferred
consideration. The journals required to record these are:

Dr Investment $360,000
Cr Share capital (nominal element) $200,000
Cr Share premium (premium element) $160,000
and Dr Investment $376,000
Cr Deferred consideration $376,000

In the CSFP, since the cost of the investment does not appear there is
no need to worry about the debit side of the entries. The credit entries
do, however, need recording.

(W4) Non-controlling interest

NCI value at acquisition (as in W3) 380
NCI share of post acquisition reserves 9
(20% % (1,120 — 1,075) (W2))

389
NCI share of impairment (52)
(258 % 20%)

337
(W5) Group retained earnings
Hazelnut retained earnings 1,400
Unwind discount (W6) (79)
Peppermint (80% x (1,120 — 1,075)) 36
Impairment of goodwill (W3)
(80% x 258) (206)

1,151
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(W6) Unwinding of discount

Present value of deferred consideration at acquisition 376
Present value of deferred consideration at reporting date 455
79

At acquisition, Hazelnut should record a liability of 376, being the
present value of the future cash flow at that date.

The reporting date is two years’ liability and there is only one year to go
until the deferred consideration will be paid. Therefore the liability in

Hazelnut's SFP at this date is 376 x 1.102%

So, Hazelnut needs to:

Dr Finance costs (PorL) 79
Cr Deferred consideration liability 79

Test your understanding 5

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 20X8

Non-current assets $

Goodwill (W3) 600

Land (4,500 + 2,500 + 1,250) 8,250

Plant & equipment (2,400 + 1,750 + 500 — 300) 4,350

Investments (8,000 — 3,500 — (60% x 500)) 4,200
17,400

Current Assets

Inventory 4,100

(3,200 + 900)

Receivables 1,550

(1,400 + 650 — 100 (CIT) — 400 (inter-co))

Bank (600 + 150 + 100 (CIT)) 850
6,500
23,900

N
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Equity

Share capital 5,000

Retained earnings (W5) 9,500

Non-controlling Interest (W4) 1,500
16,000

Non-current liabilities (4,000 + 500 — (60% x 500)) 4,200

Current liabilities (2,800 + 1,300 - 400) 3,700
23,900

Workings

W1 Group structure

P

75%

S
1)uly 20x5 i.e. 3 yrs

(W2) Net assets

Share capital

Retained earnings

FV Adj Land (3,750 — 2,500)
FV Adj Plant

Dep'n Adj (500 x 3/5)

KAPLAN PUBLISHING

@Acqg'n @rep

date
1,000 1,000
1,150 3,150
1,250 1,250
500 500
(300)

3,900 5,600
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P Q
(W3) Goodwill
Parent holding (investment) at fair value 3,500
NCI value at acquisition 1,100
((2000 shares x 25%) x $2.20)
4,600
Less:
Fair value of net assets at acquisition (W2) (3,900)
Goodwill on acquisition 700
Impairment (100)
Carrying goodwiill 600
(W4) Non-controlling interest
NCI value at acquisition (as in W3) 1,100
NCI share of post acquisition reserves (W2) 425
(25% x (5,600 - 3,900))
Less:
NCI share of impairment (25)
(25% x 100)
1,500
(W5) Group retained earnings
100% P 8,300
75% of S post acq retained earnings
(75% x (5,600 — 3,900)) 1,275
75% Impairment (75)
(75% % 100)
9,500
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Solution
Consolidated SFP for Health as at 31/12/X3

Non-current assets
Goodwill (W3)

Property, plant & equipment
(100 + 30)

Current Assets

Inventory

(90 + 20 — 4 (W6))

Receivables

(110 + 25 — 22 intra-co receivable)

Bank
(10+5)

Equity

Share capital

Group retained earnings (W5)
NCI (W4)

Non-current liabilities

(120 + 28)

Current liabilities

(50 + 16 — 22 intra-co payable)

KAPLAN PUBLISHING

$000
18

130

148

106
113

15

— 234

382

15.0

169.8

5.2

190.0

148.0

44.0

382.0
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P Q
Working paper
(W1) Group structure
H
90% 01/01/X2
2 years ago
S
(W2) Net assets
@Acq @ Rep
date
Share capital 5 5
Retained earnings 5 31
PURP (W6) 4)
10 32
(W3) Goodwill
Parent holding (investment) at fair value 34
NCI value at acquisition 4
38
Less:
Fair value of net assets at acquisition (W2) (10)
Goodwill on acquisition 28
Impairment (10)
Carrying goodwill 18
.
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(W4) Non-controlling interest

NCI value at acquisition (as in W3) 4
NCI share of post acquisition reserves (W2) 2.2
(10% x (32 - 10))

Less:

NCI share of impairment (1)

(10% x $10)

5.2
(W5) Group reserves
100% Health 159
90% safety Post-Acq
(90% x ($32-$10 (W2)) 19.8
Impairment (W3) (9)

(90% x $10)

169.8
(W6) PURP
Sales $18 150%
COS 100%
Gross profit $6 50%

x2/3
PURP = $4
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ﬁ'i Test your understanding 7

2007

Non-current assets
Goodwill (W3)

PPE
(138,000 + 115,000 — 4,500 (W7))

Investments
(98,000 — 76,000 — 20,000)

Current Assets

Inventory
(15,000 + 17,000 — 1,600 (W6))

Receivables

Cash
(2,000 + 2,500 (CIT))

Share capital
Group retained earnings (W5)
Non-controlling Interest (W4)

Non-current liabilities

(20,000 — 20,000)

Current liabilities

(33,000 + 23,000 — 1,500 (intra-group))

Workings
(W1) Group structure

K
60%

S
1 May 2007 i.e. 7 months

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 30 November

(19,000 + 20,000 —- 2,500 (CIT) - 1,500 (intra-group))

341,650

287,150

341,650

$
21,250
248,500

2,000

30,400
35,000

4,500

50,000
186,090
51,060

54,500

42
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(W2) Net assets

@ acq @ rep

date
Share capital 40,000 40,000
Retained earnings 63,750 69,000
PURP (W6) (1,600)

103,750 107,400

RE @ acqg'n (balance) (B) 63,750
Post acq profit (7/12 x 9,000) 5,250
RE @ reporting date 69,000
(W3) Goodwill
Parent holding (investment) at fair value 76,000
NCI value at acquisition 50,000
126,000
Less:
Fair value of net assets at acquisition (W2) (103,750)
Goodwill on acquisition 22,250
Impairment (1,000)
Carrying goodwill 21,250

(W4) Non-controlling interest

NCI value at acquisition (as in W3) 50,000
NCI share of post acquisition reserves (W2) 1,460
(40% x (107,400 - 103,750))

Less:

NCI share of impairment (400)

(40% x $1,000)

51,060
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(W5) Group retained earnings

100% Karl
PURP (W7)

60% Susan post-acq profit
(60% x (107,400 — 103,750 (W2)))

Impairment — group share
(60% x 1,000 (W3))

(W6) PURP - Inventory
Profit in inventory (25/125 x 8,000) 1,600

(W7) PURP - Plant

CV in books (15,000 — (15,000 x 1/5 x 6/12))
CV should be (10,000 — (10,000 x 1/5 x 6/12))

PURP

186,090

189,000
(4,500)

2,190

(600)

13,500
(9,000)

4,500
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Consolidated statement of
profit or loss

Chapter learning objectives

Upon completion of this chapter you will be able to:

* prepare a consolidated statement of profit or loss for a simple
group and a non-controlling interest

* account for the effects of intra-group trading in the statement of
profit or loss

* prepare a consolidated statement of profit or loss for a simple
group with an acquisition in the period and non-controlling
interest

* account for impairment of goodwill

* prepare a consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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( CONSOLIDATED PROFIT h

OR LOSS (AND OTHER
\ COMPREHENSIVE INCOME). )

f \
CONSOLIDATION WORKINGS

r \
MID-YEAR
[ DIVIDENDS ] INTRA-GROUP [ ACQUISITIONS ]
TRADING

N
e Sales
e |nterest
e transfers of non-

q current assets. )

1 Principles of the consolidated statement of profit or loss

The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the profit generated by all
resources disclosed in the related consolidated statement of financial
position, i.e. the net assets of the parent company (P) and its subsidiary (S).

The consolidated statement of profit or loss follows these basic principles:

*  From revenue to profit for the year include all of P’'s income and
expenses plus all of S’s income and expenses (reflecting control of S).

*  After profit for the year show split of profit between amounts attributable
to the parent's shareholders and the non-controlling interest (to reflect
ownership).

The mechanics of consolidation

As with the statement of financial position, it is common to use standard
workings when producing a consolidated statement of profit or loss:

*  group structure diagram

* net assets of subsidiary at acquisition (required for goodwill calculation
- if asked to calculate)

* goodwill calculation (if asked to calculate goodwill or if you are required
to calculate an impairment that is to be charged to profits (see below))

* non-controlling interest (NCI) share of profit (see below)
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Non-controlling interest

This is calculated as:

NCI % x subsidiary’s profit after tax X

Less:

NCI % x fair value depreciation (X)

NCI % x PURP (sub = seller only) (X)

NCI % x impairment (fair value method) (X)
X

2 Intra-group trading

The effect of intra-group trading must be eliminated from the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Such trading will be included in the sales revenue of one group company
and the purchases of another.

* Consolidated sales revenue = P’s revenue + S’s revenue — intra-group
sales.

* Consolidated cost of sales =P’s COS + S’s COS — intra-group sales.

Interest

If there is a loan outstanding between group companies the effect of any
loan interest received and paid must be eliminated from the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The relevant amount of interest should be deducted from group investment
income and group finance costs.
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Dividends
A payment of a dividend by S to P will need to be cancelled. The effect of
this on the consolidated statement of profit or loss is:

* only dividends paid by P to its own shareholders appear in the
consolidated financial statements. These are shown within the
consolidated statement of changes in equity which you will not be
required to prepare for the F7 examination.

* any dividend income shown in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss must arise from investments other than those in subsidiaries or
associates (covered in chapter 4).

Example 1 — Basic consolidated profit or loss

Inventory

If any goods sold intra-group are included in closing inventory, their value
must be adjusted to the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV) to the
group (as in the CSFP).

The adjustment for unrealised profit should be shown as an increase to cost
of sales (return inventory back to true cost to group and eliminate unrealised
profit).

Unrealised profit in inventory

Example 2 - Unrealised profit in CIS

Transfers of non-current assets

If one group company sells a non-current asset to another group company
the following adjustments are needed in the statement of profit or loss to
account for the unrealised profit and the additional depreciation.

*  Any profit or loss arising on the transfer must be removed from the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

* The depreciation charge must be adjusted so that it is based on the
cost of the asset to the group.
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Unrealised profit on non-current assets

3 Other CIS adjustments

Once any impairment has been identified during the year, the charge for the
year will be passed through the consolidated statement of profit or loss. This
will usually be through operating expenses, however always follow
instructions from the examiner.

If non-controlling interests have been valued at fair value, a portion of the
impairment expense must be removed from the non-controlling interest's
share of profit.

Fairvalues
If a depreciating non-current asset of the subsidiary has been revalued as
part of a fair value exercise when calculating goodwill, this will result in an
adjustment to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The subsidiary's own statement of profit or loss will include depreciation
based on the value the asset is held at in the subsidiary's own SFP.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss must include a depreciation
charge based on the fair value of the asset, included in the consolidated
SFP.

Extra depreciation must therefore be calculated and charged to an
appropriate cost category (usually in line with examiner requirements).

Test your understanding 1

Set out below are the draft statements of profit or loss of Smiths and its
subsidiary company Flowers for the year ended 31 December 20X7.

On 1 January 20X6 Smiths purchased 75,000 ordinary shares in
Flowers from an issued share capital of 100,000 $1 ordinary shares.
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Statements of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 20X7
Smiths Flowers

$000 $000

Revenue 600 300
Cost of sales (360) (140)
Gross profit 240 160
Operating expenses (93) (45)
Profit from operations 147 115
Finance costs (3)
Profit before tax 147 112
Tax (50) (32)
Profit for the year 97 80

The following additional information is relevant:

(i) During the year Flowers sold goods to Smiths for $20,000, making
a mark-up of one third. Only 20% of these goods were sold before
the end of the year, the rest were still in inventory.

(i) Goodwill has been subject to an impairment review at the end of
each year since acquisition and the review at the end of this year
revealed another impairment of $5,000. The current impairment is to
be recognised as an operating cost.

(iii) At the date of acquisition a fair value adjustment was made and this
has resulted in an additional depreciation charge for the current year
of $15,000. It is group policy that all depreciation is charged to cost
of sales.

(iv) Smiths values the non-controlling interests using the fair value
method.

Prepare the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 20X7.
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Given below are the statements of profit or loss for Paris and its
subsidiary London for the year ended 31 December 20X5.

Paris London

$000 $000
Revenue 3,200 2,560
Cost of sales (2,200) (1,480)
Gross profit 1,000 1,080
Distribution costs (160) (120)
Administrative expenses (400) (80)
Profit from operations 440 880
Investment income 160 -
Profit before tax 600 880
Taxation (400) (480)
Profit for the year 200 400

Additional information:

(i) Paris paid $1.5 million on 31 December 20X1 for 80% of London’s
800,000 ordinary shares.

(i) Goodwill impairments at 1 January 20X5 amounted to $152,000. A
further impairment of $40,000 was found to be necessary at the year
end. Impairments are included within administrative expenses.

(iii) Paris made sales to London, at a selling price of $600,000 during
the year. Not all of the goods had been sold externally by the year
end. The profit element included in London’s closing inventory was
$30,000.

(iv) Fair value depreciation for the current year amounted to $10,000. All
depreciation should be charged to cost of sales.

(v) London paid an interim dividend during the year of $200,000.

(vi) Paris values the non-controlling interests using the fair value
method.

Prepare a consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 20X5 for the Paris group.
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4 Mid-year acquisitions

If a subsidiary is acquired part way through the year, then the subsidiary’s
results should only be consolidated from the date of acquisition, i.e. the date

on which control is obtained.

In practice this will require:

* |dentification of the net assets of S at the date of acquisition in order to

calculate goodwiill.

* Time apportionment of the results of S in the year of acquisition. For this

purpose, unless indicated otherwise, assume that revenue and

expenses accrue evenly.

*  After time-apportioning S’s results, deduction of post acquisition intra-

group items as normal.

Example 3 — Mid-year acquisition

Test your understanding 3

March 20X7:

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Operating expenses

Profit from operations
Investment Income

Profit before tax
Tax

Profit for the year

Pepper bought 70% of Salt on 1 July 20X6. The following are the
statements of profit or loss of Pepper and Salt for the year ended 31

Pepper Salt

$ $
31,200 10,400
(17,800) (5,600)
13,400 4,800
(8,500) (3,200)
4,900 1,600
2,000 -
6,900 1,600
(2,100) (500)
4,800 1,100

N
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The following information is available:

(i) On 1 July 20X6, an item of plant in the books of Salt had a fair value
of $5,000 in excess of its carrying value. At this time, the plant had
a remaining life of 10 years. Depreciation is charged to cost of
sales.

(i) During the post-acquisition period Salt sold goods to Pepper for
$4,400. Of this amount, $500 was included in the inventory of
Pepper at the year-end. Salt earns a 35% margin on its sales.

(iii) Goodwill amounting to $800 arose on the acquisition of Salt, which
had been measured using the fair value method. Goodwill is to be
impaired by 10% at the year-end. Impairment losses should be
charged to operating expenses.

(iv) Salt paid a dividend of $500 on 1 January 20X7.
Required:

Prepare the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 20X7.

5 The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of profit or lossand other comprehensive
income may be asked for in the exam instead of simply a consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The consolidated statement of profit or loss is the
starting point and the other comprehensive income items are then recorded
(a proforma statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is
included in chapter 6).

The items that you may need to consider in the F7 syllabus for items of other
comprehensive income include revaluations gains or losses and fair value
through other comprehensive income gains or losses (chapter 14). To
demonstrate how these items should be dealt with, we will take Test Your
Understanding 3 and add items of comprehensive income to illustrate this.
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e.g

The answer to test your understanding 3 shows the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the Pepper group.

Additional information:

Salt's land increased in value by $500 over its value at the date of
acquisition and there was a loss on its financial assets held at fair value
through other comprehensive income (per IFRS 9, Chapter 14) for the
year of $100. All items are deemed to accrue evenly over time except

where otherwise indicated.

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the Pepper group for the year ended

31 March 20X7

Revenue
Cost of Sales

Gross profit
Operating expenses

Profit from operations
Investment income

Profit before tax
Tax

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Gain on revaluation of land

Loss on financial assets
(100 % 9/12)

Total comprehensive income

Profit attributable to:
NCI (as in TYU 3 solution)
Group (as in TYU 3 solution)

$
34,600
(18,150)

16,450
(10,980)

5,470
1,650

7,120
(2,475)

4,645

500
(75)

425

5,070

58.5
4,586.5

4,645

.
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Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Non-controlling interests 186
(58.5 + (500 — (100 x 9/12) x 30%))
Group (B) 4,884

5,070

ﬂ'i Test your understanding 4

Papilla acquired 70% of Satago three years ago, when Satago’s
retained earnings were $430,000.

The Financial Statements of each company for the year ended 31 March
2007 are as follows:

Statements of Financial Position as at 31 March 2007

P S
$000 $000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 900 400
Investment in S at cost 700 -
Current assets 300 600
1,900 1,000
Share capital ($1) 200 150
Share premium 50 -
Retained earnings 1,350 700
1,600 850
Non-current liabilities 100 90
Current liabilities 200 60
1,900 1,000
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Statements of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2007

P S

$000 $000
Revenue 1,000 260
Cost of Sale (750) (80)
Gross profit 250 180
Operating expenses (60) (35)
Profit from operations 190 145
Finance costs (25) (15)
Investment Income 20 -
Profit before tax 185 130
Tax (100) (30)
Profit for the year 85 100

You are provided with the following additional information:

Satago had plant in its Statement of Financial Position at the date of
acquisition with a carrying value of $100,000 but a fair value of
$120,000. The plant had a remaining life of 10 years at acquisition.
Depreciation is charged to cost of sales.

The Papilla group values the non-controlling interests at fair value.
The fair value of the non-controlling interests at the date of
acquisition was $250,000. Goodwill is to be impaired by 30% at the
reporting date, of which one third related to the current year.

At the start of the year Papilla transferred a machine to Satago for
$15,000. The asset had a remaining useful economic life of 3 years
at the date of transfer. It had a carrying value of $12,000 in the
books of Papilla at the date of transfer.

During the year Satago sold some goods to Papilla for $60,000 at a
mark-up of 20%. 40% of the goods remained unsold at the year-
end. At the year-end, Satago’s books showed a receivables
balance of $6,000 as being due from Papilla. This disagreed with
the payables balance of $1,000 in Papilla’s books due to Papilla
having sent a cheque to Satago shortly before the year end which
Satago had not yet received.

Satago paid a dividend of $20,000 on 1 March 2007.

.
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Required:

Prepare the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March
2007.
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Chapter summary

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT
OR LOSS (AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME).

Consolidation workings
e Consolidation schedule
e Group structure
e Net assets of S
e Goodwill
e Non-controlling interest

Dividends in CIS

Received: non-group
investments only.

INTRA-GROUP
TRADING

Sales
e Remove unrealised profit
in seller’s column.
e Deduct from sales and
cost of sales in
adjustments column.

s

Interest

e Deduct in adjustments
column.

J

s

\

Sale of non-current assets
e Remove profit.

e Adjust depreciation in
seller’s column.

~

58

Mid-year acquisitions
Prorate S’s results
in consolidation
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Test your understanding answers

"i Test your understanding 1

Smiths consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 20X7

$000
Revenue 880
(600 + 300 — 20)
Cost of sales (499)
(360 + 140 — 20 + 4 (W2) + 15 (fv dep'n))
Gross profit 381
Operating expenses (143)
(93 + 45 + 5 (impairment))
Profit from operations 238
Finance costs (3)
Profit before tax 235
Tax (82)
(50 + 32)
Profit for the year 153
Attributable to:
Non-controlling interest (W3) 14
Group (153 — 14) 139

153
Workings
(W1) Group structure
S
75%
F
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(W2) Unrealised profit

(80% x $20) x 33% /133%

(W3) Non-controlling interest

NCI share of subsidiary's profit for the year
(25 % x $80)

Less:

NCI share of PURP

(25% x $4 (W2))

NCI share of impairment

(25% x $5)

NCI share of fair value dep'n

(25% x $15)

$000

$000
20

(1.25)

(3.75)

14.00
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 20X5
$000
Revenue 5,160
(3,200 + 2,560 — 600)
Cost of sales (3,120)
(2,200 + 1,480 — 600 + 30 (PURP) + 10 (fv dep'n))
Gross profit 2,040
Investment income (external only) —
Distribution costs (280)
(160 + 120)
Administrative expenses (520)
(400 + 80 +40)
Profit before tax 1,240
Taxation (880)
(400 + 480)
Profit for the year 360
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 290
Non-controlling interests (W2) 70
360
Workings
(W1) Group structure
Paris
31 Dec X1 80%
London
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(W2) Non-controlling interest

NCI share of profit after tax 80
(20% x $400)

Less:

NCI share of impairment (8)
(20% x $40)

NCI share of fair value dep'n (2)

(20% x $10)
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the year ended 31 March 20X7

Revenue (31,200 + (9/12 x 10,400) — 4,400 (W4))

Cost of Sales (17,800 + (9/12 x 5,600) + 375 (W3) — 4,400
(W4)

+175 (W4))

Gross profit
Operating expenses (8,500 + (9/12 x 3,200) + 80 (W5))

Profit from operations
Investment Income (2,000 — 350 (W6))

Profit before tax
Tax (2,100 + (9/12 x 500)

Profit for the year
Profit attributable to:

NCI (W2)
Group

(W1) Group structure

P
70%

S
1July20x6 i.e. 9 months
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss for the Pepper group for

$
34,600
(18,150)

16,450
(10,980)

5,470
1,650

7,120
(2,475)

4,645

58.5
4,586.5

4,645
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(W2) Non-controlling Interests

$

NCI share of sub's profit for the year
(30% x (9/12 x $1,100) 247.5
Less:
NCI share of fair value depreciation
(30% x $375 (W3)) (112.5)
NCI share of PURP
(30% x $175 (W4)) (562.5)
NCI share of impairment
(30% x $80 (W5)) (24)

58.5

(W3) Fair value depreciation

FV Adj = $5,000

Dep'n Adj $5,000 x 1/10 x 9/12 = $375
(W4) Inter-company sales / PURP

Inter-co sales of $4,400 need eliminating from revenue and cost of
sales

PURP ininventory  35% x $500 = $175

The PURP will increase cost of sales and since the sub sold the
goods will reduce the NCl's share of profits.

(W5) Impairment
Impairment $800 x 10% = $80
(W6) Dividend
The sub paid a dividend of $500 and so the parent will have

recorded investment income of 70% x 500 = 350. As an intra-group
transaction this needs eliminating.
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Non-current assets

Goodwill (W3)

Property, plant and equipment

(900 +400 + 20 - 6 — 2 (PURP))

Current assets (300 + 600 — 4 (PURP) — 6+ 5)

Share capital
Share premium
Retained earnings (W5)

Non-controlling Interests (W4)

Non-current liabilities (100 + 90)
Current liabilities (200 + 60 — 1)

KAPLAN PUBLISHING

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2007

$000

245
1,312

895

2,452

200
50
1,456.5

1,706.5
296.5

2,003

190
259

2,452
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March 2007

Revenue (1,000 + 260 — 60)
Cost of Sales (750 + 80 — 60 + 2(Dep'n) + 4(PURP) + 2(PURP)

Gross profit
Operating expenses (60 + 35 + 35 (IMP))

Profit from operations
Finance costs (25 + 15)
Investment Income (20 — (70% x 20))

Profit before tax
Tax (100 + 30)

Profit after tax

Attributable to:
Non-controlling interests (W4)
Parent shareholders

Workings
(W1) Group structure

P

70%
3yrs

Consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31

$000
1,200
(778)
422
(130)
292
(40)
6
258
(130)

128
17.7
110.3

128

66
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(W2) Net Assets of sub

Acg'n Reporting date

$ $
Share capital 150 150
RE 430 700
FV — machine (120 — 100) 20 20
Dep'n (20 x 3/10) (6)
PURP (W7) - (4)
600 860

(W3) Goodwill
Parent holding (investment) at fair value 700
NCI value at acquisition 250
950
Less: Fair value of net assets at acquisition (W2) (600)
350
Impairment (105)
245

Note: of the total impairment of $105, a third i.e. $35 is to be charged to
this years consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(W4) NCI's — CSFP

NCI value at acquisition (as in W3) 250
NCI share of post-acquisition reserves (W2) 78
(30% x (860 — 600))

NCI share of impairment (31.5)

(30% = 105)

296.5
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P Q
NCl's - CIS
Profit after tax 100
Dep'n (20 x 1/10) (2)
PURP (W7) 4)
94
NCI share x 30% 28.2
Impairment (30% x 35) (10.5)
17.7
(W5) Group retained earnings
Parent retained earnings 1,350
PURP (W6) (2)
Sub post acq profit 182
(70% x (860 — 600))
Impairment (73.5)
(70% % 105)
1,456.5
(W6) PURP - Fixed asset
CV in books (15 — (15 x 1/3yrs)) 10
CV should be (12 x (12 x 1/3 yrs)) (8)
PURP 2
(W7) PURP - Inventory
Profit on sale (20/120 x 60) 10
Profit in Inventory (40% % 10) 4
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Chapter learning objectives

Upon completion of this chapter you will be able to:

* define an associate

* explain the principles and reasoning for the use of equity
accounting

* prepare a consolidated statement of financial position to include
a single subsidiary and an associate

* prepare a consolidated statement of profit or loss to include a
single subsidiary and an associate.
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ASSOCIATES

........... EQUITY
o ACCOUNTING

STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS

STANDARD

WORKINGS

FAIR VALUES TRADING WITH
THE ASSOCIATE

r \
BALANCES WITH [ DI\,/B‘lngchl,SB\'IFESOM J
\ ASSOCIATE
*
UNREALISED PROFIT IN
INVENTORY

1 IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
Definition of an associate

IAS 28 defines an associate as:

An entity over which the investor has significant influence and that is neither
a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture (joint ventures are not part of
the F7 syllabus).

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

Significant influence is assumed with a shareholding of 20% to 50%.
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Equity accounting is a method of accounting whereby the investment is
initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition
change in the investor’s share of net assets of the associate.

The effect of this is that the consolidated statement of financial position
includes:

* 100% of the assets and liabilities of the parent and subsidiary company
on a line by line basis

* an ‘investments in associates’ line within non-current assets which
includes the group share of the assets and liabilities of any associate.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss includes:

* 100% of the income and expenses of the parent and subsidiary
company on a line by line basis

* one line ‘share of profit of associates’ which includes the group share of
any associate’s profit after tax.

Note: in order to equity account, the parent company must already be
producing consolidated financial statements (i.e. it must already have at
least one subsidiary).

m Equity method exemption

2 Associates in the consolidated statement of financial position

The CSFP is prepared on a normal line-by-line basis following the
acquisition method for the parent and subsidiary.

The associate is included as a non-current asset investment calculated as:

$000
Cost of investment X
Share of post acquisition profits X
Less: impairment losses (X)
Less: PURP (P = seller) (X)
X
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The group share of the associate’s post acquisition profits or losses and the
impairment of associate investment will also be included in the group
retained earnings calculation.

The calculations for an associate (A) can be incorporated into standard
CSFP workings as follows.

(W1) Group structure
P
30% This indicates that
P owns 80% of the ordinary shares
80% & of S

P also owns 30% of the shares
in A

S

(W2) Net assets of subsidiary
At date of acquisition At reporting date

$ $
Share capital X X
Retained earnings X X
X X

(W3) Goodwill - subsidiary

Parent holding (investment) at fair value
NCI value at acquisition

X | x x

Less:
Fair value of net assets at acquisition (W2)

X

x|

Goodwill at acquisition
Impairment

X

Carrying goodwill

| < |
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(W4) Non controlling interest (NCI)

NCI value at acquisition (as in W3) X
NCI share of subsidiary post-acquisiton reserves (W2) X
NCI share of impairment (W3) (fair value method only) (X)

(W5) Group retained earnings

Parent retained earnings (100%)

Group % of sub's post-acquisition retained earnings
Group % of assoc post-acquisition retained earnings
Less: Impairment losses to date (S + A) (W3)

| X | X X X X ¢

(W6) Investment in associate company

Cost of investment
Post-acquisition profits (W5)
Less: impairment

Less PURP (P = seller)

| X | X X X X ¢

m Example 1 - Associates in CSFP

Fair values and the associate

If the fair value of the associate’s net assets at acquisition are materially
different from their book value the net assets should be adjusted in the same
way as for a subsidiary.
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Balances with the associate

Generally the associate is considered to be outside the group. Therefore
balances between group companies and the associate will remain in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

If a group company trades with the associate, the resulting payables and
receivables will remain in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Unrealised profits on trading between group and associate must be
eliminated to the extent of the investor's interest (i.e. % owned by
parent).

Adjustment must be made for unrealised profit in inventory as follows.

(1) Determine the value of closing inventory which is the result of a sale to
or from the associate.

(2) Use mark-up/margin to calculate the profit earned by the selling
company.

(3) Make the required adjustments. These will depend upon who the seller
is:

Parent company selling to associate — the profit element is included in
the parent company’s accounts and associate holds the inventory.

Dr Group retained earnings (W5)
Cr Investment in associate (W6)

Associate selling to parent company— the profit element is included in
the associate company’s accounts and the parent holds the inventory.

Dr Group retained earnings (W5)

Cr Group inventory
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ﬂ'i Test your understanding 1

Below are the statements of financial position of three entities as at 30
September 20X8

P S A
$000 $000 $000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14,000 7,500 3,000
Investments 10,000 - -

24,000 7,500 3,000

Current assets 6,000 3,000 1,500

30,000 10,500 4,500

Equity

Share capital ($1 ordinary shares) 10,000 1,000 500

Retained earnings 7,500 5500 2,500
17,500 6,500 3,000

Non-current liabilities 8,000 1,250 500

Current liabilities 4500 2,750 1,000

30,000 10,500 4,500

Further information:

(i) P acquired 75% of the equity share capital of S several years ago,
paying $5 million in cash. At this time the balance on S's retained
earnings was $3 million.

(i) P acquired 30% of the equity share capital of A on 1 October 20X6,
paying $750,000 in cash. At 1 October 20X6 the balance on A's
retained earnings was $1.5 million.

(iii) During the year, P sold goods to A for $1 million at a mark up of
25%. Atthe year-end, A still held one quarter of these goods in
inventory.

(iv) As a result of this trading, P was owed $250,000 by A at the
reporting date. This agrees with the amount included in A's trade
payables.
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(v) At 30 September 20X8, it was determined that the investment in the
associate was impaired by $35,000.

(vi) Non-controlling interests are valued using the fair value method. The
fair value of the non-controlling interest at the date of acquisition was
$1.6 million.

Required:

Prepare the consolidated statement of financial position of the P group
as at 30 September 20X8.

Test your understanding 2

P acquired 80% of S on 1 December 2004 paying $4.25 in cash per
share. At this date the balance on S’s retained earnings were
$870,000. On 1 March 2007 P acquired 30% of A’s ordinary shares.
The consideration was settled by share exchange of 4 new shares in P
for every 3 shares acquired in A. The share price of P at the date of
acquisition was $5.00. P has not yet recorded the acquisition of A in its
books.

The Statements of Financial Position of the three companies as at 30
November 2007 are as follows:

P S A
$000 $000 $000
Non-current assets
Property 1,300 850 900
Plant & Equipment 450 210 150
Investments 1,825 - -
Current assets
Inventory 550 230 200
Receivables 300 340 400
Cash 120 50 140
4 545 1,680 1,790
N
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Share capital $1 1,800 500 250
Share premium 250 80 -
Retained earnings 1,145 400 1,200

3,195 980 1,450
Non-current liabilities
10% Loan notes 500 300 -
Current liabilities
Trade Payables 520 330 250
Income tax 330 70 90

4,545 1,680 1,790

The following information is relevant:

(i) Asat1 December 2004, plant in the books of S was determined to
have a fair value of $50,000 in excess of its carrying value. The plant
had a remaining life of 5 years at this time.

(ii) During the post-acquisition period, S sold goods to P for $400,000
at a mark-up of 25%. P had a quarter of these goods still in
inventory at the year-end.

(iii) In September A sold goods to P for $150,000. These goods had
cost A $100,000. P had $90,000 (at cost to P) in inventory at the
year-end.

(iv) As a result of the above inter-company sales, P’s books showed
$50,000 and $20,000 as owing to S and A respectively at the year-
end. These balances agreed with the amounts recorded in S’s and
A’s books.

(v) Non-controlling interests are measured using the fair value method.
The fair value of the non-controlling interest at the date of acquisition
was $368,000. Goodwill has impaired by $150,000 at the reporting
date. An impairment review found the investment in the associate
was to be impaired by $15,000 at the year-end.

(vi) A’s profit after tax for the year is $600,000.

Required:

Prepare the consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 30
November 2007.
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Test your understanding 3
The summarised statements of financial position of Bacup, Townley and
Rishworth as at 31 March 20X7 are as follows:
Bacup Townley Rishworth
$000 $000 $000
Non-current assets:
Property, plant & equipment 3,820 4,425 500
Development expenditure - 200 -
Investments 1,600 - -
5,420 4,625 500
Current assets:
Inventory 2,740 1,280 250
Receivables 1,960 980 164
Cash at bank 1,260 - 86
5,960 2,260 500
Total assets 11,380 6,885 1,000
Equity:
Ordinary shares of 25 cents each 4,000 500 200
Reserves:
Share premium 800 125
Retained earnings at 31 March 20X6 2,300 380 450
Retained for year 1,760 400 150
8,860 1,405 800
Current liabilities:
Trade payables 2,120 3,070 142
Bank overdraft - 2,260 -
Taxation 400 150 58
2,520 5,480 200
Total equity and liabilities 11,380 6,885 1,000
o~
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The following information is relevant:

(i) Investments

Bacup acquired 1.6 million shares in Townley on 1 April 20X6
paying 75 cents per share. On 1 October 20X6 Bacup acquired
40% of the share capital of Rishworth for $400,000.

(i) Group accounting policies
Development expenditure

Development expenditure is to be written off as incurred as it does
not meet the criteria for capitalisation in IAS 38. The development
expenditure in the statement of financial position of Townley relates
to a project that was commenced on 1 April 20X5. At the date of
acquisition the value of the capitalised expenditure was $80,000.
No development expenditure of Townley has yet been amortised.

(ii) Intra-group trading

The inventory of Bacup includes goods at a transfer price of
$200,000 purchased from Townley after the acquisition. The
inventory of Rishworth includes goods at a transfer price of
$125,000 purchased from Bacup. All transfers were at cost plus
25%.

The receivables of Bacup include an amount owing from Townley of
$250,000. This does not agree with the corresponding amount in
the books of Townley due to a cash payment of $50,000 made on
29 March 20X7, which had not been received by Bacup at the year
end.

(iv) Itis group policy to value the non-controlling interest using the fair
value at the date of acquisition. At the date of acquisition the fair
value of the non-controlling interest was $95,000.

Required:

Prepare a consolidated statement of financial position of the Bacup
group as at 31 March 20X7.
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3 Associates in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

The equity method of accounting requires that the consolidated statement of
profit or loss:

* does not include dividends from the associate

* instead includes group share of the associate’s profit after tax less any
impairment of the associate in the year (included below group profit
from operations).

Generally the associate is considered to be outside the group.

Therefore any sales or purchases between group companies and the
associate are not normally eliminated and will remain part of the
consolidated figures in the statement of profit or loss.

It is normal practice to instead adjust for the unrealised profit in inventory.

Dividends from associates

Dividends from associates are excluded from the consolidated statement of
profit or loss; the group share of the associate’s profit is included instead.

Example 2 — Associates in consolidated p or |

H

"i Test your understanding 4
Below are the statements of profit or loss of the Barbie group and its
associated companies, as at 31 December 20X8.
Barbie Ken Shelly
$000 $000 $000
Revenue 385 100 60
Cost of sales (185) (60) (20)
Gross profit 200 40 40
Operating expenses (50) (15) (10)
Profit before tax 150 25 30
Tax (50) (12) (10)
Profit for the year 100 13 20
N
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(i)

You are also given the following information.

Barbie acquired 45,000 ordinary shares in Ken a number of years
ago. Ken has 50,000 $1 ordinary shares.

Barbie acquired 60,000 ordinary shares in Shelly a number of years
ago. Shelly has 200,000 $1 ordinary shares.

During the year Shelly sold goods to Barbie for $28,000. Barbie still
holds some of these goods in inventory at the year end. The profit
element included in these remaining goods is $2,000.

Non-contolling interests are valued using the fair value method.

Goodwill and the investment in the associate were impaired for the
first time during the year as follows:

Shelly $2,000
Ken $3,000

Impairment of the subsidiary’s goodwill should be charged to
operating expenses.

Prepare the consolidated of profit or loss for Barbie including the
results of its associated company.
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Chapter summary

Associates

An entity over which the investor
has significant influence.

[ EQUITY ACCOUNTING j

\

( CSFP )
Cost of investment X
Share of post acquisition
profits X
Less impairment losses X)

X
\_ W,
( \

Standard workings
(W2) net assets of associate
(Ws) group retained earnings

(W6) investment in associate.
_J

-

~
Fair values

Adjust associate’s accounts for

consolidation purposes where

net assets not recorded at fair

\

\ value. )
( N\
Balances with associate
Do not cancel.

\. )

~

Unrealised profit in inventory
Adjustment depends on who

seller is. )

Consolidated Statement of
profit or loss
Group share of the associate’s
profit after tax less any
impairment of goodwill in
the year.

~
Trading with the associate

Do not eliminate sales or
purchases.

Dividends from associates
Exclude from consolidated
statement of profit or loss
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Test your understanding answers

"i Test your understanding 1
Consolidated statement of financial position for P group as at 30
September 20X8.
$000
Non-current assets
Goodwill (W3) 2,600
Property, plant and equipment 21,500
(14,000 + 7,500)
Investments 4,250
(10,000 — 5,000 (cost of invin S) — 750 (cost of invin A))
Investment in associate (W6) 1,000
29,350
Current assets
(6,000 + 3,000) 9,000
38,350
Equity
Share capital 10,000
Group retained earnings (W5) 9,625
Non-controlling interest (W4) 2,225
21,850
Non-current liabilities
(8,000 + 1,250) 9,250
Current liabilities
(4,500 + 2,750) 7,250
38,350
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P Q
(W1) Group structure
b 30%
75% \ A
S
Several years Two years ago
ago
(W2) Net Assets
at acq at rep date
Share capital 1,000 1,000
Retained earnings 3,000 5,500
4,000 6,500
(W3) Goodwill
$000
Parent holding (investment) at fair value:
Cash 5,000
Fair value of NCI 1,600
6,600
Less:
Fair value of net assets at acquisition (W2) (4,000)
Total goodwill 2,600
N
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(W4) Non-controlling interest
Fair value of NCI 1,600
25% post-acquisition profit 625
(25% x (6,500 — 4,000))
2,225
(W5) Group retained earnings
100% parent 7,500
Sub (75% x (6,500 — 4,000)) 1,875
Assoc (30% x (2,500 — 1,500)) 300
PURP (W7) (15)
Impairment (35)
9,625
(W6) Investment in associate
Cost of investment 750
Share of post-acquisition profit 300
(30% x (2,500 — 1,500))
Impairment (35)
PURP (W7) (15)
1,000
(W7) PURP - A =seller
Profit on sale (25/125 % 1,000) 200
Profit in inventory (1/4 x 200) 50
Group share (30% x 50) 15
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ﬁ'i Test your understanding 2
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2007
$000
Non-current assets
Goodwill (W3) 418
Property (1,300 + 850) 2,150
Plant & Equipment (450 + 210 + 50 — 30) 680
Investments (1,825 — 1,700) 125
Investment in Associate (W6) 620
Current assets
Inventory (550 + 230 — 20 — 9) 751
Receivables (300 + 340 — 50) 590
Cash (120 + 50) 170
5,504
Share capital (1,800 + 100) 1,900
Share premium (250 + 400) 650
Retained earnings (W5) 720
3,270
Non-controlling Interests (W4) 234
3,504
Non-current liabilities
10% Loan notes (500 + 300) 800
Current liabilities
Trade payables (520 + 330 — 50) 800
Income Tax (330 + 70) 400
5,504
o
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P Q
Workings:
(W1) Group structure
P
80% 30%
3yrs 9 mths
S A
(W2) Net assets
@ acq @ rep
date
Share capital 500 500
Share premium 80 80
Retained earnings 870 400
FV — plant 50 50
FV Dep (50 x 3/5) (30)
PURP (W7) (20)
1,500 980
(W3) Goodwill
$000
Parent holding (investment) at fair value:
Cash 1,700
((80% x 500) x $4.25)
Fair value of NCI 368
2,068
Less:
Fair value of net assets at acquisition (1,500)
Goodwill at acquisition 568
Impairment (150)
Carrying goodwill 418
Share exchange:
100 shares issued at $5.00
Cr Share capital (hominal element) 100
Cr Share premium (premium element) 400
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(W4) Non-controlling interest

Fair value of NCI

20% post-acquisition loss
(20% x (980 — 1,500))
Impairment

(20% % 150)

(W5) Group retained earnings

100% parent

PURP (W8)

Sub (80% x (980 — 1,500))
Assoc (30% x (600 x 9/12))
Impairment (150 x 80%)
Impairment (W3)

(W6) Investment in associate

Cost of investment (30% x 250) x 4/3 x $5)
Share of post-acquisition profit (30% x (600 x 9/12))
Impairment

(W7) PURP - Sub

Profit on sale (25/125 % 400)
Profit in inventory (1/4 x 80)

(W8) PURP - Assoc

Profit on sale (150 — 100)
Profit in inventory (90/150 x 50)
Group share (30% x 30)

368
(104)

(30)

234

1,145
(9)
(416)
135
(120)
(15)

720

500
135
(15)

620

80
20

50
30
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$000
8,245

370
420

9,035

7,980

17,015

4,000

5,072

9,072
143

9,215

7,800

17,015

% Test your understanding 3

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 20X7
$000

Non-current assets:
PPE (3,820 +4,425)
Goodwill (W3)
Investment in associate (W6)
Current assets:
Inventory (2,740 + 1,280 — 40) 3,980
Receivables (1,960 + 980 — 250) 2,690
Bank (1,260 + 50 cash in transit) 1,310
Total assets
Ordinary shares of 25 cents each
Reserves:
Share premium 800
Retained earnings (W5) 4,272
Non-controlling interest (W4)
Current liabilities:
Trade payables (2,120 + 3,070 — 200) 4,990
Bank overdraft 2,260
Taxation (400 + 150) 550
Total equity and liabilities
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Workings

(W1) Group structure

Rishworth
(6 months ago)

Townley

(1year ago)

(W2) Net assets in subsidiary

At acquisition At reporting date

$000 $000

Share capital 500 500
Share premium 125 125
Retained earnings 380 780
1,005 1,405

Development expenditure w/off (80) (200)
PURP (W2a) (40)
925 1,165

o~
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(W2a) PURP

$200,000 x 25 /125 = $40,000 Dr W2 — at reporting date Cr Inventory

(W3) Goodwill $000
Parent holding (investment) at fair value 1,200
(0.75 x 1,600)
NCI value at acquisition 95
1,295
Fair value of net assets at acquisition (W2) (925)
Goodwill on acquisition 370
(W4) Non-controlling interest $000
NCI value at acquisition (as in W3) 95
NCI share of post-acquisition reserves (W2) 48

(20% x (1,165 — 925))

143

(W5) Retained earnings $000
Bacup 4,060
Unrealised profit on inventory (below) (10)
Townley (1,165 — 925) x 80% 192
Rishworth (150 profit for year x 6/12 ) x 40% 30
4,272

* PURP = Sold by Bacup to Rishworth, group share only as it is an
associate, 40% of ($125,000 x 25/125) = $10,000

* P =seller, therefore, Dr W5 Cr Investment in associate (W6)
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(W6) Investment in associate

Cost of investment

Share of post acquisition profits
(150 profit for year x 6/12 ) x 40%

PURP

$000
400
30

(10)

420

Test your understanding 4

Solution

31 December 20X8

Revenue
(385 +100)

Cost of sales
(185 + 60)

Gross profit
Investment income (external only)

Operating expenses
(50 + 15 + 3 impairment)

Profit from operations
Share of profits of associate company (W3)

Profit before tax

Taxation
(50 +12)

Profit for the year

Amount attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests (W2)

Barbie consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended

$000
485.0

(245.0)

240.0

(68.0)

172.0
3.4

175.4
(62.0)

113.4

112.4
1.0

113.4

W
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(W1) Group structure
Ken Shelly
45,000/50,000 = 90% 60,000/200,000 = 30%

(W2) NCI in Ken

$000
NCI share of subsidiary’s profit after tax: 1.3
(10% x $13)
Less:
NCI share of impairment (0.3)
(10% x $3)

1.0

(W3) Share of associate

$000
30% of associate profit for the year
(30% x $20) 6
Less:
30% of PURP
(30% x $2) (0.6)
Impairment (2)

34
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chapter

A conceptual and regulatory
framework

Chapter learning objectives

Upon completion of this chapter you will be able to:

explain why a regulatory framework is needed

explain why accounting standards on their own are not a
complete regulatory framework

distinguish between a principles-based and a rules-based
framework

describe the structure and objectives of the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) Foundation, the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), the IFRS
Advisory Council (IFRS AC) and the IFRS Interpretations
Committee (IFRS IC)

describe the IASB’s standard-setting process including revisions
to and interpretations of standards

explain the relationship between national standard setters and
the IASB in respect of the standard-setting process

describe a conceptual framework

discuss what an alternative system to a conceptual framework
might be

define and discuss fundamental and enhancing qualitative
characteristics

define and explain the recognition in financial statements

95



A conceptual and regulatory framework

* apply the recognition criteria to assets, liabilities, equity, income
and expenses

* discuss what is meant by the financial position approach to
recognition

* indicate when income and expense recognition should occur
under the financial position approach.
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The regulatory framework

H

H

Advantages and disadvantages of harmonisation

The role of national standard setters

H

IFRS Foundation

IASB

IFRS IC

IFRS AC

Development of an IFRS

Benchmark treatment

H HHHHH

2 A conceptual framework

The meaning of a conceptual framework

H

The purpose of the framework

H
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3 Objective of financial reporting

The objective of financial reporting is to provide financial information about
the reporting entity that is useful to existing and potential investors, lenders
and other creditors in making decisions about providing resources to the
entity.

4 Qualitative characteristics

Introduction

Qualitative characteristics are the attributes that make information provided
in financial statements useful to others.

The Framework splits qualitative characteristics into two categories:

(i) Fundamental qualitative characteristics
— Relevance

—  Faithful representation
(i) Enbhancing qualitative characteristics
—  Comparability
—  Verifiability
— Timeliness

— Understandability

Fundamental qualitative characteristics

Example 1 — Relevance

Enhancing qualitative characteristics

5 Elements of the financial statements
Assets

Assets are:

* resources controlled by the entity
* asaresult of past events

* from which future economic benefits are expected to flow to the entity.
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Liabilities

Liabilities are:

* anentity’s present obligations
* to transfer economic benefits

* as aresult of past transactions or events.

Equity interest is the residual amount found by deducting all liabilities of
the entity from all of the entity’s assets.

Income is:

* anincrease in economic benefits during the accounting period in the
form of inflows or enhancements of assets or decreases in liabilities

* transactions that result in increases in equity, other than those relating to
contributions from equity participants.

*  This definition follows a statement of financial position approach rather
that the more traditional profit or loss approach to recognising income.

Expenses are:

* decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the
form of outflows or depletions of assets or incurrences of liabilities

* transactions that result in decreases in equity, other than those relating
to distributions to equity participants.

Assets, liabilities and equity interest

Recognition of the elements

KAPLAN PUBLISHING



Chapter summary

chapter 5

FRAMEWORKS OF FINANCIAL
REPORTING

REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

THE REGULATORY SYSTEM

REGULATORY BODIES

[
[
[
[

STANDARDS SETTING
PROCESS

KAPLAN PUBLISHING

[ CONCEPTUAL FRAMEWORK }

[ THE FRAMEWORKS J

seeceseecstatectatecccastecssafecssrscscarestssssecssarenas

OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION STATEMENTS

[ QUALITATIVE CHARACTERISTICSJ

ELEMENTS OF FINANCIAL J

RECOGNITION OF ELEMENTS
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FUNDAMENTAL J ENHANCING

)
)
)
)
[
[
[

RELEVANCE J
FAITHFUL
REPRESENTATION

TIMELINESS

UNDERSTANDABILITY

[

|
)
o)
)
o)
(o)

101



A conceptual and regulatory framework

102 KAPLAN PUBLISHING



chapter

Introduction to published
accounts

Chapter learning objectives

Upon completion of this chapter you will be able to:

* prepare an entity’s financial statements in accordance with
prescribed structure and content

* prepare and explain the contents and purpose of the statement of
changes in equity

e distinguish between the primary aims of not-for-profit and public
sector entities and those of profit-orientated entities

* UK syllabus only:

— identify and outline the circumstances that a single entity is
required to prepare and present statutory financial
statements

— recognise and apply the laws, regulations, accounting
standards and other requirements to the preparation of
statutory financial statements of an entity.
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COMPANY FINANCIAL NOT-FOR-PROFIT/
STATEMENTS PUBLIC SECTOR ENTITIES

STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

\——
—'
STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
OR

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

1 Preparation of financial statements for companies

IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements

In most jurisdictions the structure and content of financial statements are
defined by local law. IASs are, however, designed to work in any jurisdiction
and therefore require their own set of requirements for presentation of
financial statements. This is provided in IAS 1, revised June 2011.

A complete set of financial statements comprises:

* astatement of financial position

* either
— a statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, or

— a statement of profit or loss plus a statement showing other
comprehensive income

* astatement of changes in equity
* a statement of cash flows

* accounting policies and explanatory notes.

IAS 1 (revised) does not require the above titles to be used by companies. It
is likely in practice that many companies will continue to use the previous
terms of balance sheet rather than statement of financial position and cash
flow statement rather than statement of cash flows.

IAS 1 revised
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A recommended format is as follows:
XYZ Group Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 20X2

Assets $ $
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment
Investments

Intangibles

X X X

Current assets:

Inventories X
Trade receivables X
Cash and cash equivalents X

Total assets X

Equity and liabilities

Capital and reserves:

Share capital X
Retained earnings X
Other components of equity X

Total equity X

KAPLAN PUBLISHING
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Non-current liabilities:

Long-term borrowings X
Deferred tax

X

Current liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Short-term borrowings
Current tax payable
Short-term provisions

X X X X

Total equity and liabilities X

Note that IAS 1 requires an asset or liability to be classified as current if:

* it will be settled within 12 months of the reporting date, or

* itis part of the entity's normal operating cycle.

Within the equity section of the statement of financial position, other
components of equity include:

* revaluation reserve

* general reserve.

The statement of changes in equity provides a summary of all changes in
equity arising from transactions with owners in their capacity as owners.

This includes the effect of share issues and dividends.

Other non-owner changes in equity are disclosed in aggregate only.
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XYZ Group
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December
20X2
Share Share Revaluation Retained Total
capital premium reserve earnings equity

$ $ $ $ $
Balance at 31 X X X X X
December 20X1
Change in (X) (X)
accounting
policy/prior year
error (IAS 8)
Restated balance X X X X X
Dividends (X) (X)
Issue of share X X X
capital
Total X X X
comprehensive
income
Transfer to retained (X) X -
earnings
Balance at 31 X X X X X
December 20X2

Total comprehensive income is the realised profit or loss for the period,
plus other comprehensive income.

Other comprehensive income is income and expenses that are not
recognised in profit or loss (i.e. they are recorded in reserves rather than as
an element of the realised profit for the period). For the purposes of F7,
other comprehensive income includes any change in the revaluation of non-
current assets (IAS 16) and fair value through other comprehensive income
financial assets (IFRS 9).

Presentation of other comprehensive income
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IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements requires that you prepare either:

(1) A statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income showing
total comprehensive income; or

(2) A statement of profit or loss showing the realised profit or loss for the
period PLUS a statement showing other comprehensive income.

Statement of profit or loss
A recommended format is as follows:

XYZ Group : Statement profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 20X2

$
Revenue X
Cost of sales (X)
Gross profit X
Distribution costs (X)
Administrative expenses (X)
Profit from operations X
Finance costs (X)
Investment income X
Profit before tax X
Income tax expense (X)
Profit for the year X
Other comprehensive income
Gain/loss on revaluation (IAS 16) X
Gain/loss on fair value through other comprehensive X
income financial assets (IFRS 9)
Total comprehensive income for the year X

Alternative presentation
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2 Introduction to published accounts

The following questions enable preparation of published accounts utilising
knowledge gained at F3 Financial Accounting. In order to be able to
complete an F7 published accounts question these basic preparation
techniques must be followed and the accounting standards in chapters 7 —
17 must first be learned.

m Example 1 — Published accounts
% Test your understanding 1
The following trial balance has been extracted from the books of Arran
as at 31 March 20X7:
$000 $000
Administration expenses 250
Distribution costs 295
Share capital (all ordinary shares of $1 each) 270
Share premium 80
Revaluation reserve 20
Dividend 27
Cash at bank and in hand 3
Receivables 233
Interest paid 25
Dividends received 15
Interest received 1
Land and buildings at cost (land 380, buildings 100) 480
Land and buildings: accumulated depreciation 30
Plant and machinery at cost 400
Plant and machinery: accumulated depreciation 170
Retained earnings account (at 1 April 20X6) 235
Purchases 1,260
Sales 2,165
Inventory at 1 April 20X6 140
Trade payables 27
Bank loan 100
3,113 3,113
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Additional information

(1) Inventory at 31 March 20X7 was valued at a cost of $95,000.
Included in this balance were goods that had cost $15,000. These
goods had become damaged during the year and it is considered
that following remedial work the goods could be sold for $5,000.

(2) Depreciation for the year to 31 March 20X7 is to be charged
against cost of sales as follows:

Buildings 5% on cost (straight line)

Plant and machinery  30% on carrying value (CV) (reducing
balance)

(3) Income tax of $165,000 is to be provided for the year to 31 March
20X7.

(4) Land is to be revalued upwards by $100,000.

Prepare the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of financial
position for year ended 31 March 20X7.

Note: Show all workings but notes are not required.

3 Not-for-profit and public sector entities

Not-for-profit and public sector entities

4 UK Syllabus Focus

UK Syllabus Focus
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Chapter summary

( ) )
COMPANY FINANCIAL NOT-FOR-PROFIT/PUBLIC
STATEMENTS SECTOR ENTITIES
*’

AIM: VALUE FOR MONEY

SOME ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS MAY BE
RELEVANT

STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

ﬁ
—.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN EQUITY: SUMMARY OF
OWNER CHANGES

IN EQUITY

ﬁ

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
OR

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

—
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME = INCOME AND
EXPENSES NOT
RECOGNISED IN PROFIT
OR LOSS (REVALUATION
GAIN)

- J
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Test your understanding answers

Test your understanding 1

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for

the year ended 31 March 20X7

Revenue
Cost of sales (W1)

Gross profit
Administration
Distribution

Operating profit
Finance cost
Interest receivable
Investment income

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Gain on land revaluation

Total comprehensive income for the year

$000
2,165
(1,389)

776
(295)
(250)

231
(25)
1
15

222
(165)

57

100

157
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Statement of changes in equity

Share Share Revaluation Retained Total
capital premium  surplus earnings equity

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
B/f 270 80 20 235 605
Total 100 57 157
comprehensive
income for the
year
Dividends (27) (27)
C/f 270 80 120 265 735

Statement of financial position as at 31 March 20X7

$000
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment (W2) 706
Current assets:
Inventory 85
Receivables 233
Bank 3
321
1,027
Share capital 270
Share premium 80
Revaluation reserve (20 + 100) 120
Retained earnings (235 + 57 — 27) 265
735
Non-current liabilities 100
Current liabilities ($27 + $165) 192
1,027
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Workings

(W1) Cost of sales

Opening inventory
Purchases
Closing inventory (95 — 10)

Depreciation (5% x 100) + (400 — 170) x 30%

Total

(W2) Tangible non-current assets

Land and
buildings
$000
CV b/f 450
Revaluation 100
Depreciation (5)
charge

CV c/f 545

140
1,260
(85)
74

1,389

Plant and Total
machinery

$000 $000
230 680

100

(69) (74)

161 706
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Accounting concepts and
policies

Chapter learning objectives

Upon completion of this chapter you will be able to:

¢ distinguish between an accounting policy and an accounting
estimate

* describe how IAS 8 applies the principle of comparability where
an entity changes its accounting policies

* account for a change in accounting policy and change in estimate
* recognise and account for a prior period adjustment

* describe the underlying assumption of financial statements — the
going concern concept

* define historical cost and compute an asset value using historical
cost

* define and compute fair value/current value
* define and compute net realisable value (NRV)
* define and compute the present value (PV) of future cash flows

* describe the advantages and disadvantages of historical cost
accounting

* discuss whether the use of current value accounting overcomes
the problems of historical cost accounting

¢ describe the concepts of financial and physical capital
maintenance

* describe what is meant by financial statements achieving a
faithful representation
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* describe and discuss fair value in accordance with IFRS 13
* list the circumstances where a true and fair override may apply

* explain the disclosures required where a true and fair override
applies.
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IAS 8
ACCOUNTING
POLICIES,
CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND

ERRORS
- J

MEASUREMENT

IN FINANCIAL CAPITAL

MAINTENANCE

STATEMENTS

HISTORICAL COST ACCOUNTING
AND ALTERNATIVE MODELS

1 IAS 8 Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates &
errors

IAS 8 Accounting policies, estimates & errors

Accounting policies

Accounting estimates

Example 1 - Accounting estimates

Example 2 - Accounting policies vs. Accounting estimates

Prior period errors

H HHHHHH

Example 3 - Prior period errors
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2 IFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement
A further method of valuing assets is that of fair value.

The objective of IFRS 13 is to provide a single source of guidance for fair
value measurement where it is required by a reporting standard, rather than
it being spread throughout several reporting standards. IFRS 13 will improve
comparability between the many standards that require fair value
measurement or fair value disclosures.

Definition
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date (i.e. an exit price).

Fair value may be required to be measured on a recurring basis or a non-
recurring basis.

Recurring and non-recurring basis

Measurement
When measuring fair value an entity shall take into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability. Such characteristics include, for
example, the following:

* the condition and location of the asset; and

* restrictions, if any, on the sale or use of the asset

An entity shall measure the fair value of an asset or a liability using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

The fair value of an asset or liability shall not be adjusted for transaction
costs (transaction costs will be accounted for in accordance with other
IFRSs).

Exclusions from IFRS 13

Disclosure
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3 Accounting concepts

Underlying assumption

Historical cost

Historical cost accounting

Example 4 - Deficiencies of historical cost accounts

Other asset values

Example 5 — Other asset values

Alternatives to historical cost accounting

Constant purchasing power accounting

Advantages and disadvantages of CPP accounts

Current cost accounting

Advantages and disadvantages of CCA

Example 6 — Current cost accounting

Capital maintenance

Fair presentation

HHHHHHUHHUHHHHdHHdHdHHdHJ
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Chapter summary

IAS 8 Accounting

and errors

e accounting
policies

e accounting
estimates

e prior period
errors

e underlying
assumption.

policies, changes in
accounting estimates

Measurement
in financial
statements

e historical cost
e fair value

e NRV

LI YA

Capital
maintenance

e physical
e financial.

Historical cost
accounting
e |imitations
e alternative
models:

CPP accounting
e advantages
e disadvantages.

CCA
e advantages
e disadvantages.

Faithful
representation
e fair
presentation
e override
disclosure.
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Tangible non-current assets

Chapter learning objectives

Upon completion of this chapter you will be able to:

* define the cost of a non-current asset
¢ calculate the initial cost measurement of a non-current asset

* calculate the initial cost measurement of a self-constructed non-
current asset

e distinguish between capital and revenue expenditure
* identify the subsequent expenditure that may be capitalised
* explain the treatment of borrowing costs per IAS 23

* explain the requirements of IAS 16 in relation to the revaluation of
non-current assets

e account for revaluation of non-current assets

* account for gains and losses on disposal of non-current assets
* calculate depreciation based on the cost model

* calculate depreciation based on the revaluation model

* calculate depreciation on assets that have two or more
significant parts (complex assets)

e apply the provisions of IAS 20 in relation to accounting for
government grants

* define investment properties

* discuss why the treatment of investment properties should differ
from other properties

* apply the requirements of IAS 40 for investment properties.
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* UK syllabus only:
— UK rules for borrowing costs
— outline how revaluation guidance differs in the UK including
frequency of valuation, methods of valuation given different
property types
— outline how accounting for revaluation gains and losses
differs under UK rules
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N
oRopcRIES | TANGIBLE
(IAS 40) NON-CURRENT ASSETS

~
[MEASUREMENT (IAS 16)

A BORROWING GOVERNMENT1
COSTS GRANTS

(1AS 23) (IAS 20)

DEPRECIATION
(1AS 16)

REVALUATION
(IAS 16)

METHOD GRANTS
W,

N\
DEPRECIATION CAPITAL

OF REVALUED GRANTS
ASSET

CHANGE IN
ESTIMATES

; N\
{ CHANGE IN { ACCOUNTING REVENUE

J

\ \
COMPONENTS DISPOSAL OF
AND OVERHAUL REVALUED
COSTS ) ASSET

1 IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets held by an entity for
more than one accounting period for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes.

An item of property, plant and equipment should be recognised as an asset
when:

* itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset
will flow to the entity; and

* the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
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Initial measurement

ﬂ An item of property, plant and equipment should initially be measured at its

cost:

* include all costs involved in bringing the asset into working condition

* include in this initial cost capital costs such as the cost of site

preparation, delivery costs, installation costs, borrowing costs (in

accordance with |AS 23 - Iater).

* revenue costs should be written off as incurred.

"i Test your understanding 1

20X7 and incurred the following costs:

Purchase price of land

Stamp duty

Legal fees

Site preparation and clearance

Materials

Labour (period 1 April 20X7 to 1 July 20X8)
Architect’s fees

General overheads

The following information is also relevant:

of faulty design work.

$9 million of the labour costs relate to this period.

September 20X8.

included in tangible non-current asset additions.

An entity started construction on a building for its own use on 1 April

* Materials costs were greater than anticipated. On investigation, it
was found that materials costing $10 million had been spoiled and
therefore wasted and a further $15 million was incurred as a result

* As aresult of these problems, work on the building ceased for a
fortnight during October 20X7 and it is estimated that approximately

*  The building was completed on 1 July 20X8 and occupied on 1

You are required to calculate the cost of the building that will be

$000
250,000
5,000
10,000
18,000
100,000
150,000
20,000
30,000

583,000

124
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Subsequent expenditure on property, plant and equipment should only be
capitalised if it results in the total economic benefits expected from the
asset to increase above those expected on original recognition, e.g. the
cost of an extension to a building should be capitalised (capital expenditure)
as economic benefits will increase with greater space.

All other subsequent expenditure should be recognised in the statement of
profit or loss, because it merely maintains the economic benefits originally
expected e.g. the cost of general repairs should be written off immediately
(revenue expenditure).

Example 1 — Subsequent expenditure

2 Depreciation
Definitions

Depreciable amount is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted
for cost in the financial statements, less its residual value.

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an
asset over its useful life.

Example 2 — Depreciable amount

Commencement of depreciation

Change in method of depreciation

Review of useful lives & residual values

Example 3 - Revision of useful life

Separate components

Major inspection or overhaul costs
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Example 4 — Overhaul costs

3 Revaluation of non-current assets
IAS 16 treatments

IAS 16 allows a choice of accounting treatment for property, plant and
equipment:

* the cost model

¢ the revaluation model.

The cost model

Property, plant and equipment should be valued at cost less accumulated
depreciation.

The revaluation model

Property, plant and equipment may be carried at a revalued amount less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation.

If the revaluation alternative is adopted, two conditions must be complied
with:

* Revaluations must subsequently be made with sufficient regularity to
ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from the fair
value at each reporting date.

*  When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, the entire
class of assets to which the item belongs must be revalued.

Steps:

(1) Restate asset from cost to valuation.
(2) Remove any existing accumulated depreciation provision.

(3) Include increase in carrying value in revaluation reserve (part of other
components of equity within the statement of financial position).
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Journal:
$ 8

Dr  Non-current assets cost/valuation

(revalued amount — cost) X
Dr  Accumulated depreciation

(eliminate all of existing provision) X
Cr Revaluation reserve

(valuation less previous CV) X

Revaluation gains are recorded in the revaluation reserve and reported as a
component of other comprehensive income either within the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income or in a separate statement.

Revaluation losses which represent an impairment, are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. When a revaluation loss arises on a previously
revalued asset it should be deducted against the previous revaluation gain.
Any surplus impairment will be recorded as an impairment expense in the
statement of profit or loss.

m Example 5 — Revaluation of non-current assets

Once an asset has been revalued the following treatment is required.

* Depreciation must be charged, based on valuation less residual value,
over remaining useful life.

* The whole charge must go to the statement of profit or loss for the year.

* Anannual reserves transfer may be made (revaluation reserve to
retained earnings) for extra depreciation on the revalued amount
compared to cost (measured as the difference between depreciation
charge based on revalued amount and the charge based on historic
cost).

* Transfer disclosed in the SOCIE.
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Journals

Dr  Statement of profit or loss - depreciation charge X
Cr  Accumulated depreciation X
And:

Dr Revaluation reserve X

(depreciation on valuation — depreciation on original cost)

Cr  Retained earnings X

Test your understanding 2

On 1 April 20X8 the fair value of Xu's leasehold property was $100,000
with a remaining life of 20 years. The company's policy is to revalue its
property at each year end. At 31 March 20X9 the property was valued at
$86,000. The balance on the revaluation reserve at 1 April 20X8 was
$20,000 which relates entirely to the leasehold property.

Xu does not make a transfer to realised profit in respect of excess
depreciation.

Required

(1) Prepare extracts of Xu's financial statements for the year ended 31
March 20X9 reflecting the above information.

(2) State how the accounting would be different if the opening
revaluation reserve did not exist.

Test your understanding 3

A company revalued its land and buildings at the start of the year to $10
million ($4 million for the land). The property cost $5 million ($1 million
for the land) ten years prior to the revaluation. The total expected useful
life of 50 years is unchanged. The company's policy is to make an
annual transfer of realised amounts to retained earnings.

Show the effects of the above on the financial statements for the
year.
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ﬂ The profit or loss on disposal of a revalued non-current asset should be
calculated as the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying
amount.

It should be accounted for in the statement of profit or loss of the period in
which the disposal occurs.

The remainder of the revaluation reserve relating to this asset should now be
transferred to retained earnings.

ﬁ'i Test your understanding 4

Derek purchased a property costing $750,000 on 1 January 20X4 with a
useful economic life of 10 years. It has no residual value. At 31
December 20X4 the property was valued at $810,000 resulting in a gain
on revaluation being recorded in other comprehensive income of
$135,000. There was no change to its useful life. Derek does not make
a transfer to realised profits in respect of excess depreciation on
revalued assets.

On 31 December 20X6 the property was sold for $900,000.
Required:

How should the disposal on the previously revalued asset be treated in
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 20X67?

4 1AS 20 Accounting for government grants and disclosure of
government assistance

Introduction

Governments often provide money or incentives to companies to export or
promote local employment.

Government grants could be:

* revenue grants, e.g. money towards wages

* capital grants, e.g. money towards purchase of non-current assets.
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IAS 20 follows two general principles when determining the treatment of
grants:

Prudence: grants should not be recognised until the conditions for receipt
have been complied with and there is reasonable assurance the grant will
be received.

Accruals: grants should be matched with the expenditure towards which
they were intended to contribute.

IAS 20 definitions

The recognition of the grant will depend upon the circumstances.

* Ifthe grantis paid when evidence is produced that certain expenditure
has been incurred, the grant should be matched with that expenditure.

* Ifthe grantis paid on a different basis, e.g. achievement of a non-
financial objective, such as the creation of a specified number of new
jobs, the grant should be matched with the identifiable costs of
achieving that objective.

Presentation of revenue grants

IAS 20 allows such grants to either:

* be presented as a credit in the statement of profit or loss, or

* deducted from the related expense.

Revenue grant presentation
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ﬂ IAS 20 permits two treatments:

*  Write off the grant against the cost of the non-current asset and
depreciate the reduced cost.

* Treat the grant as a deferred credit and transfer a portion to revenue
each year, so offsetting the higher depreciation charge on the original
cost.

Treatment of capital grants

H

Test your understanding 5

N

Capital grants

An entity opens a new factory and receives a government grant of
$15,000 in respect of capital equipment costing $100,000. It
depreciates all plant and machinery at 20% pa straight-line.

Show the statement of profit or loss and statement of financial
position extracts in respect of the grant in the first year under
both methods.

m Repayment of grants

5 IAS 23 Borrowing costs
IAS 23 treatment

ﬂ IAS 23 Borrowing costs regulates the extent to which entities are allowed to
capitalise borrowing costs incurred on money borrowed to finance the
acquisition of certain assets.

e Borrowing costs must be capitalised as part of the cost of an asset, if
that asset is one which necessarily takes a substantial time to get ready
for its intended use or sale.

m Rate of interest
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Capitalisation of borrowing costs should commence when all of the following
conditions are met:

* expenditure for the asset is being incurred.
* borrowing costs are being incurred.

* activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs should cease when either:

* substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are complete, or

* construction is suspended, e.g. due to industrial disputes.

Test your understanding 6

On 1 January 20X5, Sainsco began to construct a supermarket which
had an estimated useful life of 40 years. It purchased a leasehold
interest in the site for $25 million. The construction of the building cost $9
million and the fixtures and fittings cost $6 million. The construction of the
supermarket was completed on 30 September 20X5 and it was brought
into use on 1 January 20X6.

Sainsco borrowed $40 million on 1 January 20X5 in order to finance this
project. The loan carried interest at 10% pa. It was repaid on 30 June
20X6.

Required:

Calculate the total amount to be included at cost in property, plant and
equipment in respect of the development at 31 December 20X5.

6 IAS 40 Investment Property
IAS 40 Definition

Investment property is land or a building held to earn rentals, or for capital
appreciation or both, rather than for use in the entity or for sale in the
ordinary course of business.

Owner-occupied property is excluded from the definition of investment
property.
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Investment properties should initially be measured at cost.

IAS 40 then gives a choice between following:

* acost model

e afair value model.
Once the model is chosen it should be used for all investment properties

Cost model

Under the cost model the asset should be accounted for in line with the cost
model laid out in IAS 16.

Fair value model

Under the fair value model:

* the assetis revalued to fair value at the end of each year
* the gain or loss is shown directly in the statement of profit or loss

* no depreciation is charged on the asset.

Fair value is normally established by reference to current prices on an active
market for properties in the same location and condition.

Test your understanding 7

Celine, a manufacturing company, purchases a property for $1 million on
1 January 20X1 for its investment potential. The land element of the cost
is believed to be $400,000, and the buildings element is expected to
have a useful life of 50 years. At 31 December 20X1, local property
indices suggest that the fair value of the property has risen to $1.1
million.

Required:

Show how the property would be presented in the financial statements
as at 31 December 20X1 if Celine adopts:

(a) the cost model

(b) the fair value model.
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TANGIBLE NON-CURRENT
ASSETS

~

N
Measurement (IAS 16)
Cost of bringing asset into
working condition.

Investment properties

Cost model = hold at
cost — depreciation
Fair value model =

revalue at each year end.

method to CV at
date of change.

I e —

ﬁ
Change in
estimates

Calculate
depreciation
based on
amended
estimates from
date of change.

of profit or loss

w

Depreciation of
revalued asset
Over remaining
useful life.
Transfer excess
depreciation
from revaluation
reserve to
retained

earnings.

\m—

\_ J .
. [ Disposal of B
: revalued asset
f Account for
Components disposal as
and overhaul normal.
costs Transfer balance
Separately on revaluation
depreciable. reserve to
— retained
earnings. )

4 N 4 \ ( \
De(;l);;aia;;on Re(\II:;uig)o n Borrowing Government
allocation of costs grants

depreciable (AS 23) (1AS 20)
amount of an
asset over its Accounting . s/ \ s
useful life. . : 2
Gain: record as 3 :
.w Component of ~ : N\ 7~ = N\
: other Revenue
) | comprehensive Capitalise grants
Change in |ncomg during Crin statement of
method (revaluation construction. profit or loss or
permissible surplus) deduct from
for fairer Loss representing \ ) related
presentation. impairment:
Apply new take to statement expense.

ﬁ

Revenue
grants
Crin statement of
profit or loss or
deduct from
related
expense.

—
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Test your understanding answers

Test your understanding 1

follows:

Purchase price of land

Stamp duty

Legal fees

Site preparation and clearance
Materials (Note 1)

Labour (150,000 — 9,000) (Note 2)
Architect’s fees

General overheads

Notes:

*  Only those costs which are directly attributable to bringing the asset
into working condition for its intended use should be included

* administration and other general overhead costs cannot be included

* costs included should only be normal, not abnormal, costs.

The amount included in property, plant and equipment is computed as

Total Exclude Include
$000 $000 $000

250,000 250,000

5,000 5,000

10,000 10,000
18,000 18,000

100,000 25,000 75,000

150,000 9,000 141,000
20,000 20,000
30,000 30,000

583,000 64,000 519,000

(1) The costs of spoiled material and faulty design are abnormal costs.

(2) The $9 million labour cost incurred during the period of the
stoppage is an abnormal cost and is excluded.
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(1) Extracts of the financial statements for Xu at 31 March 20X9

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

extract

Depreciation (W1)

Other comprehensive income:
Revaluation loss (W2)

Statement of financial position extract

Non-current assets

Leasehold property (at valuation)
Equity

Revaluation reserve (20,000 — 9,000)

Statement of changes in equity extract

Balance at 1 April 20X8
Revaluation of leasehold (W2)

Balance at 31 March 20X9

Workings:

(W1) Depreciation

$100,000/ 20 years = $5,000

(W2) Revaluation

Carrying value of leasehold at 31 March 20X9
(100,000 — 5,000 (W1)

Leasehold valuation at 31 March 20X9

Loss on revaluation

(5,000)

(9,000)

86,000

(11,000)

Revaluation
reserve
20,000
(9,000)

11,000

95,000

86,000

(9,000)

(2) If the opening revaluation reserve did not exist, then the revaluation
loss of $9,000 would need to be taken through the statement of

profit or loss as an impairment expense.
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Test your understanding 3

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

extract

Depreciation (W1)

Other comprehensive income:
Revaluation gain (W1)

Statement of financial position extract

Non-current assets

Land and buildings (W1)
Equity
Revaluation reserve (SOCIE)

Statement of changes in equity extract

B/f
Revaluation gain (W1)

Transfer to retained earnings (150 — (4m/50
years))

Crf

Workings:

(W1) PPE Note

Land and buildings (CV)
B/f (5m — (10/50 x 4m))
Revaluation (B)

Valuation
Depreciation (6m/40years)

C/t

$000
(150)

5,800

$000
9,850

(5,730)

Revaluation Reserve
$000

0

(5,800)

(70)

5,730

$000
4,200
5,800

10,000
(150)

9,850
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Solution:

Profit on disposal

Sales proceeds

Valuation at 31 December 20X4

Less: depreciation ((810 + 9 yrs) x 2 yrs)
Carrying Value at 31 Dec 20X6

Profit on disposal

Transfer remaining balance on revaluation reserve

Dr Revaluation reserve
Cr Retained earnings

$000

810
(180)

$000
900

(630)

270

$000
135
135
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Test your understanding 5
Method 1: Deduct from asset
Statement of profit or loss extract
$
Depreciation (17,000)
Statement of financial position extract
$
Non-current assets:
Plant & machinery 85,000
(100,000 — 15,000)
Accumulated depreciation (17,000)
(85,000 x 20%)
68,000
Method 2: Treat grant as deferrred income
Statement of profit or loss extract
$
Depreciation (below) (20,000)
Government grant credit (W1) 3,000
Statement of financial position extract
$
Non-current assets:
Plant & machinery 100,000
Accumulated depreciation (20,000)
(100,000 x 20%)
80,000
Non-current liabilities
Government grant (12,000 (W1) — 3,000 (current liability)) 9,000
Current liabilities
Government grant (15,000 x 20%) 3,000
D 4
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(W1) Government grant deferred income

$ $
Transfer to profit or 3,000 |Grant cash received 15,000
loss
(15,000 x 20%)
Balance c/f 12,000
15,000 15,000

ﬂ'i Test your understanding 6

Solution:

Total amount to be included in property, plant and equipment at 31

December 20X5:
$m
Lease 25,000
Building 9,000
Fittings 6,000
Interest capitalised (40,000 x 10% x 9/12) 3,000
43,000

Only nine months’ interest can be capitalised, because IAS 23 states
that capitalisation of borrowing costs must cease when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are complete.
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Test your understanding 7

(@) Cost model

Depreciation in the year is = $12,000
Therefore:

— in the statement of profit or loss, there will be a depreciation
charge of $12,000

— in the statement of financial position, the property will be shown
ata CV of $1,000,000 — $12,000 = $988,000.

(b) Fair value model

— Inthe statement of financial position, the property will be shown
at its fair value of $1.1 million.

— In the statement of profit or loss, there will be a gain of $0.1
million representing the fair value adjustment.

— No depreciation is charged.

KAPLAN PUBLISHING



chapter

Intangible assets

Chapter learning objectives

Upon completion of this chapter you will be able to:

¢ explain the nature of internally-generated and purchased
intangibles

* explain the accounting treatment of internally-generated and
purchased intangibles

e distinguish between goodwill and other intangible assets
* describe the criteria for the initial recognition of intangible assets

* describe the criteria for the initial measurement of intangible
assets

* explain the subsequent accounting treatment of goodwill
* explain the principle of impairment tests in relation to goodwill

* explain why the value of the purchase consideration for an
investment may be less than the value of the acquired net assets

* explain how this difference should be accounted for

* define research expenditure and development expenditure
according to IAS 38

* explain the accounting requirements of IAS 38 for research
expenditure and development expenditure

* account for research expenditure and development expenditure

¢ UK syllabus only:

— Describe the choice for deferment of development costs
under UK accounting regulation
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GOODWILL

3 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
IFRS 3

IAS38

RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT (R&D)

DEFINITION ]

(
[J
(

AMORTISATION ]

POSITIVE

_J U

=
(

NEGATIVE

1 IAS 38 Intangible Assets

IAS 38

DEFINITION ]

ACCOUNTING
TREATMENT

AMORTISATION

Intangible assets

Objective of IAS 38

Purchased and internally generated intangibles

Example 1 - Intangible classification

Measurement of intangible assets

Amortisation

Goodwill

Innternally generated goodwill

Example 2 - Goodwill
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Example 3 — Research and development

Example 4 - Amortisation of development expenditure

Example 5 — Research and development costs
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-
GOODWILL INTANGIBLE ASSETS R&D
IFRS 3 IAS 38 N
.“ N\ [ \ ( \
Definition Giniti Definitions
Difference between Definition Research:

the value of a
business as a
whole and the
aggregate of the
fair values of its
separable net
assets.

May be:
e purchased

\\

Identifiable non-
monetary asset
without physical
substance.

s

Recognition
To be recognised

\ ° inherent. y must:
g * meet the
g definition of
r an intangible
Positive asset, and
purchased * meet the
goodwill recognition
« Capitalise criteria of the
e Do not framework.
amortise Value using cost .
e Test for model or revaluation
impairment. \ model. y
& .
( A ( \
Negative Amortisation
purchased o If finite useful life,
goodwill amortise to zero
¢ Check residual value.
calculation e If indefinite useful
e Credit to life, do not amortise
Statement of but test for
profit or loss or impairment.
_ J )

investigation
undertaken to
gain new scientific
knowledge and
understanding.

Development:

application of
research findings
before the start
of commercial
production or use.

\ W,

( \
Accounting
treatment

Research costs:

write off to statement

of profit or loss

Development costs:

capitalise if criteria

kmet. P

e

Amortisation

Amortise capitalised
development costs
over useful life.

\
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Impairment of assets

Chapter learning objectives

Upon completion of this chapter you will be able to:

* define an impairment loss
¢ list the circumstances which may indicate impairments to assets
* describe a cash generating unit (CGU)

¢ explain the basis on which impairment losses should be
allocated

* allocate an impairment loss to the assets of a CGU.
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IMPAIRMENT OF
ASSETS IAS 36

INDICATIONS OF
IMPAIRMENTS

ﬁ

[ MEASUREMENTOF
IMPAIRMENT AND

RECOGNITION

.ﬁ
IMPAIRMENT OF
CGUs

1 Impairment of individual assets

The objective is to set rules to ensure that the assets of an entity are carried
at no more than their recoverable amount (i.e. value to the business).

Excluded assets

An asset is impaired if its recoverable amount is below the value currently
shown on the statement of financial position — the asset’s current carrying
value (CV).

Recoverable amount is taken as the higher of:

* fair value less costs to sell (net realisable value), and

* valuein use.

KAPLAN PUBLISHING



V4

chapter 10

An impairment exists if:

[ CARRYING VALUE ] > [ REi(’\JA\gEmELE J

[ GREATER OF j

0o * o
"""""
. .
. .
. .
. .
. ce
......
o Seo

FAIR VALUE LESS
COSTSTO SELL VALUE IN'USE

Measurement of recoverable amount

Example 1 - Recoverable amount

an
an
[T [idicators of mpairment
an

Annual impairment reviews

Where there is an indication of impairment, an impairment review should be
carried out:

* the recoverable amount should be calculated
* the asset should be written down to recoverable amount and

* the impairment loss should be immediately recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

The only exception to this is if the impairment reverses a previous gain
taken to the revaluation reserve.

In this case, the impairment will be taken first to the revaluation reserve (and

so disclosed as other comprehensive income) until the revaluation gain is
reversed and then to the statement of profit or loss.
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Test your understanding 1

Recoverable amount

A company owns a car that was involved in an accident at the year end.
It is barely useable, so the value in use is estimated at $1,000. However,
the car is a classic and there is a demand for the parts. This results in a
fair value less costs to sell of $3,000. The opening carrying value was
$8,000 and the car was estimated to have a life of eight years from the
start of the year.

Identify the recoverable amount of the car and any impairment
required.

Test your understanding 2

An entity owns a property which was originally purchased for $300,000.
The property has been revalued to $500,000 with the revaluation of
$200,000 being recognised as other comprehensive income and
recorded in the revaluation reserve. The property has a current carrying
value of $460,000 but the recoverable amount of the property has just
been estimated at only $200,000.

What is the amount of impairment and how should this be treated
in the financial statements?

2 Cash generating units (CGUs)
What is a CGU?

When assessing the impairment of assets it will not always be possible to
base the impairment review on individual assets.

The value in use calculation will be impossible on a single asset
because the asset does not generate distinguishable cash flows.

In this case, the impairment calculation should be based on a CGU.

Definition of a CGU

A CGU is defined as the smallest identifiable group of assets which
generates cash inflows independent of those of other assets.

Illustration - CGUs
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The impairment calculation

The impairment calculation is done by:

* assuming the cash generating unit is one asset

* comparing the carrying value of the CGU to the recoverable amount of

the CGU.
CARRYING VALUE RECOVERABLE
OF CGU AMOUNT CGU
= carrying values of all > = recoverable amount
assets in CGU added of all assets in CGU added
together. together.

As previously, an impairment exists where the carrying value exceeds the
recoverable amount.

IAS 36 requires that an impairment loss attributable to a CGU should be
allocated to write down the assets in the following order:

(1) Purchased goodwill

(2) The other assets (including other intangible assets) in the CGU on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU.

Note: No individual asset should be written down below recoverable
amount.

% Test your understanding 3

A company runs a unit that suffers a massive drop in income due to the
failure of its technology on 1 January 20X8. The following carrying values
were recorded in the books immediately prior to the impairment:

$m
Goodwill 20
Technology 5
Brands 10
Land 50
Buildings 30
Other net assets 40
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The recoverable value of the unit is estimated at $85 million. The
technology is worthless, following its complete failure. The other net
assets include inventory, receivables and payables. It is considered that
the book value of other net assets is a reasonable representation of its
net realisable value.

Show the impact of the impairment on 1 January.

Test your understanding 4

Impairment of assets

The following trial balance relates to Hume at 30 June 2007:

$ $
Revenue 390,000
Cost of Sales 210,600
Distribution costs 6,800
Administration expenses 12,700
Loan interest paid 3,600
Property — cost 150,000
Property — depreciation at 1 July 2006 38,400
Plant and equipment — cost 176,200
Plant and equipment — depreciation at 1 July 2006 48,600
Trade receivables 31,600
Inventory — 30 June 2007 18,100
Bank 1,950
Trade payables 25,400
Ordinary shares $1 50,000
Share premium 9,000
12 % Loan note (issued 1 July 2006) 40,000
Taxation 1,300
Retained earnings at 1 July 2006 11,450

612,850 612,850

The following notes are relevant:

(1) Property includes land at a cost of $30,000. The building is being
depreciated on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful
economic life of 25 years.

(2) Plant and equipment is being depreciated on the reducing balance

basis at a rate of 20% per annum.

.
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(3) The balance on plant and equipment included a piece of specialist
machinery that cost $70,000 on 1 July 2005. On 30 June 2007 a
fork-lift truck reversed into the machinery causing severe damage.
Hume has identified two possible options:

(i) Sell the machine

A potential buyer has been located, who has indicated that she
would pay 80% of the carrying amount at 30 June 2007.
However, she has insisted that the machine is repaired before
she buys it. The repair work will be done by Hume’s employees
and will take about 120 hours of skilled labour, the associated
cost with this labour is $2,160. In addition Hume will have to
deliver the machine to the buyer at a cost of $2,100 and there
will be a single premium insurance cost of $580 for the journey.

(i) Repair the machine and continue to use it

The financial controller has estimated that the present value of
cash flows generated from future use (including the repair cost)
amount to $31,800.

(4) All depreciation is charged to cost of sales.

(5) The directors have estimated the provision for income tax for the
year to 30 June 2007 at $6,500.

Required:

Prepare the statement of profit or loss for Hume for the year to 30
June 2007 and a statement of financial position at that date.
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IMPAIRMENT OF
ASSETS IAS 36

to sell and value in use).

Impairment exists if carrying
value > recoverable amount
(greater of fair value — costs

Internal sources

e QObsolescence/
damage.

e Changes to way
asset used.

e Evidence that
performance of
asset worse than

q expected.

INDICATIONS OF
IMPAIRMENTS

_

External sources

e Market value
decrease.

e Changes in market
affect entity
adversely.

® |nterest rates
change.

Measurement of impairment and recognition
Impairment = carrying value — recoverable amount

e Write down asset.
e Recognise loss in statement of profit or loss
unless asset previously revalued.

Impairment of CGUs

e CGU = group of assets generating cash inflows.

e Perform impairment test for CGU (using total
carrying value and recoverable amount for all
assets in CGU).

e Allocate impairment to any obviously impaired
asset then to goodwill then prorate to other
assets.
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Test your understanding answers

"i Test your understanding 1

Recoverable amount is higher of:

* fair value less costs to sell = $3,000
* valuein use $1,000

Therefore $3,000.

This indicates an impairment as follows:

Motor vehicle's CV: $000
B/f 8
Depreciation (1)

7
Impairment 4)
C/f (recoverable amount) 3

"i Test your understanding 2

Impairment = $460,000 — 200,000 = $260,000

Of this $200,000 is debited to the revaluation reserve to reverse the
previous upwards revaluation (and recorded as other comprehensive
income) and the remaining $60,000 is charged to the statement of profit
or loss.
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Test your understanding 3

* Carrying value is $155 million.
* Recoverable value is $85 million.
*  Therefore an impairment of $70 million is required.

Technology is considered to be completely worthless and therefore must
first be written down to its nil residual value.

Dr Impairment expense $5m
Cr Technology $5m

Following the write down of technology - the impairment loss to allocate
against the remaining CGU assets is $65m.

Dr Impairment expense $65m
Cr CGU (W1) $65m
(W1) Carrying value Impairment Impaired value

Goodwiill 20 (20) 0
Brands 10 (W2) (5) 5
Land 50 (W2) (25) 25
Buildings 30 (W2) (15) 15
Other 40 0) 40
CGU 150 (65) 85

(W2) pro-rate remaining loss

$m
Total impairment remaining: 65
Allocated — Goodwill (20)
Remaining 45
Prorate based on carrying value:
Brands 45 x 10/(10 + 50 + 30) = 5
Land 45 x 50/(10+50 +30)= 25
Buildings 45 x30/(10+50+30)= 15
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% Test your understanding 4
Statement of profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2007
$
Revenue 390,000
Cost of sales (253,920)
Gross profit 136,080
Distribution costs (6,800)
Administrative expenses (12,700)
Profit from operations 116,580
Finance costs (3,600 + 1,200) (4,800)
Profit before tax 111,780
Tax (1,300 + 6,500) (7,800)
Profit for the year 103,980
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2007
$ $

Non-current Assets
Property (W2) 106,800
Plant and Equipment (W2) 89,080

195,880
Current Assets
Inventory 18,100
Receivables 31,600
Bank 1,950

51,650
247,530
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Equity
Share capital 50,000
Share premium 9,000
Retained earnings (11,450 + 103,980) 115,430
174,430
Non-current liabilities
12% Loan notes 40,000
Current liabilities
Payables 25,400
Accrued loan note interest ((12% x 4,000) — 3,600) 1,200
Income tax 6,500
33,100
247,530
Workings
(W1) Cost of Sales
Per TB 210,600
P & E depreciation 25,520
Building depreciation 4,800
Impairment 13,000
253,920
(W2) Non-current assets
Property P&E
Cost per TB 150,000 176,200
Acc dep'n per TB (38,400) (48,600)
Revaluation
Disposal
Charge for year
(150,000 — 30,000)/25 yrs (4,800)
20% % (176,200 48,600) (25,520)
Impairment (W3) (13,000)
106,800 89,080

.
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subject to depreciation as normal during the year.
(W3) Impairment

Carrying value at 30 June 2007
Recoverable amount
(higher of fair value less costs to sell and VIU)

Impairment loss

Carrying value at 30 June 2007
Cost at 1 July 2005
Dep'n ye June 06 (20% x 70,000)

Dep'n ye June 07 (20% % 56,000)

Fair value less costs to sell at 30 June 2007
Selling price (80% x 44,800)
Repair costs
Delivery costs
Insurance

Value in use — $31,800 per question

The impaired asset is not damaged until the year-end and therefore is

44,800

31,800

13,000

70,000
(14,000)

56,000
(11,200)

44,800

35,840
(2,160)
(2,100)

(580)

31,000
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Reporting financial
performance

Chapter learning objectives

Upon completion of this chapter you will be able to:

* explain the importance of identifying and reporting the results of
continuing and discontinued operations

* define non-current assets held for sale

* account for non-current assets held for sale
* define discontinued operations

* account for discontinued operations

* identify circumstances where separate disclosure of material
items of income and expense is required

* UK syllabus only:

— outline the different definitions and treatment of discontinued
operations and assets held for sale under UK standards.
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REPORTING FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

' N\
FINANCIAL IFRS 5 NON-
STATEMENTS CURRENT
. ASSETS HELD

FOR SALE AND
DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS

ﬁ
PROFIT OR LOSS CHANGES IN
STATEMENT EQUITY

SHOWING

OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

w

EXCEPTIONAL MEASUREMENT
ITEMS OF NON-
CURRENT ASSETS

HELD FOR SALE]

HELD FOR SALE
DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS

The IAS 1 requirements for a statement of financial position, a statement of
changes in equity and a statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income were considered in detail in an chapter 6.

1 Financial statements

Exceptional items is the name often given to material items of income and
expense of such size, nature or incidence that disclosure is necessary in
order to explain the performance of the entity.

The accounting treatment is to:

* include the item in the standard statement of profit or loss line

e disclose the nature and amount in notes.

In some cases it may be more appropriate to show the item separately on
the face of the statement of profit or loss.
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Examples include:

* write down of inventories to net realisable value (NRV)

* write down of property, plant and equipment to recoverable amount
* restructuring

* gains/losses on disposal of non-current assets

¢ discontinued operations

* litigation settlements

* reversals of provisions.

2 IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations

The objectives of IFRS 5 are to set out:

* requirements for the classification, measurement and presentation of
non-current assets held for sale, in particular requiring that such assets
should be presented separately on the face of the statement of financial
position

* updated rules for the presentation of discontinued operations, in
particular requiring that the results of discontinued operations should be
presented separately in the statement of profit or loss.

Classification as held for sale

A non-current asset should be classified as ‘held for sale’ if its carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use.
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For this to be the case, the following conditions must apply:

the asset must be available for immediate sale in its present condition

the sale must be highly probable, meaning that:
— management are committed to a plan to sell the asset

— there is an active programme to locate a buyer, and

— the asset is being actively marketed

the sale is expected to be completed within 12 months of its
classification as held for sale

it is unlikely that the plan will be significantly changed or will be
withdrawn.

Measurement of non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets that qualify as held for sale should be measured at the
lower of:

their carrying amount and

fair value less costs to sell.

Held for sale non-current assets should be:

presented separately on the face of the statement of financial position
under current assets

not depreciated.

Test your understanding 1

On 1 January 20X1, Michelle Co bought a chicken-processing machine
for $20,000. It has an expected useful life of 10 years and a nil residual
value. On 30 September 20X3, Michelle Co decides to sell the machine
and starts actions to locate a buyer. The machines are in short supply,
so Michelle Co is confident that the machine will be sold fairly quickly. Its
market value at 30 September 20X3 $13,500 and it will cost $500 to
dismantle the machine and make it available to the purchaser. The
machine has not been sold at the year end.

At what value should the machine be stated in Michelle Co’s
statement of financial position at 31 December 20X3?
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E A discontinued operation is a component of an entity that has either been
disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and:

* represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations

* is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or

* s a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Discontinued operations are required to be shown separately in order to
help users to predict future performance, i.e. based upon continuing
operations.

m Presentation in the statement of profit or loss

Statement of profit or loss presentation (with a discontinued

operation)

20X2

$

Continuing operations:
Revenue X
Cost of sales (X)
Gross profit X
Distribution costs (X)
Administration expenses (X)
Profit from operations X
Finance costs (X)
Profit before tax X
Income tax expenses (X)
Profit for the period from continuing operations X
Discontinued operations:
Profit for the period from discontinued operations” X
Total profit for the period X
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The analysis of this single amount would be given in the notes.

Alternatively the analysis could be given on the face of the statement of profit
or loss, with separate columns for continuing operations, discontinued
operations, and total amounts.

"z Test your understanding 2

St. Valentine produced cards and sold roses. However, half way through
the year ended 31 March 20X6, the rose business was closed and the
assets sold off, incurring losses on the disposal of non-current assets of
$76,000 and redundancy costs of $37,000. The directors reorganised
the continuing business at a cost of $98,000.

Trading results may be summarised as follows:

Cards Roses

$000 $000

Revenue 650 320
Cost of sales 320 150
Distribution 60 90
Administration 120 110

Other trading information (to be allocated to continuing operations) is as

follows:
Totals
$000
Finance costs 17
Tax 31
(a) Draft the statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
March 20X6.

(b) Explain how an IFRS 5 Discontinued Operations presentation
can make information more useful to the users of financial
statements.
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"i Test your understanding 3

Partway is in the process of preparing its financial statements for the
year ended 31 October 20X6. The company’s main activity is in the
travel industry mainly selling package holidays (flights and
accommodation) to the general public through the Internet and retail
travel agencies. During the current year the number of holidays sold by
travel agencies declined dramatically and the directors decided at a
board meeting on 15 October 20X6 to cease marketing holidays
through its chain of travel agents and sell off the related high-street
premises. Immediately after the meeting the travel agencies’ staff and
suppliers were notified of the situation and an announcement was made
in the press. The directors wish to show the travel agencies’ results as a
discontinued operation in the financial statements to 31 October 20X6.
Due to the declining business of the travel agents, on 1 August 20X6
Partway expanded its Internet operations to offer car hire facilities to
purchasers of its Internet holidays.

The following are extracts from Partway’s statement of profit or loss
results — years ended:

31 October 20X6 31 October
20X5
Internet Travel Car Total Total

agencies hire
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Revenue 23,000 14,000 2,000 39,000 40,000
Cost of sales (18,000) (16,500) (1,500) (36,000) (32,000)

Gross profit/ 5,000 (2,500) 500 3,000 8,000
(loss)

Operating costs  (1,000) (1,500) (100) (2,600) (2,000)

Proft/(loss) 4,000 (4,000) 400 400 6,000
before tax

Required:

(a) State the definition of both non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations and explain the usefulness of
information for discontinued operations.

(b) Discuss whether the directors’ wish to show the travel
agencies’ results as a discontinued operation is justifiable.
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(c) Assuming the closure of the travel agencies is a discontinued
operation, prepare the extracts from the statement of profit or
loss of Partway for the year ended 31 October 20X6 together
with its comparatives. Show the required analysis of the
discontinued operations.

3 UK Syllabus Focus

m UK Syllabus Focus
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FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

IFRS 5 NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD
FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS

STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN
EQUITY

STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

: Reports
transactions
EXCEPTIONAL

with owners
ITEMS (dividends and
share issues)

Material items
of income and
expense of such
size, nature or
incidence that
disclosure is
necessary in
order to explain
the performance

of the entity.

ﬁ
Disclose on face of

statement of profit
or loss orin note.

~—

[ HELD FOR SALE J

[ A
A non-current asset = ‘held for sale’ if

its carrying amount will be recovered

Lthrough sale rather than through use.J

a )
MEASUREMENT OF NON-CURRENT
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Value at the lower of
e carrying amount
e fair value less costs to sell.
Present separately on face of

statement of financial position
do not depreciate.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

= a component of an entity that either

has been disposed of, or is classified

as held for sale, and:

e represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of
operations

e is part of a single disposal plan

e is a subsidiary acquired exclusively

L with a view to resale. )

[ Show results separately. j
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Test your understanding answers

Test your understanding 1

Carrying value at 30 September 20X3:

Cost

Dep'n year 1 (20,000 / 10 years)

Dep'n year 2

Dep'n year 3 (20,000 / 10 years x 9/12)

Fair value less costs to sell = $13,500 — $500 = $13,000

$
20,000

(2,000)
(2,000)
(1,500)

14,500

The machine qualifies as ‘held for sale’ on 30 September 20X3, so

should be stated at the lower of $14,500 and $13,000, namely at

$13,000.

The impairment loss of $1,500 incurred in writing down the machine to
fair value less costs to sell will be charged to the statement of profit or

loss.

The machine will no longer be depreciated.
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% Test your understanding 2
(a) Statement of profit or loss for St Valentine for the year ended
31 March 20X6
$000

Continuing operations:
Revenue 650
Cost of sales (320)
Gross profit 330
Administration costs (120)
Distribution costs (60)
Operating profit 150
Reorganisation costs (98)

52
Finance costs (17)
Profit before tax 35
Income taxes (31)
Profit for period from continuing operations 4
Discontinued operations:
Loss for period from discontinued operations (143)
Loss for period from total operations (139)
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In the notes to the accounts disclose analysis of the discontinued
operations figure:

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Administration costs
Distribution costs

Operating loss
Loss on disposal

Redundancy costs

Overall loss

(b) IFRS 5 presentation

When a business segment or geographical area has been

classified as a discontinued operation, IFRS 5 requires a separate
presentation be made on the face of the statement of profit or loss.
This separate presentation enables user's to immediately identify
that the performance relating to the discontinued segment or area
will not continue in the future, hence making the information more
relevant to users decision making. The user can choose to include

the information when evaluating the past performance of the
company or ignore it when forecasting future outcomes.

$000
320
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"i Test your understanding 3

(a) IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations defines non-current assets held for sale as those assets
(or a group of assets) whose carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. For this to be the case the assets must be available for
immediate sale, subject only to conditions which are usual for sales
of such assets, and the sale must be highly probable, eg it must be
expected to be completed within 12 months of the classification as
held for sale. A discontinued operation is a component of an entity
that has either been disposed of, or is classified as ‘held for sale’
and:

* represents a separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations

* is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such, or

* is asubsidiary acquired exclusively for sale.

IFRS 5 says that a ‘component of an entity’ must have operations and
cash flows that can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the entity and
will in all probability have been a cash-generating unit (or group of such
units) whilst held for use. This definition also means that a discontinued
operation will also fall to be treated as a ‘disposal group’ as defined in
IFRS 5. A disposal group is a group of assets (possibly with associated
liabilities) that it is intended will be disposed of in a single transaction by
sale or otherwise (closure or abandonment). Assets held for disposal
(but not those being abandoned) must be presented separately (at the
lower of cost or fair value less costs to sell) from other assets and
included as current assets (rather than as non-current assets) and any
associated liabilities must be separately presented under liabilities. The
results of a discontinued operation should be disclosed separately as a
single figure (as a minimum) as part of the profit for the year in the
statement of profit or loss with more detailed figures disclosed either in
the statement of profit or loss or in the notes.

The intention of this requirement is to improve the usefulness of the
financial statements by improving the predictive value of the (historical)
statement of profit or loss. Clearly the results from discontinued
operations should have little impact on future operating results. Thus
users can focus on the continuing activities in any assessment of future
income and profit.
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(b)

The timing of the board meeting and consequent actions and
notifications is within the accounting period ended 31 October
20X6. The notification of staff, suppliers and the press seems to
indicate that the sale will be highly probable and the directors are
committed to a plan to sell the assets and are actively locating a
buyer. From the financial and other information given in the question
it appears that the travel agencies’ operations and cash flows can
be clearly distinguished from its other operations. The assets of the
travel agencies appear to meet the definition of non-current assets
held for sale; however the main difficulty is whether their sale and
closure also represent a discontinued operation. The main issue is
with the wording of ‘a separate major line of business’ in part (i) of
the above definition of a discontinued operation. The company is
still operating in the holiday business, but only through Internet
selling. The selling of holidays through the Internet compared with
through high-street travel agencies requires very different assets,
staff knowledge and training and has a different cost structure. It
could therefore be argued that although the company is still selling
holidays the travel agencies do represent a separate line of
business. If this is the case, it seems the announced closure of the
travel agencies appears to meet the definition of a discontinued
operation.

Partway statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income year ended:

31 October 310ctober

20X6 20X5
$000 $000
Continuing operations
Revenue 25,000 22,000
Cost of sales (19,500) (17,000)
Gross profit 5,500 5,000
Operating expenses (1,100) (500)
Profit/(loss) from continuing 4,400 4,500
operations
Discontinued operations
Profit/(loss) from discontinued (4,000) 1,500
operations
Profit for the period 400 6,000
o~
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Analysis of discontinued operations:

Revenue 14,000 18,000

Cost of sales (16,500) (15,000)

Gross profit/(loss) (2,500) 3,000

Operating expenses (1,500) (1,500)

Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (4,000) 1,500

Note: Other presentations may be acceptable.
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Leases

Chapter learning objectives

Upon completion of this chapter you will be able to:

* explain why recording the legal form of a finance lease can be
misleading to users making reference to the commercial
substance of such leases

* define a finance lease and an operating lease

* determine whether a lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease

* account for finance lease assets in the records of the lessee
* account for operating lease assets in the records of the lessee

* explain the effect on the financial statements of a finance lease
being incorrectly treated as an operating lease

* UK syllabus only:
— outline how under UK rules a lease is classified.
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[ LEASES J

DEFINITION OF
e Finance lease
e Operating lease

(CLASSIFICATION OF LEASESJ

SUBSTANCE OVER FORM J

.
.................... eccccccccccccccccce
.

ACCOUNTING FOR FINANCE ACCOUNTING FOR
LEASES OPERATING LEASES

DISCLOSURE ' DISCLOSURE I

1 Finance leases and operating leases

A leasing agreement is an agreement whereby one party, the lessee, pays
lease rentals to another party, the lessor in order to gain the use of an asset
over a period of time.

There are two types of lease:

e afinance lease

* anoperating lease.
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IAS 17 Leases

IAS 17 provides the following definitions:

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee.

An operating lease is any lease other than a finance lease.

Classification of leases

To decide whether a lease is finance or operating, the first step is to assess
whether the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the lessee.

If this is inconclusive, IAS 17 provides additional guidance.

Risks and rewards

Risks and rewards of ownership include:

Risks Rewards

* lessee carries outrepairsand * lessee has right to use asset for
maintenance most or all of its useful life

* |essee insures asset

* Jlessee runs the risk of losses
from idle capacity

* lessee runs the risk of
technological obsolescence

IAS 17 guidance

Example 1 — Lease classification

2 Substance over form

In many types of transactions there is a difference between the commercial
substance and the legal form:

* Commercial substance reflects the financial reality of the transaction.

* Legal form is the legal reality of the transaction.
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Accounts are generally required to reflect commercial substance rather than
legal form.

Substance over form with a financelease
When an asset is leased under a finance lease there is a difference
between the legal form of that transaction and its commercial substance:

Legal form:  the asset remains legally owned by the party leasing it out
(the lessor).

Commercial the party making the lease payments (the lessee) has the

substance: use of the asset for most or all of its useful life. The lessee
has effectively purchased the asset by taking out a loan
(the finance lease commitments).

As the commercial substance of finance leases is that the lessee is the
effective owner of the asset the required accounting treatment is to:

* record the asset as a non-current asset in the lessee’s statement of
financial position

* record a liability for the lease payments payable to the lessor.

Leases and the definition of an asset

3 Accounting for a finance lease
There are two main methods of allocating the finance charge each

e actuarial method

* sum of the digits method.

The examiner has confirmed that he will not examiner the sum of digits
method of allocating the finance charge. Therefore we will concentrate on
the actuarial method.

The actuarial method

The actuarial method allocates interest to each period:

* ata constant rate on the outstanding amount

* using the interest rate implicit in the lease (you will be given this figure).
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(1) Atthe inception of the lease:

Dr Non-current assets
Cr Finance lease liability

with the present value of the minimum lease payments/fair value of the
leased asset.

(2) Atthe end of each period of the lease:

Dr Depreciation expense (statement of profit or loss)
Cr Non-current assets: accumulated depreciation

with the depreciation charge for the period.
(3) As each rental is paid:

Dr Finance lease liability

Cr Cash

with the rental paid.

Dr Interest expense (statement of profit or loss)
Cr Finance lease liability

with the finance charge.

H

Recording a finance lease

&

Test your understanding 1

A company has two options. It can buy an asset for cash at a cost of
$5,710 or it can lease it by way of a finance lease. The terms of the
lease are as follows.

(1) Primary period is for four years from 1 January 20X2 with a rental of
$2,000 pa payable on 31 December each year.

(2) The lessee is required to pay all repair, maintenance and insurance
costs as they arise.

(3) The interest rate implicit in the lease is 15%.
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What figures will be shown in the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 20X2 assuming the finance lease option is
taken.

Test your understanding 2

P Limited entered into a four-year lease on 1 January 20X3 for a
machine with a fair value of $69,738. Rentals are $20,000 pa payable in
advance. P Limited is responsible for insurance and maintenance
costs. The rate of interest implicit in the lease is 10%.

Show the allocation of the finance charges over the lease term on
an actuarial basis and the statement of financial position and
statement of profit or loss extracts as at 31 December 20X3.

Test your understanding 3

Shaeen Ltd entered into an agreement to lease an item of plant with a
fair value of $700,000 on 1 October 20X8. The lease required four
annual payments of $200,000 each, commencing on 1 October 20X8.
The plant has a useful economic life of four years and is to be scrapped
at the end of this period. Shaeen is responsible for maintaining and
insuring the asset. The implicit interest within the lease is 10%.

Required:

Prepare extracts of the financial statements in respect of the leased
asset for the year ended 31 March 20X9.

4 Accounting for operating leases

Operating lease assets are very different in nature from finance lease
assets as the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the
lessee.

Therefore the accounting treatment is also very different.

* Anasset is not recognised in the statement of financial position.

* Instead, rentals under operating leases are charged to the statement of
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, unless
another systematic and rational basis is more appropriate.
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* Any difference between amounts charged and amounts paid will be
prepayments or accruals.

"i Test your understanding 4

A company is leasing an asset under an operating lease. The initial
deposit is $1,000 on 1 January of year 1 followed by 4 annual payments
in arrears of $1,000 each on 31 December of years 1, 2,3 and 4.

What is the charge to the statement of profit or loss and any
amount to appear in the statement of financial position at the end
of year 1 of the lease?

m Finance or operating lease

If a finance lease asset is incorrectly treated as an operating lease it will
have the following effects on the financial statements:

* assets understated and so ROCE overstated
* liabilities understated and so gearing understated

* little effect on statement of profit or loss.

m Effect of incorrect classification
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Test your understanding 5

Leases

The following trial balance relates to Fryatt at 31 May 20X7:

$ $
Revenue 630,000
Cost of sales 324,000
Distribution costs 19,800
Administration expenses 15,600
Loan interest paid 6,800
Property — cost 240,000
Property — depreciation at 1 June 20X6 40,000
Plant and equipment — cost 140,000
Plant and equipment — depreciation at 1 June 20X6 48,600
Trade receivables 51,200
Inventory — 31 May 20X7 19,600
Bank 4,300
Trade payables 35,200
Ordinary shares $1 25,000
Share premium 7,000
Bank Loan (repayable 31 December 20X9) 20,000
Retained earnings at 1 June 20X6 15,500

821,300 821,300

The following notes are relevant:

(1) Plant and equipment is to be depreciated on the reducing balance
basis at a rate of 20% per annum. The property cost includes land
at a cost of $60,000. The building is depreciated over 30 years on
a straight line basis. All depreciation is charged to cost of sales.

(2) On 1 June 20X6 Fryatt commenced using an item of plant and
machinery under a lease agreement, making three annual payments
of $29,000. The first payment was made on 31 May 20X7 and has
been charged to cost of sales. The present value of the minimum
lease payments is $72,000 and if Fryatt had purchased the plant
outright it would have cost $78,000. Under the terms of the lease
Fryatt is responsible for repairing and insuring the plant and has the
option to extend the lease at a reduced rental at the end of the 3
years. The plant has an estimated useful life of six years, with a
negligible value at the end of this period. The rate of interest implicit
in the lease is 10%.

.

KAPLAN PUBLISHING



v

chapter 12
-

(3) The directors have estimated the provision for income tax for the
year to 31 May 20X7 at $7,200.

Required:

Prepare the statement of profit or loss for Fryatt for the year to 31
May 20X7 and a statement of financial position at that date, in a
form suitable for presentation to the shareholders and in
accordance with the requirements of International Accounting
Standards.

5 UK Syllabus Focus

m UK Syllabus Focus
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Chapter summary

[ LEASES j

DEFINITIONS
¢ Finance lease: lease that transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards to the lessee.
e Operating lease: any other lease.

CLASSIFICATION OF LEASES
have risks and rewards transferred?
IAS 17 guidance including MLP test.

SUBSTANCE OVER FORM

commercial substance reflects the financial reality of
the transaction

legal form is the legal reality of the transaction.

Accounts generally follow
commercial substance.

( 3\
ACCOUNTING FOR FINANCE LEASES ACCOUNTING FOR OPERATING
Record non-current asset and liability at LEASES
fair value of asset acquired. Charge payments to statement of
Record depreciation on non-current asset profit or loss on straight-line basis.
over shorter of useful life and lease term.
Make repayments allocated between
finance charge and capital using actuarial :
method. [ )
\ ) DISCLOSURE
9 the total of future minimum lease
: payments under non-cancellable
e = ~ operating leases for each of the

N\

following periods:

e not later than one year
e later than one year and not later

DISCLOSURE
for each class of asset, the net carrying
amount at the reporting date than five years
liability for finance leases split between o later than five years.
current liabilities and non-current liabilities \_ )
depreciation charge in the statement of
of profit or loss

finance charge in the statement of profit or lossj
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Test your understanding answers

"i Test your understanding 1

The lease should be classified as a finance lease since the risks and
rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. Therefore:

* A non-current asset is recorded at the fair value of $5,710
(subject to depreciation).

*  Annual depreciation charge = 1/4 x $5,710 = $1,428.

* Aliability is initially recorded at $5,710 but subsequently reduced
by the capital portion of the leasing payments.

e The total finance charge is $(8,000 — 5,710) = $2,290. The
allocation of this to each rental payment and the consequent capital
sum outstanding is calculated as follows:

Period (year Liability at Finance Subtotal Rental Liability at

ended 31 start of charge at paid end of

December) period 15% p.a. period
$ $ $ $ $
20X2 5,710 856 6,566 (2,000) 4 566
20X3 4 566 685 5,251 (2,000) 3,251
20X4 3,251 488 3,739 (2,000) 1,739
20X5 1,739 261 2,000 (2,000) -

2,290 8,000
Notes

* The finance charge each year is a constant periodic rate of return
(15%) on the remaining balance of liability, e.g. $856 is 15% of
$5,710, etc.

* The format above will be used whenever the payments under a
lease are made in arrears. If the payments are due in advance, the
rental paid is deducted from the capital sum at the start of the period
before the interest is calculated.
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The effect on the financial statements of the lessee may be summarised:

Statement of profit or loss Statement of financial position
Obligation
Year ended 31 Finance Dep’n Non-current Total Non- Current
December charge asset (CV) current
$ $ $ $ $ $
20X2 856 1,428 4,282 4,566 3,251 1,315

Test your understanding 2

Year Capital b/f Lease Capital Finance Capital at
payment outstanding charge at year end
10%
$ $ $ $ $

20X3 69,738  (20,000) 49,738 4,974 54,712
20X4 54,712  (20,000) 34,712 3,471 38,183
20X5 38,183 (20,000) 18,183 1,818 20,000
20X6 20,000  (20,000)

Statement of financial position extract $
Non-current assets
Finance lease asset 52,303

(69,738 — 17,435)
Non-current liabilities

Amounts due under finance lease 34,712
(54,712 — 20,000)

Current liabilities

Amounts due under a finance lease 20,000
Statement of profit or loss extract $

Depreciation expense 17,435
Finance costs 4,974
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"i Test your understanding 3
This appears to be a finance lease as Shaeen Ltd gets to use the asset
for the lease period of four years which is the same as the assets useful
economic life and is also responsible for maintenance and insurance.
Statement of profit or loss extract
$
Depreciation (W2) (87,500)
Finance costs (W3) (25,000)
Statement of financial position extract
Non-current assets $
Cost 700,000
Accumulated depreciation (87,500)
Carrying value 525,000
Non-current liabilities
Lease obligation 350,000
Current liabilites
Accrued interest 25,000
Lease obligation (525 — 350 — 25) 150,000
Workings:
(W1) Recognise asset and liability
$

Dr Non-current asset 700,000

Cr Finance lease liability 700,000
(W2) Depreciation

$

Dr Depreciation expense 87,500

Cr Accumulated depreciation 87,500

(700,000 / 4 years x 6/12)

KAPLAN PUBLISHING 189



Leases

190

-

(W3) Finance lease

Year B/f Rental Capital Int-10% Balat Int10% Bal at
ols 6/12 31 March 6/12 30 September
$000 $000 $000  $000 $000 $000 $000
1 700 (200) 500 25 525 25 550
2 550 (200) 350

Test your understanding 4

Statement of profit or loss $
Operating lease rental 1,250
($5000 / 4 years)

Statement of financial position
Current assets:

Prepayments 750
($1,000 deposit / 4yrs x 3yrs)

Test your understanding 5

Statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 May 20X7

$
Revenue 630,000
Cost of Sales (W1) (331,280)
Gross profit 298,720
Distribution costs (19,800)
Administrative expenses (15,600)
Profit from operations 263,320
Finance costs (6,800 + 7,200) (14,000)
Profit before tax 249,320
Tax (7,200)
Profit for the year 242,120

.
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 20X7

Non-current Assets
Property (W2)
Plant and Equipment (W2)

Current Assets

Inventory 19,600
Receivables 51,200
Bank 4,300

Equity

Share capital

Share premium

Retained earnings (15,500 + 242,120)

Non-current liabilities
Bank loan
Finance lease payable (W3)

Current liabilities

Payables 35,200
Finance lease payable 23,980
(50,200 — 26,220) (W3)

Income tax 7,200

KAPLAN PUBLISHING
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194,000
133,120

327,120

75,100

402,220

25,000
7,000
257,620

289,620

20,000
26,220

66,380

402,220
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Workings
(W1) Cost of Sales

Per TB
P & E depreciation
Building depreciation

Remove lease payment

Leased plant depreciation

(W2) Non-current assets

Cost per TB
Lease (W3)

Acc dep'n per TB
Charge for year

(240,000 — 60,000)/30 yrs
20% x (140,000 — 48,600)

Lease (72,000/6 yrs)

(W3) Lease

Op
Ye May 07 72,000
Ye May 08 50,200

FC @ 10%
7,200
5,020

324,000
18,280
6,000
(29,000)
12,000

331,280

Property P&E
240,000 140,000
72,000

(40,000)  (48,600)
(6,000)

(18,280)
(12,000)

194,000 133,120

Sub Cash Cl
79,200 (29,000) 50,200
55,220 (29,000) 26,220
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Substance over form

Chapter learning objectives

Upon completion of this chapter you will be able to:

* explain and demonstrate the importance of recording the
commercial substance rather than the legal form of transactions

¢ list examples of previous abuses in this area

* describe the features which may indicate that the substance of
transactions differs from their legal form

e apply the principle of substance over form to recognition and
derecognition of assets and liabilities

* account for goods sold on sale or return/consignment inventory
* account for sale and repurchase

* account for sale and leaseback

¢ account for factoring of receivables

* demonstrate the role of the principle of substance over form for
recognising sales revenue

¢ discuss revenue recognition issues
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SUBSTANCE OVER FORM  feeeeeeeeeeeeees IAS 18 REVENUE
RECOGNITION
DETERMINING COMMERCIAL TRADITIONAL
SUBSTANCE APPROACHES

DEFINITION OF
SALE OF GOODS
[DEFINITION OFASSETJ [ LIABILITY J [ j

[ RECOGNITION CRITERIA J [ PROVISION OF
SERVICES
_J
\
[ SPECIFIC EXAMPLES ] PROBLEMS OF IAS 18
Y,

1 Reporting the substance of transactions

Introduction

IAS 1 requires that financial statements:

* must represent faithfully the transactions that have been carried out

*  must reflect the economic substance of events and transactions and not
merely their legal form.

Examples of accounts reflecting economic or commercial substance which
we have already met are:

* the production of consolidated accounts (chapter 4)

* the capitalisation of a finance lease (chapter 12).

The historical problem

Example 1 - Off balance sheet finance
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Common features of transactions whose substance is not readily apparent
are:

* the legal title to an asset may be separated from the principal benefits
and risks associated with the asset (such as is the case with finance
leases)

* atransaction may be linked with other transactions which means that
the commercial effect of the individual transaction cannot be understood
without an understanding of all of the transactions

* options may be included in a transaction where the terms of the option
make it highly likely that the option will be exercised.

Key to determining the substance of a transaction is to identify whether
assets and liabilities arise subsequent to that transaction by considering:

* who enjoys the benefits of any asset

* who is exposed to the principal risks of any asset.

Assets are defined in the Framework as resources controlled by the entity
as a result of past events and from which future economic benefits are
expected to flow to the entity.

Liabilities are defined in the Framework as present obligations of the entity
arising from past events, the settlement of which is expected to result in an
outflow of resources from the entity.

Recognition/derecognition of assets/liabilities

2 Examples where substance and form may differ

Introduction

Examples of areas where substance and form may differ include:

* consignment inventory and goods on sale-or-return
* sale and repurchase agreements

* sale and leaseback agreements

* factoring of receivables.
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Consignment inventory is inventory which:
* islegally owned by one party
* is held by another party, on terms which give the holder the right to sell

the inventory in the normal course of business or, at the holder’s option,
to return it to the legal owner.

This type of arrangement is common in the motor trade.

Accounting for consignment inventory

[CAR N\ANUFACTURERW ‘( CAR SELLER j

) CAR 1S
TRANSFERRED
1 MAY 20X9

Retains legal ownership
of car until transfer to a
third party on 30 June
20X9

Holds car in showroom
until its sale to a third
party on 30 June 20X9

Key question:

In which company’s statement of financial position should the car appear as
inventory between 1 May 20X9 and 30 June 20X97?

Factors to consider are:

*  Who bears the risks of the inventory?

*  Who has the benefits or rewards of the inventory?

Whoever bears the risks of the inventory should recognise it in the statement
of financial position.

Consignment inventory - further detail

Example 2 - Consignment inventory
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"i Test your understanding 1

On 1 January 20X6 Gillingham, a manufacturer, entered into an
agreement to provide Canterbury, a retailer, with machines for resale.

The terms of the agreement were as follows.

* Canterbury pays a fixed rental per month for each machine that it
holds.

*  Canterbury pays the cost of insuring and maintaining the machines.

*  Canterbury can display the machines in its showrooms and use
them as demonstration models.

* When a machine is sold to a customer, Canterbury pays Gillingham
the factory price at the time the machine was originally delivered.

*  All machines remaining unsold six months after their original delivery
must be purchased by Canterbury at the factory price at the time of
delivery.

*  Gillingham can require Canterbury to return the machines at any
time within the six-month period. In practice, this right has never
been exercised.

*  Canterbury can return unsold machines to Gillingham at any time
during the six-month period, without penalty. In practice, this has
never happened.

At 31 December 20X6 the agreement is still in force and Canterbury
holds several machines which were delivered less than six months
earlier.

How should these machines be treated in the accounts of
Canterbury for the year ended 31 December 20X6?

Introduction

Sale and repurchase agreements are situations where an asset is sold by
one party to another. The terms of the sale provide for the seller to
repurchase the asset in certain circumstances at some point in the future.

Sale and repurchase agreements are common in property developments
and in maturing whisky stocks.
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ﬂ Accounting for sale and repurchase agreements

S 1

) é
HAMISH MACDUFF ~ THE BANK OF J
WHISKY DISTILLERY SELLS SEVERAL CASKS OF CALEDONIA

WHISKY TO THE BANK FOR
$600,000 ON 1 JANUARY
20X0 AND PROMISES TO

REPURCHASE THEM 10 YEARS

LATER FOR $750,000

Key question:

Is the commercial effect of the transaction that of a sale or of a secured
loan?

Factors to consider, whether

* rightto use asset
* obligation/ likely to repurchase

* sales price below market price

Example 3 - Sale and repurchase agreement

Test your understanding 2

Xavier sells its head office, which cost $10 million, to Yorrick, a bank, for
$10 million on 1 January. Xavier has the option to repurchase the
property on 31 December, four years later at $12 million. Xavier will
continue to use the property as normal throughout the period and so is
responsible for the maintenance and insurance. The head office was
valued at transfer on 1 January at $18 million and is expected to rise in
value throughout the four-year period.

Giving reasons, show how Xavier should record the above during
the first year following transfer.
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Sale and leaseback

Introduction

A sale and repurchase agreement can be in the form of a sale and
leaseback.

* Under a sale and leaseback transaction, an entity sells one of its own
assets and immediately leases the asset back.

* This is a common way of raising finance whilst retaining the use of the
related assets. The buyer / lessor is normally a bank.

* The leaseback is classified as finance or operating in accordance with
the usual IAS 17 criteria.

Accounting for sale and leaseback

ﬂ Sale and finance leaseback:

* asset derecognised, with any profit or loss deferred over the lease term.

* asset then reinstated in accordance with IAS 17 finance lease rules (i.e.
recognise finance leased asset and liability at the lower of fair value or
present value of minimum lease payments).

* asset value depreciated over lease term and lease interest charged to
statement of profit or loss in accordance with actuarial method.

Sale and operating leaseback:

* asaleisrecorded and asset derecognised.
* operating lease rentals are recorded in the statement of profit or loss.

ﬂ'i Test your understanding 3

Bright Ltd sold an item of machinery and leased it back over a five year
finance lease. The sale took place on 1 January 20X4 and the company
has a 31 December year end. The details of the scheme are as follows:

$
Proceeds of sale 1,000,000
Fair value of machine at date of sale 1,000,000
Carrying value of asset at date of sale 750,000
Annual lease payments (in arrears) 277,409
Remaining useful life of machine at date of sale 5 years
Implicit rate of interest 12%
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Prepare the statement of profit or loss and statement of financial
position extracts for Bright at 31 December 20X4

Introduction
Factoring of receivables is where a company transfers its receivables

balances to another organisation (a factor) for management and collection
and receives an advance on the value of those receivables in return.

Accounting for the factoring of receivables
Key question:

Is the seller in substance receiving a loan on the security of his receivables,
or are the receipts an actual sale of those receivable balances?

Factors to consider:

* who bears the risk (of slow payment and irrecoverable debts).

Factoring of receivables - further detail

Test your understanding 4

An entity has an outstanding receivables balance with a major customer
amounting to $12 million and this was factored to FinanceCo on 1
September 20X7. The terms of the factoring were:

FinanceCo will pay 80% of the gross receivable outstanding account to
the entity immediately.

*  The balance will be paid (less the charges below) when the debt is
collected in full. Any amount of the debt outstanding after four
months will be transferred back to the entity at its full book value.

* FinanceCo will charge 1.0% per month of the net amount owing
from the entity at the beginning of each month. FinanceCo had not
collected any of the factored receivable amount by the year-end.

* the entity debited the cash from FinanceCo to its bank account and
removed the receivable from its accounts. It has prudently charged
the difference as an administration cost.

.
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How should this arrangement be accounted for in the financial
statements for the year ended 30 September 20X7?

IAS 18 Revenue

Measurement of revenue

Traditional approaches to revenue recognition

Example 4 - Traditional approach

Revenue from the sale of goods

Revenue from services

Example 5 — Revenue from services

Example 6 — Revenue recognition

Specific scenarios

Example 7 — Sale or return

HHHHHHHHMHAHHdH

Example 8 — Agency sales
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Test your understanding 5

The terms under which Partway sells its holidays are that a 10% deposit
is required on booking and the balance of the holiday must be paid six
weeks before the travel date. In previous years Partway has recognized
revenue (and profit) from the sale of its holidays at the date the holiday is
actually taken. From the beginning of November 20X5, Partway has
made it a condition of booking that all customers must have holiday
cancellation insurance and as a result it is unlikely that the outstanding
balance of any holidays will be unpaid due to cancellation. In preparing
its financial statements to 31 October 20X6, the directors are proposing
to change to recognising revenue (and related estimated costs) at the
date when a booking is made. The directors also feel that this change
will help to negate the adverse effect of comparison with last year’'s
results (year ended 31 October 20X5) which were better than the current
year’s.

(a) Describe the circumstances in which an entity may change its
accounting policies and how a change should be applied.

(b) Comment on whether Partway’s proposal to change the
timing of its recognition of its revenue is acceptable and
whether this would be a change of accounting policy.
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[ SUBSTANCE OVER FORM)

DETERMINING
COMMERCIAL SUBSTANCE

rDEFINITION OF ASSET1 h

resources controlled by
the entity as a result of
past events and from
which future economic
benefits are expected to
\ flow to the entity. p

DEFINITION OF
LIABILITY

present obligations
of the entity arising
from past events, the
settlement of which is
expected to result in
an outflow of resources
from the entity.

RECOGNITION CRITERIA
e Future economic benefit
probable
e Reliably measurable.

[ SPECIFIC EXAMPLES ]

IAS 18 REVENUE
RECOGNITION

TRADITIONAL
APPROACHES

Recognise when

e earned
e realised.

\\

SALE OF GOODS

risks and rewards
transferred

the seller
relinquishes
effective control
over the goods
revenue can be
measured reliably
probable future
economic benefits
costs in respect
of the transaction
can be measured
reliably.

-

PROVISION OF
SERVICES
revenue measured
reliably
e probable future
economic benefits
e the stage of
completion can be
measured reliably
e costs can be
measured reliably.

Sale and
leaseback

Sale and
repurchase

ESIERAIE

Factoring of
receivables
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Test your understanding answers

"z Test your understanding 1

The key issue is whether Canterbury has purchased the machines from
Gillingham or whether they are merely on loan.

It is necessary to determine whether Canterbury has the benefits of
holding the machines and is exposed to the risks inherent in those
benefits.

Gillingham can demand the return of the machines and Canterbury is
able to return them without paying a penalty. This suggests that
Canterbury does not have the automatic right to retain or to use them.

Canterbury pays a rental charge for the machines, despite the fact that it
may eventually purchase them outright. This suggests a financing
arrangement as the rental could be seen as loan interest on the
purchase price. Canterbury also incurs the costs normally associated
with holding inventories.

The purchase price is the price at the date the machines were first
delivered. This suggests that the sale actually takes place at the delivery
date. Canterbury has to purchase any inventory still held six months after
delivery. Therefore the company is exposed to slow payment and
obsolescence risks. Because Canterbury can return the inventory before
that time, this exposure is limited.

It appears that both parties experience the risks and benefits. However,
although the agreement provides for the return of the machines, in
practice this has never happened.

Conclusion: the machines are assets of Canterbury and should be
included in its statement of financial position.
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ﬂ'i Test your understanding 2

* Yorrik faces the risk of falling property prices.
e  Xavier continues to insure and maintain the property.
*  Xavier will benefit from a rising property price.

*  Xavier has the benefit of use of the property.

Xavier should continue to recognise the head office as an asset in the
statement of financial position. This is a secured loan with effective
interest of $2 million ($12 million — $10 million) over the four-year period.

ﬁ'i Test your understanding 3

Statement of profit or loss extract $

Depreciation (W1) 200,000
Finance lease interest (W2) 120,000
Profit on disposal (W3) 50,000

Statement of financial position

Non-current assets

Finance leased asset: 800,000
(1,000,000 - 200,000 (W1))

Non-current liabilities

Finance lease obligation (W2) 666,293
Deferred income (W3) 150,000
Current liabilities

Finance lease obligation 176,298
Deferred income (W3) 50,000
Workings:

(W1) Depreciation 200,000

($1,000,000 x 1/5)

(W2) Finance lease obligation

Year Bal Int Rental Bal
b/fwd 12% c/fwd

20X4 1,000,000 120,000 (277,409) 842,591

20X5 842,591 101,111 (277,409) 666,293
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(W3) Profit on disposal of asset (deferred over lease term)

Carrying value of asset 750,000
Proceeds 1,000,000
Profit on disposal 250,000

Note: The profit on disposal cannot be taken to the statement of profit or
loss completely in year 1 as must be deferred over the lease term - i.e.
Dr bank $1,000,000 Cr carrying value of asset $750,000 Cr deferred
income $250,000).

Deferred income

Release to statementof 50,000 | Profit on disposal 250,000
profit or loss deferred
Bal c/d 200,000

250,000 250,000

Test your understanding 4

As the entity still bears the risk of slow payment and irrecoverable debts,
the substance of the factoring is that of a loan on which finance charges
will be made. The receivable should not have been derecognised nor
should all of the difference between the gross receivable and the amount
received from the factor have been treated as an administration cost.
The required adjustments can be summarised as follows:

Dr Cr
$000 $000
Receivables 12,000
Loan from factor 9,600
Administration $(12,000 — 9,600) 2,400
Finance costs: accrued interest ($9.6 million 1.0%) 96
Accruals 96

12,096 12,096
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"i Test your understanding 5

(a)

KAPLAN PUBLISHING

Comparability is one of the four enhancing qualitative
characteristics of useful financial information. It is a vital attribute
when assessing the performance of an entity over time (trend
analysis) and to some extent with other similar entities. For
information to be comparable it should be based on the consistent
treatment of transactions and events. In effect a change in an
accounting policy breaks the principle of consistency and should
generally be avoided. That said there are circumstances where it
becomes necessary to change an accounting policy. These are
mainly where it is required by a new or revised accounting standard,
interpretation or applicable legislation or where the change would
result in financial statements giving a faithful and more relevant
representation of the entity’s transactions and events.

It is important to note that the application of a different accounting
policy to transactions or events that are substantially different to
existing transactions or events or to transactions or events that an
entity had not previously experienced does NOT represent a change
in an accounting policy. It is also necessary to distinguish between a
change in an accounting policy and a change in an estimation
technique.

In an attempt to limit the problem of reduced comparability caused
by a change in an accounting policy, the general principle is that the
financial statements should be prepared as if the new accounting
policy had always been in place. This is known as retrospective
application. The main effect of this is that comparative financial
statements should be restated by applying the new policy to them
and adjusting the opening balance of each component of equity
affected in the earliest prior period presented. IAS 8 Accounting
policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors says that a
change in accounting policy required by a specific Standard or
Interpretation should be dealt with under the transitional provisions
(if any) of that Standard or Interpretation (normally these apply the
general rule of retrospective application). There are some limited
exemptions (mainly on the grounds of impracticality) to the general
principle of retrospective application in IAS 8.

This issue is one of the timing of when revenue should be
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. This can be a complex issue which involves
identifying the transfer of significant risks, reliable measurement, the
probability of receiving economic benefits, relevant accounting
standards and legislation and generally accepted practice. Applying
the general guidance in IAS 18 Revenue, the previous policy,
applied before cancellation insurance was made a condition of
booking, seemed appropriate.
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At the time the holiday is taken it can no longer be cancelled, all
monies would have been received and the flights and
accommodation have been provided. There may be some
compensation costs involved if there are problems with the holiday,
but this is akin to product warranties on normal sales of goods which
may be immaterial or provided for based on previous experience of
such costs. The appendix to IAS 18 specifically refers to payments
in advance of the ‘delivery’ of goods and says that revenue should
be recognized when the goods are delivered. Interpreting this for
Partway’s transaction would seem to confirm the appropriateness of
its previous policy.

The directors of Partway wish to change the timing of recognition of
sales because of the change in circumstances relating to the
compulsory cancellation insurance. The directors are apparently
arguing that the new ‘transactions and events’ are substantially
different to previous transactions therefore the old policy should not
apply. Even if this does justify revising the timing of the recognition
of revenue, it is not a change of accounting policy because of the
reasons outlined in (a) above.

An issue to consider is whether compulsory cancellation insurance
represents a substantial change to the risks that Partway
experiences. An analysis of past experience of losses caused by
uninsured cancellations may help to assess this, but even if the past
losses were material (and in future they will not be), it is unlikely that
this would override the general guidance in the appendix to IAS 18
relating to payments made in advance of delivery. It seems the main
motivation for the proposed change is to improve the profit for the
year ended 31 October 20X6 so that it compares more favourably
with that of the previous period.

To summarise, it is unlikely that the imposition of compulsory
cancellation insurance justifies recognising revenue at the date of
booking when a deposit is received, and, even if it did, it would not
be a change in accounting policy. This means that comparatives
would not be restated (which is something that would actually suit
the suspected objectives of the directors).
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Financial assets and
financial liabilities

Chapter Learning Objectives

Upon completion of this chapter you will be able to:

* explain the need for an accounting standard on financial
instruments

* define financial instruments in terms of financial assets and
financial liabilities

¢ distinguish between the categories of financial instruments

* indicate for the categories of financial instruments how they
should be measured and how any gains and losses from
subsequent measurement should be treated in the financial
statements

* explain how fair value through profit and loss financial instruments
should be measured and how any gains/losses from subsequent
measurement should be treated in the financial statements

¢ distinguish between debt and equity capital
* account for compound instruments
* account for issue of equity shares & payment of equity dividends

* account for the issue of redeemable preference shares and
payment of preference share dividends

* account for the issue of debt instruments with no conversion
rights and the payment of interest.
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FINANCIAL FINANCIAL
ASSETS LIABILITIES

EQUITY
CAPITAL

1 Financial instruments

Introduction

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of
one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Need for accounting standards

There are four reporting standards that deal with financial instruments:

e |AS 32 Financial instruments: presentation
* |AS 39 Financial instruments: recognition and measurement
* |FRS 7 Financial instruments: disclosures

e |FRS 9 Financial instruments:

IAS 32 deals with the classification of financial instruments and their
presentation in financial statements.

IAS 39 deals with how financial instruments are measured and when they
should be recognised in financial statements.

IFRS 7 deals with the disclosure of financial instruments in financial
statements.
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IFRS 9 was issued on 12 November 2009 and will eventually replace IAS
39. IFRS 9 is effective for accounting periods commencing from 1 January
2013, although earlier adoption is permitted. Where early adoption is taken
up, to the extent that IFRS 9 has not yet been fully updated and effective, the
provisions of the earlier standards continue to apply. IFRS 9 was updated in
October 2010 to include accounting for financial liabilities. IAS 39 will be
withdrawn in due course following further additions to IFRS 9 dealing with
impairment and derivatives.

Financial assets

A financial asset is any asset that is:

e cash

* acontractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from
another entity

* acontractual right to exchange financial assets/liabilities with another
entity under conditions that are potentially favourable

*  an equity instrument of another entity.
Examples of financial assets include:

* trade receivables
* options

* investment in equity shares.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation:

* todeliver cash or another financial asset to another entity, or

* to exchange financial instruments with another entity under conditions
that are potentially unfavourable, or

* that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments.
Examples of financial liabilities include:

* trade payables
* debenture loans

* redeemable preference shares.

Example 1 - Financial instruments
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Recognition and derecognition

2 Financial liabilities

The requirements of IFRS 9 and IAS 39 are largely beyond the scope of the
Paper F7 INT syllabus but you may be required to value debt issues.

At initial recognition an entity shall measure a financial liability at its fair
value.

After initial recognition an entity should classify all financial liabilities (other
than liabilities held for trading and derivatives that are liabilities) at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The effective interest rate method:

* calculates annual amortisation using the effective interest rate (i.e. the
internal rate of return (IRR)) of a financial asset or financial liability

* is similar to the actuarial method used in lease accounting to value
finance leases.

Measurement of financial liabilities

Amortised cost method

Example 2 - Measurement of financial liabilities

Test your understanding 1

(1) A company issues 5% loan notes at their nominal value of $20,000.
The loan notes are repayable at par after 4 years.

What amount will be recorded as a financial liability when the
loan notes are issued?

What amounts will be shown in the statement of profit or loss
and statement of financial position for years 1-4?

.
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(2) A company issues 0% loan notes at their nominal value of $40,000.
The loan notes are repayable at a premium of $11,800 after 3
years. The effective rate of interest is 9%.

What amount will be recorded as a financial liability when the
loan notes are issued?

What amounts will be shown in the statement of profit or loss
and statement of financial position for years 1-3?

(3) A company issues 4% loan notes with a nominal value of $20,000.

The loan notes are issued at a discount of 2.5% and $534 of issue
costs are incurred.

The loan notes will be repayable at a premium of 10% after 5 years.
The effective rate of interest is 7%.

What amount will be recorded as a financial liability when the
loan notes are issued?

What amounts will be shown in the statement of profit or loss
and statement of financial position for years 1-5?

(4) A company issues 3% bonds with a nominal value of $150,000.

The loan notes are issued at a discount of 10% and issue costs of
$11,455 are incurred.

The loan notes will be repayable at a premium of $10,000 after 4
years. The effective rate of interest is 10%.

What amount will be recorded as a financial liability when the
loan notes are issued?

What amounts will be shown in the statement of profit or loss
and statement of financial position for years 1-4?

Preference shares

ﬂ If preference shares are irredeemable:

* they are classified as equity (unless the terms of the share carries a
fixed dividend, in which case they are considered to be a financial
liability).
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If preference shares are redeemable:

* they are classified as a financial liability.

Preference shares

Interest and dividends

The accounting treatment of interest and dividends depends upon the
accounting treatment of the underlying instrument itself:

* equity dividends declared are reported directly in equity

* dividends on redeemable preference shares classified as a liability are
an expense in the statement of profit or loss.

Test your understanding 2

On 1 April 20X7, a company issued 40,000 $1 redeemable preference
shares with a coupon rate of 8% at par. They are redeemable at a large
premium which gives them an effective finance cost of 12% per annum.

How would these redeemable preference shares appear in the
financial statements for the years ending 31 March 20X8 and
20X9?

3 Equity and liabilities
Introduction

IAS 32 requires the classification of a financial instrument, or its component
parts, as a liability or as equity according to the substance of the contractual
arrangement.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

Classification as liability or equity

The issuer of a financial instrument must classify it as a financial liability or
equity instrument on initial recognition according to its substance.

KAPLAN PUBLISHING



an

LB

v

chapter 14

A compound instrument is a financial instrument that has characteristics
of both equity and liabilities.

Convertible example

For example, a convertible bond:

* the value of a convertible bond consists of a liability component — the
bond —and

* an equity component — the value of the right to convert in due course to
equity.

The two elements must be separately recognised in the statement of
financial position:

* the liability element
* the equity element.

To account for a convertible loan:

*  Calculate liability component first

— Based on present value of future cash flows assuming non-
conversion

— Apply discount rate equivalent to interest on similar non-convertible
debt instrument (i.e. discount the cash flows at the market rate of
interest).

*  Equity = remainder (i.e. deduct the present value of the debt from the
proceeds of the issue).

The economic effect of issuing convertible bonds is substantially the same
as the simultaneous issue of a debt instrument with an early settlement
provision and warrants to purchase shares.

Example 3 - Compound instruments

Test your understanding 3

(1) A company issues 2% convertible bonds at their nominal value of
$36,000.

The bonds are convertible at any time up to maturity into 120
ordinary shares for each $100 of bond. Alternatively the bonds will
be redeemed at par after 3 years.
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Similar non-convertible bonds would carry an interest rate of 9%.

The present value of $1 payable at the end of year, based on rates
of 2% and 9% are as follows:

End of year 2% 9%
1 0.98 0.92
2 0.96 0.84
3 0.94 0.77

What amounts will be shown as a financial liability and as
equity when the convertible bonds are issued?

What amounts will be shown in the statement of profit or loss
and statement of financial position for years 1-3?

(2) A company issues 4% convertible bonds at their nominal value of $5
million.

Each bond is convertible at any time up to maturity into 400 ordinary
shares. Alternatively the bonds will be redeemed at par after 3
years.

The market rate applicable to non-convertible bonds is 6%.

The present value of $1 payable at the end of year, based on rates
of 4% and 6% are as follows:

End of year 4% 6%
1 0.96 0.94
2 0.92 0.89
3 0.89 0.84

What amounts will be shown as a financial liability and as
equity when the convertible bonds are issued?

What amounts will be shown in the statement of profit or loss
and statement of financial position for years 1-3?
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4 Financial assets

IFRS 9 deals with recognition and measurement of financial assets. An
entity should recognise a financial asset on its statement of financial
position when, and only when, the entity becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Initial measurement of financialassets
At initial recognition, all financial assets are measured at fair value. This is
likely to be the purchase consideration paid to acquire the financial asset.
(Transaction costs are excluded if the asset is fair value through profit or
loss and included if categorised at fair value through other comprehensive
income or amortised cost - see below).

Subsequent measurement depends upon whether the financial asset is an
investment in a debt instrument or an equity instrument, as follows:

Debt instruments:

Debt instruments would normally be measured at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL), but could be measured at amortised cost if the entity chooses
to do so, provided the following two tests are passed:

e the husiness model test, and

— The objective of the entity's business model is to hold the financial
asset to collect the contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the
instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realise its fair value
changes).

¢ the contractual cash flow characteristics test.

— The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principle and
interest on the principle outstanding.

The business model test

The contractual cash flow characteristics test
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For a debt instrument to be measured at amortised cost, it will therefore
require that:

* the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the
assets to collect the contractual cashflows, and

* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates,
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal outstanding.

Debt instruments: further detail

Equity instruments:

Equity instruments are measured at either:

e fair value either through profit or loss, or

* fair value through other comprehensive income.

Equity instruments: further detail

Test your understanding 4

(1)

A company invests $5,000 in 10% loan notes. The loan notes are
repayable at a premium after 3 years. The effective rate of interest
is 12%. The company intends to collect the contractual cash flows
which consist solely of repayments of interest and capital and have
therefore chosen to record the financial asset at amortised cost.

What amounts will be shown in the statement of profit or loss
and statement of financial position for the financial asset for
years 1-3?

A company invested in 10,000 shares of a listed company in
November 2007 at a cost of $4.20 per share. At 31 December
2007 the shares have a market value of $4.90. The company are
planning on selling these shares in April 2008.

Prepare extracts from the statement of profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2007 and a statement of financial
position as at that date.
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(3) A company invested in 20,000 shares of a listed company in
October 2007 at a cost of $3.80 per share. At 31 December 2007
the shares have a market value of $3.40. The company are not
planning on selling these shares in the short term.

Prepare extracts from the statement of profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2007 and a statement of financial
position as at that date.

H

Offsetting financial assets/financial liabilities

% Test your understanding 5
Financial assets and liabilities
The following trial balance relates to JK at 30 September 2007:
$000 $000

Ordinary share capital $1 shares 100,000
Share premium 30,000
Revaluation reserve 145,000
Retained earnings reserve 1 October 2006 285,611
6% Loan notes (note 3) 74,389
5% Convertible loan notes (note 4) 100,000
Revenue 565,000
Cost of sales 339,000
Distribution costs 53,730
Administrative expenses 44,810
6% Loan note interest paid (note 3) 4,200
5% Convertible loan note interest paid (note 4) 5,000
Income tax (note 6) 2,150
Inventory at 30 September 2007 (note1) 64,320
Bank 29,885
Trade receivables 48,670
Trade payables 69,650
Land and Buildings — valuation (note 2) 450,000
Plant and Equipment — cost 265,585
Plant and Equipment — acc depreciation 1 October 63,400
2006 (note 2)
Financial assets (note 5) 130,000

1,435,2001,435,200
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(1) Included in inventory are some items at their cost of $25 million.
Following damage that had taken place during the year, it is now
thought that these items can be sold for $30 million but only after
they have been repaired and repackaged which will cost $8 million.

(2) Land and Buildings were revalued to $450 million (including land
$100 million) from their previous carrying value of $375 million on 1
October 2006. This has already been recorded; however
depreciation for the year has not yet been recorded. At 1 October
2006 the buildings had a remaining life of 35 years.

Plant and Equipment is to be depreciated at 20% reducing balance
per annum.

(3) JKissued its 6% loan notes on 1 October 2004. They were issued
at their nominal value of $70 million. They will be repaid at a
premium in 2014. The finance department have calculated that the
loan notes have an effective rate of interest of 9%.

(4) On 1 October 2006, JK issued 5% convertible loan notes at their
par value of $100 million. The loan notes are redeemable at par on
30 September 2010 or may be converted into 150 ordinary shares
for every $100 of loan note. An equivalent loan note without the
conversion option would have carried an interest rate of 8%.
Interest of $5 million has been paid on 30 September 2007.

The present value of $1 payable at the end of year, based on
interest rates of 5% and 8% are:

End of year 5% 8%
1 0.95 0.93
2 0.91 0.86
3 0.86 0.79
4 0.82 0.73

(5) The financial assets (held for trading purposes) represent
investments in the equity shares of listed companies. These
investments are classified as “at fair value through profit or loss”. At
30 September 2007 the fair value of these investments was
estimated to be $150 million.

(6) The balance on the income tax account in the trial balance is an
overprovision arising as a result of the settlement of the previous
year’s tax charge. The directors have estimated the provision for
income tax for the year to 30 September 2007 at $24 million.

Required:

Prepare the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of JK for the year ended 30 September 2007 and a

statement of financial position as at that date.
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REDEEMABLE
PREFERENCE
SHARES
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Test your understanding answers

Test your understanding 1

(1) When the loan notes are issued:
Dr Bank $20,000

Cr Loan $20,000
notes

Statement of profit or loss

1 2
Finance costs (1,000) (1,000)

Statement of Financial Position

1

Current liabilities

Workings

1 20,000 1,000
2 20,000 1,000
3 20,000 1,000
4 20,000 1,000

(2) When the loan notes are issued:

Dr $40,000
Bank

CrLoannotes  $40,000

Statement of profit or loss

1 2

Finance Costs (3,600) (3,924)

Year Opening Finance costs 5%

Non-current liabilities 20,000 20,000

Cash paid 5%

3
(4,276)

3 4
(1,000) (1,000)
2 3 4
20,000 O

(1,000)
(1,000)
(1,000)
(1,000)

(20,000)*

Closing
20,000
20,000
20,000

0

*The loan notes are repaid at par i.e $20,000 at the end of year 4
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Statement of Financial Position
1 2 3

Non-current liabilities 43,600
Current liabilities 47,524 0

Workings

The loan notes are repaid at par i.e. $40,000, plus a premium of
$11,800 at the end of year 3.

(3) When the loan notes are issued:

Dr Bank $18,966
Cr loan notes $18,966
Working

Nominal value 20,000
Discount 2.5% (500)
Issue costs (534)

18,966

Statement of profit or loss

KAPLAN PUBLISHING

Year Opening Finance costs 9% Cash paid 0%  Closing

1 40,000 3,600 (0) 43,600
2 43,600 3,924 (0) 47 524
3 47,524 4,276 (0)

(51,800) 0

1 2 3 4 5
Finance cost (1,328) (1,365) (1,404) (1,446) (1,491)
Statement of Financial Position
1 2 3 4 5
Non-current liabilities 19,494 20,059 20,663
Current liabilities 21,309 0
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Workings

Year Opening Finance costs 7% Cash paid 4%

1 18,966 1,328 (800)

2 19,494 1,365 (800)

3 20,059 1,404 (800)

4 20,663 1,446 (800)

5 21,309 1,491 (800)

(22,000)
(4) When the loan notes are issued:
Dr Bank $123,545
Cr Loan notes $123,545
Working
Nominal value 150,000
10% discount (15,000)
Issue costs (11,455)
123,545
Statement of profit or loss
1 2 3
Finance costs (12,355) (13,140) (14,004)
Statement of Financial Position
1 2

Non-current liabilities 131,400 140,040

Current liabilities

Workings

Year Opening Finance costs 10% Cash paid 3%

1 123,545 12,355 (4,500)
2 131,400 13,140 (4,500)
3 140,040 14,004 (4,500)
4 149,544 14,956 (4,500)
(160,000)

Closing
19,494
20,059
20,663
21,309

0

4
(14,956)

3 4

149,544 0

Closing
131,400
140,040
149,544

0
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Test your understanding 2

Annual payment =40,000 x $1 x 8% = $3,200

Period ended Opening Finance cost Cash paid Closing

31 March balance @12% @ 8% balance
$ $000 $000 $000
20X8 40,000 4,800 (3,200) 41,600
20X9 41,600 4,992 (3,200) 43,392

Year ended 30 September 20X8:

SFP liability value for preference shares $41,600
Interest charged in statement of profit or loss $4,800
Year ended 30 September 20X9:

SFP liability value for preference shares $43,392

Interest charged in statement of profit or loss $4,992
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Test your understanding 3

(1) When the convertible bonds are issued:

Dr Bank $36,000
Cr Financial Liability $29,542
Cr Equity $6,458
Year  Cash flow Discount factor 9% Present value
1 720 0.92 662.4
2 720 0.84 604.8
3 36,720 0.77 28,274 .4
29,541.6
Cash flow = 2% x 36,000 = 720
Statement of profit or loss
1 2 3
Finance costs (2,659) (2,833) (3,023)
Statement of financial position
1 2 3
Equity
Equity option 6,458 6,458 6,458
Non-current liabilities 31,481
Current liabilities 33,594 0
Workings

Year Opening Finance costs 9% Cash paid 2%  Closing

1 29,542 2,659 (720) 31,481
2 31,481 2,833 (720) 33,594
3 33,594 3,023 (720)
(36,000) 0
.
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(2) When the convertible bonds are issued:
Dr Bank $5,000,000
Cr Financial Liability $4,734,000
Cr Equity $266,000
Year Cash flow Discount factor Present Value
1 200,000 0.94 188,000
2 200,000 0.89 178,000
3 5,200,000 0.84 4,368,000
4,734,000
Cash flow = 4% x 5,000,000 = $200,000
Statement of profit or loss
1 2 3
Finance costs (284,040) (289,082) (294,428)
Statement of financial position
1 2 3
Equity
Equity option 266,000 266,000 266,000
Non-current liabilities 4,818,040
Current liabilities 4,907,122 0
Workings

Year Opening Finance costs 6%  Cash paid 4% Closing

1 4,734,000 284,040 (200,000) 4,818,040
2 4,818,040 289,082 (200,000) 4,907,122
3 4,907,122 294,428 (200,000)

(5,000,000) 0
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Test your understanding 4

(1) This financial instrument appears to be a debt instrument which
passes both the business model test and the contractual cash flow
characteristics test. It can be measured at amortised cost.

Statement of profit or loss

Investment Income 6(1)0 6?2 625
Statement of Financial Position

1 2 3
Non-current assets
Investments 5,100 5,212 0

Working

Year Opening Investment Income 12% Cash received 10% Closing

1 5,000 600 (500) 5,100
2 5,100 612 (500) 5,212
3 5212 625 (500)

(5,337) 0

(2) This appears to be an investment held for trading purposes as the
company plans to sell these shares. The investment should
therefore be measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Statement of profit or loss

Investment Income (10,000 x (4.90 — 4.20)) 7,000

Statement of Financial Position

Current assets
Investments (10,000 x 4.90) 49,000
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(3) The investment in these shares is considered to be a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss. (Although it can be designated
upon initial recognition to be fair value through other comprehensive
income.)

Statement of profit or loss

Investment Income (20,000 x (3.40 — 3.80)) (8,000)

Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets
Investments (20,000 x 3.40) 68,000

% Test your understanding 5

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for
the year ended 30 September 2007

$000
Revenue 565,000
Cost of Sales (W3) (392,437)
Gross profit 172,563
Distribution costs (53,730)
Administrative expenses (44,810)
Profit from operations 74,023
Finance costs (W1 + W2) (6,695 + 7,164) (13,859)
Investment Income (150,000 — 130,000) 20,000
Profit before tax 80,164
Tax (— 2,150 + 24,000) (21,850)
Profit for the year 58,314
Other comprehensive income:
Profit for the year 58,314
Revaluation surplus 75,000
Comprehensive income 133,314
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 September 2007

$000 $000
Non-current Assets
Land and Buildings (W5) 440,000
Plant and Equipment (W5) 161,748
601,748
Current Assets
Inventory (W4) 61,320
Receivables 48,670
Financial Assets (130,000 + 20,000) 150,000
Cash 29,885
289,875
891,623
Equity
Share capital 100,000
Share premium 30,000
5% Convertible Loan notes (W2) 10,450
Revaluation Reserve 145,000
Retained earnings (285,611 + 58,314) 343,925
629,375
Non-current liabilities
6% Loan notes (W1) 76,884
5% Convertible Loan notes (W2) 91,714
168,598
Current liabilities
Payables 69,650
Income tax 24,000
93,650
891,623
D 4
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Workings
(W1) 6% Loan notes
Balance per TB $74,389

Interest paid in year per TB $4,200

Year Opening Finance costs Cash paid Closing
9% 6%

YE 30 Sep 05 70,000 6,300 (4,200) 72,100

YE 30 Sep 06 72,100 6,489 (4,200) 74,389

YE 30 Sep 07 74,389 6,695 (4,200) 76,884

(W2) 5% Convertible Loan notes
Balance per TB $100,000
Interest paid in year per TB $5,000
Split proceeds of $100,000 into liability and equity.

To calculate liability, calculate present value of future cash flows

Year Cash flow  Discount factor Present value
8%

1 5,000 0.93 4,650

2 5,000 0.86 4,300

3 5,000 0.79 3,950

4 105,000 0.73 76,650

89,550

Cash flow = 5% x 100,000 = $5,000

Therefore, when the convertible bonds are issued:

Dr Bank 100,000
Cr Financial Liability 89,550
Cr Equity (balance) 10,450

Equity balance will remain at 10,450.

KAPLAN PUBLISHING 231



Financial assets and financial liabilities
S

232

Liability balance to be measured at amortised cost:
Year Opening Finance costs Cash paid Closing
8% 5%
YE 30 Sep 07 89,550 7,164 (5,000) 91,714
(W3) Cost of Sales
COSs
Per TB 339,000
Inventory write down (W4) 3,000
Dep'n — Bldgs 10,000
Dep'n—-P & E 40,437
392,437
(W4) Inventory
Cost per TB 64,320
Damaged items
Cost 25,000
NRV (30,000 — 8,000) 22,000
Write down required to COS (3,000)
Inventory for B/S 61,320
(W5) Non-current Assets
L&B P&E
Val'n/Cost per TB 450,000 265,585
Acc dep'n per TB (<) (63,400)
Dep'n charge
(450,000 — 100,000) / 35 yrs (10,000)
(20% x (265,585 — 63,400)) (40,437)
Net book Value 440,000 161,748
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Inventories and construction
contracts

Chapter learning objectives

Upon completion of this chapter you will be able to:

* explain the principles of IAS 2 with regard to the valuation of
inventory

* apply the principles of IAS 2 with regard to the valuation of
inventory

* define a construction contract per IAS 11

* explain how accounting concepts affect the recognition of profit
on construction contracts

* explain the acceptable methods of determining the stage (%) of
completion of a construction contract

* prepare financial statement extracts for construction contracts

* UK syllabus only:

— outline how construction contracts should be accounted and
presented under UK rules.
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PRESENTATION IN

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 Accounting for inventory
IAS 2 Inventories

Definition of cost

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV).

Cost is the cost of bringing items of inventory to their present location and
condition (including cost of purchase and costs of conversion).

Definition of cost

Definition of NRV

Inventory valuation methods

Disclosure requirements

Example 1 - Inventory valuation

HHHHHeE K
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2 1AS 11 Construction contracts
Definition of a construction contract

A construction contract is a contract specifically negotiated for the
construction of an asset or a combination of assets that are closely
interrelated or interdependent in terms of their design technology and
function or their ultimate purpose or use.

Construction contracts cause special problems as they are often of such a
length that they span more than one accounting period.

Therefore, some prescribed method of recording revenue, cost of sales and
profit over the life of the contract is needed.

Example 2 - Construction contracts

Contract revenue and costs

Recognition depends upon whether the outcome of a contract can be
measured reliably

If the expected outcome is a profit:

* revenue and costs should be recognised according to the stage of
completion of the contract.

If the expected outcome is a loss:

* the whole loss to completion should be recognised immediately.

Reliable estimate of contract outcome
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ﬂ IAS 11 indicates several ways in which the percentage of completion of a
contract may be arrived at:

* the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date
bear to the estimated total contract costs

(Costs to date/ Total costs) x 100% = % complete

* surveys of work performed

(Work certified/Contract price) x 100% = % complete

* completion of a physical proportion of the contract work (given as a
percentage).

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated

* Revenue should be recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

*  Contract costs should be recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

m Example 3 - Contract profit

OUTCOME CANNOT BE OUTCOME CAN BE
MEASURED RELIABLY MEASURED RELIABLY

g .
....
. ®e
. .
.
. .
.
. .
. oo,

NO PROFIT TAKEN
[ ON CONTRACT ] [ PROFIT EXPECTED J [ LOSS EXPECTED J

Revenue taken

REVENUE TAKEN EQUAL Revenue, costs (and so .
ToRGCOVERABLE | | prof) takenaccardng | | 250 02 o
COSTS INCURRED to stage of completion. P ’

cost taken to result in
whole loss being
recognised immediately.
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Presentation in financial statements

Statement of profit or loss

ﬂ The following will appear in the statement of profit or loss for construction

contracts:
*  revenue
* costs

*  profit or loss.

Calculated according to the rules given above.

ﬂ The following figures may appear in the statement of financial position:

* gross amount due from customers — asset

* gross amount due to customers — liability.

The calculation (which may result in an asset or liability) is:

$
Costs incurred X
Add: recognised profit X
Less: recognised losses (X)
Less: progress billings (X)
Gross amounts due to/from customers X

H

Asset and Liability

Example 4 — Cost basis contract

H
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Test your understanding 1

Hardfloor House fits out nightclubs. The projects generally take a number
of months to complete. The company has three contracts in progress at
the year ended 30 April:

J K L

$000 $000 $000

Costs incurred to date 320 540 260
Costs to complete 40 90 120
Contract price 416 684 300
Work certified to date 312 456 200
Progress payments 250 350 230

Hardfloor accrues profit on its construction contracts using the
percentage of completion derived from the sales earned as work
certified compared to the total sales value.

Calculate the effects of the above contracts upon the financial
statements.

Test your understanding 2

On 1 October 20X6 Beckwood entered into a construction contract that
was expected to take 27 months and therefore be completed on 31
December 20X8. Details of the contract are:

$000
Agreed contract price 25,000
Estimated total cost of contract (excluding plant) 11,000

Plant for use on the contract was purchased on 1 January 20X7 (three
months into the contract as it was not required at the start) at a cost of
$16 million. The plant has a four year life and after two years, when the
contract is complete, it will be transferred to another contract at its
carrying amount. Annual depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method (assuming a nil residual value) and charged to the contract on a
monthly basis at 1/12 of the annual charge.

.
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The correctly reported statement of profit or loss results for the contract
for the year ended 31 March 20X7 were:

$000
Revenue recognised 7,000
Contract expenses recognised 5,320
Profit recognised 1,680
Details of the progress of the contract at 31 March 20X8 are:

$000
Contract costs incurred to date (excluding depreciation) 9,600
Agreed value of work completed and billed to date 16,250
Total cash received to date (payments on account) 15,450

The percentage of completion is calculated as the agreed value of work
completed as a percentage of the agreed contract price.

Required:

Prepare the statement of profit or loss and the statement of financial
position extracts for Beckwood for the year ended 31 March 20X8.

ﬁ'i Test your understanding 3

Question

Merryview specialises in construction contracts. One of its contracts,
with Better Homes, is to build a complex of luxury flats. The price agreed

for the contract is $40 million and its scheduled date of completion is 31
December 20X2. Details of the contract to 31 March 20X1 are:

Commencement date 1 July 20X0
Contract costs: $000
Architects’ and surveyors’ fees 500
Materials delivered to site 3,100
Direct labour costs 3,500
Overheads are apportioned at 40% of direct

labour costs

Estimated cost to complete (include the materials 14,800

on site but exclude depreciation — see below)
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Plant and machinery used exclusively on the contract cost $3,600,000 on
1 July 20X0. At the end of the contract it is expected to be transferred to
a different contract at a value of $600,000. Depreciation is to be based
on a time apportioned basis. Inventory of materials on site at 31 March
20X1 is $300,000. Better Homes paid a progress payment of
$12,800,000 to Merryview on 31 March 20X1.

At 31 March 20X2 the details for the construction contract have been
summarised as:

$000
Contract costs to date (i.e. since the start of the 20,400
contract) excluding all depreciation
Estimated cost to complete (excluding 6,600
depreciation)

A further progress payment of $16,200,000 was received on 31 March
20X2. Merryview accrues profit on its construction contracts using the
percentage of completion basis as measured by the percentage of the
cost to date compared to the total estimated contract cost.

Required:

Prepare extracts of the financial statements of Merryview for the
construction contract with Better Homes for:

(i) the yearto 31 March 20X1
(i) the year to 31 March 20X2.

3 UK Syllabus Focus

UK Syllabus Focus
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Chapter summary

(" )
IAS 2 IAS 11 CONSTRUCTION
INVENTORIES CONTRACTS

RECOGNITION OF
REVENUE AND COSTS
& W,

[VALUATION LOWER OF]

Cost (Notmeasured ) : [ Mm \

: easured
NRV e purchase reliably reliably
: | * to complete. No profit : Profitable
recognised. : Take % of
Revenue = revenue and
* unit cost \ o completion.
* FIFO . Loss-making
* AVCO. Take full loss
immediately.

Determining stage of completion
e Costs to date as proportion of
estimated total contract costs.
e Surveys of work performed.

e Completion of physical proportion of
the contract work.

J

PRESENTATION IN
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Statement of Statement of
profit or loss financial position

e revenue * asset
o costs e liability.

e profit/loss.
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Test your understanding answers

Test your understanding 1

e

(1) Total profit

as:
Work certified

Contract price

J 312/416 = 75%
K 456/684 = 66.67%
L 200/300 = 66.67%

(3) Statement of profit or loss

Sales (work certified)
Costs (balancing figure)

Gross profit

J K L
$000 $000 $000
Revenue 416 684 300
Total costs (360) (630) (380)
Total profit 56 54 (80)
(2) Attributable profit
Contract % complete calculated Profit/loss

75% x $56,000 = $42,000
66.67% x $54,000 = $36,000

Recognise loss in full, i.e.
$80,000

J K L Total

$000 $000 $000 $000
312 456 200 968
(270) (420) (280) (970)

42 36 (80) (2)

242

.

KAPLAN PUBLISHING



V4

chapter 15
-
(4) Statement of financial position
J K L
$000 $000 $000

Costs incurred 320 540 260
Profits recognised 42 36 -
Loss recognised - - (80)
Less: progress payments (250) (350) (230)
Balance 112 226 (50)
Total asset (112 + 226): $338,000
Total liability: $50,000
Total asset: $338,000

Total liability: $50,000

ﬂ'i Test your understanding 2

Statement of profit or loss extract for the year ended 31 March

20X8

$000
Revenue recognised 9,250
((65% (W2) x 25,000) — 7,000 in 20X7)
Contract expenses recognised () 7,030
Profit recognised 2,220
((65% % 6,000 (W1) — 1,680 in 20X7)
Statement of financial position extract as at 31 March 20X8

$000

Non-current assets

Plant 11,000
(16,000 — 5,000)

Current assets
Receivables 800
Amounts due from customers (W3) 2,250
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(W1) Estimated profit
$000
Contract price 25,000
Plant depreciation (16,000 x 24/48 months) (8,000)
Other costs (11,000)
Profit 6,000
(W2) Percentage complete
Agreed value of work completed at year end 16,250
Contract price 25,000
% complete (16,250 / 25,000) 65%
(W3) Amounts due from customers
$000
Contract costs incurred (W4) 14,600
Recognised profits (6,000 x 65%) 3,900
18,500
Progress billings (16,250)
Amounts due from customers 2,250
(W4) Contract costs incurred
$000
Plant depreciation 5,000
(16,000 x 15/48 months)
Other costs 9,600
14,600
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(i) Merryview - statement of profit or loss (extracts) — year to 31
March 20X1

$000
Sales revenue (40,000 x 35% (W1)) 14,000
Cost of sales (W1) (9,100)
Profit on contract 4,900

Statement of financial position (extracts) as at 31 March 20X1
Non-current assets

Plant and machinery (3,600 — 900 (W2)) 2,700
Current assets
Amount due from customer (W3) 1,500

(ii) Merryview - statement of profit or loss (extracts) — year to 31
March 20X2

$000
Sales revenue (40,000 x 75% — 14,000 (W1)) 16,000
Cost of sales (22,500 — 9,100 (W1)) (13,400)
Profit on contract 2,600

Statement of financial position (extracts) as at 31 March 20X2
Non-current assets

Plant and machinery (3,600 — 900 — 1,200 (W2)) 1,500
Current assets
Amount due from customer (W3) 1,000
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Workings (all figures $000):

(W1) Contract costs as at 31 March 20X1:

Architects’ and surveyors’ fees 500
Materials used (3,100 — 300 inventory) 2,800
Direct labour costs 3,500
Overheads (40% of 3,500) 1,400
Plant depreciation (9 months (W2)) 900
Cost at 31 March 20X1 9,100
Estimated cost to complete:

Excluding depreciation 14,800

Plant depreciation (3,600 — 600 — 900) 2,100 16,900
Estimated total costs on completion 26,000
Percentage of completion at 31 March =35%

20X1 (9,100/26,000)
Contract costs as at 31 March 20X2:

Summarised costs excluding depreciation 20,400
Plant depreciation (21 months at $100 per 2,100
month)

Cost to date 22,500
Estimated cost to complete:

Excluding depreciation 6,600

Plant depreciation (9 months) 900 7,500
Estimated total costs on completion 30,000
Percentage of completion at 31 March =75%

20X2 (22,500/30,000)

(W2) The plant has a depreciable amount of $3,000k (3,600 — 600
residual value). Its estimated life on this contract is 30 months (1 July
20X0 to 31 December 20X2). Depreciation would be $10k per month
i.e. $900k for the period to 31 March 20X1; $1,200k for the period to 31
March 20X2; and a further $900k to completion.

.
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(W3) Amount due from customer at 31 March 20X1:

Contract costs incurred (9,100 + 300 9,400

material inventory)

Recognised profit 4,900
14,300

Cash received at 31 March 20X1 (12,800)

Amount due at 31 March 20X1 1,500

Amount due from customer at 31 March 20X2:

Contract costs incurred 22,500

Recognised profit (4,900 + 2,600) 7,500
30,000

Cash received — 31 March 20X1 (12,800)

— 31 March 20X2 (16,200) (29,000)

Amount due at 31 March 20X2 1,000
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Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent
Assets

Chapter learning objectives

Upon completion of this chapter you will be able to:

* explain why an accounting standard on provisions is necessary
¢ distinguish between legal and constructive obligations

* explain in what circumstances a provision may be made

* explain in what circumstances a provision may not be made

* show how provisions are accounted for

e explain how provisions should be measured

* define contingent liabilities and contingent assets

* explain the accounting treatment of contingent liabilities and
contingent assets

* identify and account for warranties/guarantees
* identify and account for onerous contracts
* identify and account for environmental and similar provisions

* identify and account for provisions for future repairs and
refurbishments.
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IAS 37 PROVISIONS,
CONTINGENT ASSETS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

IAS 10 EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD

J

ADJUSTING

EVENTS

( N\ [ N [ N [ \
RECOGNITION CONTINGENT CONTINGENT NON-ADJUSTING
CRITERIA LIABILITIES ASSETS EVENTS
\ J \_ J \_ _J
( N\ [ N [ N [ \
OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTING
\_ J \L J \_ O\ )
ﬁ-
MEASUREMENT
SPECIFIC
SCENARIOS

1 Provisions

Until the issue of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, there was no accounting standard covering the general topic of
provisions. This led to various problems.

Provisions were often recognised as a result of an intention to make
expenditure, rather than an obligation to do so.

Several items could be aggregated into one large provision that was
reported as an exceptional item (the ‘big bath’).

Inadequate disclosure meant that in some cases it was difficult to

ascertain the significance of the provisions and any movements in the

year.

The historical problem of provisioning

Objective of IAS 37
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A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount.

A liability is a present obligation of the entity arising from past events, the
settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from the entity of
resources embodying economic benefits.

A provision should be recognised when:

* an entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event

* itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and

* areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If any one of these conditions is not met, no provision may be recognised.

Recognition

Obligations

Example 1 - Refunds

Measuring provisions

Example 2 - Expected values

Example 3 - Best estimate

Warranty provisions

Guarantees
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Future operating losses / future repairs

Onerous contracts

Example 4 — Onerous contracts

A provision will be made for future environmental costs if there is either a
legal or constructive obligation to carry out the work

This will be discounted to present value at a pre-tax market rate.

Test your understanding 1

Environmental provision

Rowsley is a company that carries out many different activities. It is
proud of its reputation as a ‘caring’ organisation and has adopted
various ethical policies towards its employees and the wider community
in which it operates. As part of its annual financial statements, the
company publishes details of its environmental policies, which include
setting performance targets for activities such as recycling, controlling
emissions of noxious substances and limiting use of non-renewable
resources.

The company has an overseas operation that is involved in mining
precious metals. These activities cause significant damage to the
environment, including deforestation. The company incurred capital
costs of $100 million in respect of the mine and it is expected that the
mine will be abandoned in eight years' time. The mine is situated in a
country where there is no environmental legislation obliging companies
to rectify environmental damage and it is very unlikely that any such
legislation will be enacted within the next eight years. It has been
estimated that the cost of cleaning the site and re-planting the trees will
be $25 million if the replanting were successful at the first attempt, but it
will probably be necessary to make a further attempt, which will increase
the cost by a further $5 million. The company's cost of capital is 10%.

Should a provision for the cost of cleaning the site be made and
prepare extracts of the financial statements?
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Restructuring provisions

Restructuring provisions - further detail

Example 5 — Restructuring provisions

2 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is:

* apossible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity, or

* apresent obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised
because:
— itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or

— the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
entity.

Example 6 — Contingencies

Accounting for contingent liabilities

Accounting for contingent assets
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The accounting treatment can be summarised in a table:

Degree of probability of an Liability Asset

outflow/inflow of resources

Virtually certain Provide Recognise

Probable Provide Disclose by

note

Possible Disclose by | No disclosure
note

Remote No disclosure | No disclosure

Example 7 - Contingent liability

3 IAS 10 Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period are those events, both favourable and
unfavourable, which occur between the reporting date and the date on which
the financial statements are approved for issue by the board of directors.

Adjusting events are events after the reporting date which provide
additional evidence of conditions existing at the reporting date.

Non-adjusting events are events after the reporting date which concern
conditions that arose after the reporting date.

Adjusting events

Non-adjusting events
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Adjusting events require the adjustment of amounts recognised in the
financial statements.

Non-adjusting events should be disclosed by note if they are of such
importance that non-disclosure would affect the ability of the users of the
financial statements to make proper evaluations and decisions.

The note should disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of the
financial effect, or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made.

Non-adjusting events

Example 8 — Events after the reporting date

Proposed dividends

Test your understanding 2

Randall is currently preparing its financial statements for the year ended
31 March 20X8. The board has met to discuss the following issues:

(i) Some of the products sold by Randall are sold with warranties
enabling customers to return their goods within 2 years of
purchase if the goods are found to be faulty. Randall will either
repair the product or refund the sales value to the customer.

During the year the sales value of products sold with such
warranties totalled $300,000. Based on past experience it is
anticipated that 20% of these products will be returned under
the terms of the warranty.

Of the goods that are returned it is expected that 5% will be
beyond repair and Randall will need to refund the full sales value
to the customer.

The remaining 95% of returned goods will be able to be
repaired. This will cost Randall, on average, 30% of the items
sales price.

Some of the goods that have been sold this year have already
been returned under the terms of the warranty. Randall has

incurred costs of $5,000 in respect of these items.
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As at 31 March 20X7, Randall’s financial statements showed a
provision of $14,000 in respect of warranty costs. This was
made up of $4,000 in relation to goods sold during the year
ended 31 March 20X6 and $10,000 in respect of goods sold
during the year ended 31 March 20X7. The warranty in respect
of items sold during 31 March 20X6 has expired as at 31 March
20X8. During the year ended 31 March 20X8, $3,000 of costs
were incurred in respect of warranty claims made in relation to
goods sold in 31 March 20X7.

A month before the year-end, a fire destroyed a significant
proportion of Randall’s inventories. Randall has since been
negotiating compensation with their insurers. Initially, the
insurers were of the view that Randall had not followed
applicable legislation to protect against fire damage and were
contesting the claim. Randall was confident that they had
complied with the legislation and referred the matter to their
solicitors. In April 20X8 the board of directors have received a
letter from the insurance company stating that they are satisfied
that Randall did comply with appropriate legislation. The
solicitors have advised the directors that it is now probable that
they will receive compensation in the region of $50,000.

(a) Explain, with reference to relevant accounting standards,

how these matters should be dealt with in the financial
statements of Randall in the year ended 31 March 20X8. (Your
answer should quantify amounts where possible).
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Chapter summary

IAS 10 EVENTS AFTER
IAS 37 PROVISIONS, THE REPORTING PERIOD
CONTINGENT ASSETS AND _ ts between the
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES = events
reporting date and date
of approval of accounts
Provisions CONTINGENCIES
uncertain tlmlng EVENTS
or amount. : Event
...................... . = Events
s : which provide
i [ Comtngent ) [ contngene | | 2T,
Reco.gni'tion llablllt.les assets conditions
criteria =b;l).oss!ble = possible existing at the

e Present obligation. asset. y reporting date.
obligation : .

e Probable E E -Q
outflow of e ™\
resources Accounting ——

® Reliable - — NON-ADJUSTING
estimate. Flow is: Liability | Asset EVENTS

Virtually | Provide [Book asset — Events
certain which concern
Probable |Provide |[Disclose conditions that
Obligations Possible | Disclose | Ignore arose after the
e Legal reporting date.
g
. Remote Ignore Ignore
e Constructive. \ —) \ /
ACCOUNTING

Measurement Adjusting =

e Expected adjust accounts
values Non-adjusting =

e Best disclose.
estimate.

( \

Specific scenarios
e Warranties
* Guarantees
e Future operating losses
® Onerous contracts
e Environmental provisions
e Restructuring provisions
e Future repairs and refurbishment
e Reorganisations.

J
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Test your understanding answers

ﬁ'i Test your understanding 1

*  The initial costs of $100 million incurred on the mine should be
capitalised in accordance with IAS 16.

* ltis clear that there is no legal obligation to rectify the damage.
However, through its published policies, the group has created
expectations on the part of those affected that it will take action to
do so.

* There is therefore a constructive obligation to rectify the damage
and a transfer of economic benefits is probable.

*  The company must recognise a provision for the best estimate of
the cost.

* Asthe most likely outcome is that more than one attempt at
replanting will be needed, the full amount of $30 million should be
provided.

*  The expenditure will take place some time in the future, and so the
provision should be discounted at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability.

* The financial statements should disclose the carrying amount of the
provision at the reporting date, a description of the nature of the
obligation and the expected timing of the expenditure. The financial
statements should also give an indication of the uncertainties about
the amount and timing of the expenditure.

Accounting entries for the long-term environmental provision:

$000

(1) Dr Non-current assets 13,995

Cr Provisions (non-current liability) 13,995

Recoanise provision at present value (30.000 x 1/1.108)

(2) Dr Depreciation expense 14,249

CrAccumulated depreciation 14,249
Annual depreciation charge ((100,000 + 13,995) / 8 years)

(3) Dr Finance costs 1,400

Cr Provisions (non-current liability) 1,400

First year unwinding of the discount (13,995 x 10%)
.
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Statement of profit or loss extract
$000
Depreciation 14,249
Finance costs:
Unwinding of discount 1,400
Statement of financial position extract
Non-current assets
Mine
Cost: 113,995
(100,000 + 13,995)
Accumulated depreciation (14,249)
99,746
Non-current liabilities
Environmental provision 15,395
(13,995 + (13,995 x 10%))

"i Test your understanding 2

(i)

KAPLAN PUBLISHING

The sale of goods with a warranty represents a past event
which gives rise to a present obligation to either refund or repair
the products. It is probable that some of the goods will be
returned under the warranty and Randall is able to use past
experience to provide a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation. Therefore, under the rules of IAS 37, Randall should
be making a provision at the year-end in respect of the costs to
be incurred under the warranty.

From this years sales of $300,000, goods with a sales value of
$60,000 (20% x $300,000) are expected to be returned under
the warranty.

Of these, $3,000 (5% x $60,000) will be beyond repair and the
full sales value will need refunding to customers.

Of the remaining, $57,000 (95% x $60,000) it is anticipated that
they can be repaired at a cost of $17,100 (30% x $57,000).
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Thus Randall is expecting to incur total warranty costs of
$20,100 in respect of goods sold during the year ended 31
March 20X8. $5,000 of these costs have already been incurred
during the year and therefore Randall should only provide for an
additional $15,100 at the year end.

Of the opening provision of $14,000, $4,000 should be
removed since the warranty has expired in relation to these
goods. Of the remaining $10,000, $3,000 of costs have been
incurred during the year in relation to these items and therefore
Randall are only expecting to incur future costs of $7,000 in
relation to these items as at 31 March 20X8.

Therefore the total provision required as at 31 March 20X8 is
$22,100 ($15,100 + $7,000).

This situation represents a contingent asset in accordance with
IAS 37 i.e. a possible asset, the insurance claim, arising as a
result of a past event i.e. the fire damaging the inventory.

According to IAS 37, contingent assets should be ignored in the
financial statements unless it is probable that there will be an
inflow of benefits, in which case the matter may be disclosed by
note.

As at the year-end, the insurers are contesting the claim and
therefore it would seem that it was not probable that Randall
would receive the compensation.

However, since the year-end, the insurers have indicated that
they will no longer be contesting the claim and so it now seems
probable that Randall will receive the compensation.

This is an adjusting event, in accordance with IAS 10, since the
negotiation of the insurance claim was underway at the year-
end and the receipt of the letter after the year-end provides
additional evidence.

Therefore, the directors of Randall can now disclose the
insurance claim in the note to their financial statements.
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Taxation

Chapter learning objectives

Upon completion of this chapter you will be able to:

* account for income taxes in accordance with IAS 12
* record entries relating to income taxes in the accounting records

* explain the effect of temporary differences on accounting and
taxable profit

* calculate and record deferred tax amounts in the financial
statements

* UK syllabus only:

— distinguish between international and UK treatment for
revaluation of non-current assets and in the discounting of
the deferred tax liability.
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l TAXATION '

IAS 12 INCOME DEFERRED TAX

TAXES

ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTING
ENTRIES PROFIT #
/ TAXABLE PROFIT

SPECIFIC
SCENARIOS )

DEFERRED TAX
LIABILITIES

DEFERRED TAX
ASSETS

1 1AS 12 Income Taxes

IAS 12 Income Taxes states that there are two elements of tax that will need
to be accounted for:

(1) Current tax (the amount of income taxes payable / recoverable in
respect of the taxable profit / loss for a period);

(2) Deferred tax (an accounting adjustment aimed to match the tax effects
of transactions to the relevant accounting period).

H

Accounting entries for income tax

H

Example 1
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2 Deferred tax

What is deferred tax?

Deferred tax is:

* the estimated future tax consequences of transactions and events
recognised in the financial statements of the current and previous
periods.

Deferred taxation is a basis of allocating tax charges to particular
accounting periods. The key to deferred taxation lies in the two quite
different concepts of profit:

* the accounting profit (or the reported profit), which is the figure of
profit before tax, reported to the shareholders in the published accounts

* the taxable profit, which is the figure of profit on which the taxation
authorities base their tax calculations.

The difference between accounting profit and taxable profit is caused by:

* permanent differences

* temporary differences.

The accounting problem

Permanent differences

Temporary differences

Reasons for recognising deferred tax

IAS 12 and deferred tax
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In the F7 exam you may have to calculate the temporary difference, this is
likely to be the difference between:

Carrying value of non-current asset X
Tax base X
Temporary difference X

Deferred tax = temporary difference x tax rate.

It is the movement on deferred tax that will need to be accounted for:

Increase in deferrred tax provision: Dr Income tax expense / equity X
Cr Deferred tax (SFP) X
Reduction in deferred tax provision: Dr Deferred tax (SFP) X

Cr Income tax expense / equity X

Test your understanding 1

Deferred taxation

A company’s financial statements show profit before tax of $1,000 in
each of years 1, 2 and 3. This profit is stated after charging
depreciation of $200 per annum. This is due to the purchase of an asset
costing $600 in year 1 which is being depreciated over its 3-year useful
economic life on a straight line basis.

The tax allowances granted for the related asset are:

Year 1 $240
Year 2 $210
Year 3 $150

Income tax is calculated as 30% of taxable profits.

Apart from the above depreciation and tax allowances there are no other
differences between the accounting and taxable profits.

.
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Required:

(a) lgnoring deferred tax, prepare statement of profit or loss
extracts for each of years 1, 2 and 3.

(b) Accounting for deferred tax, prepare statement of profit or
loss and statement of financial position extracts for each of
years 1, 2 and 3.

Deferred tax liabilities

H

Deferred tax assets

H

Revaluation of non-currentassets
As seen in chapter 8, it is permissible to revalue non-current assets to
represent their fair value. When a revaluation takes place the carrying value
of the asset will change but the tax base will remain unaffected.

The difference between the carrying amount of a revalued asset and its tax
base is an example of a temporary difference and will give rise to a deferred
tax liability or asset.

Application to scenarios

H

N

Test your understanding 2

On 1 January 20X8 Simone Ltd decided to revalue its land for the first
time. A qualified property valuer reported that the market value of the
land on that date was $80,000. The land was originally purchased 6
years ago for $65,000. Simone does not make a transfer to retained
earnings in respect of excess depreciation on the revaluation of its
assets.

The required provision for income tax for the year ended 31 December
20X8 is $19,400. The difference between the carrying amounts of the
net assets of Simone (including the revaluation of the property in note
(above) and their (lower) tax base at 31 December 20X8 is $27,000.
The opening balance on the deferred tax account was $2,600. Simone’s
rate of income tax is 25%.
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Required:

Prepare extracts of the financial statements to show the effect of the
above transactions.

3 Summary

Tax usually forms part of a published accounts question in the exam and you
may find it useful to use the following standard workings:

Income tax

Year end estimate X
Under/over provision X/(X)
Increase/decrease in deferred tax X/(X)
Charge to record in the statement of profit or loss X

Deferred tax

Balance b/f X
Balance c/f (to SPF) X

(Temporary difference x tax rate)

Increase/decrease in deferred tax X/(X)
(to either statement of profit or loss or equity) —_—

Test your understanding 3
The following trial balance relates to Weiser, a listed company, at 31
December 20X8:

$000 $000
Revenue 190,000
Cost of sales 130,000
Distribution costs 7,100
Administrative expenses 23,200
Loan interest 400
Leased property — at cost (note (i)) 25,000
Accumulated amortisation at 1 January 20X8 5,000
Plant and equipment at cost (note (i)) 22,250
Accumulated depreciation at 1 January 20X8 7,250
Inventory 27,400
Trade receivables 16,500

.
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Trade payables 13,500
Bank 1,100
Equity shares of 50 cents each 30,000
Retained earnings 1 January 20X8 4,150
Deferred tax 1,350
Current tax 500

252,350 252,350

The following information is relevant:

(i) The directors had the leasehold property valued at $24 million on 1
January 20X8 by an independent surveyor. The directors wish to
incorporate this value into the financial statements. The property
was originally purchased 4 years ago and is being depreciated over
its original useful economic life of 20 years which has not changed
as a result of the revaluation. Weiser does not make a transfer to
retained earnings in respect of excess amortisation. The revaluation
gain will create a deferred tax liability (see note (ii)).

Plant and equipment is being depreciated at 20% per annum on a
reducing balance basis.

All depreciation/amortisation should be charged to cost of sales

(i) A provision for income tax for the year ended 31 December 20X8 of
$12 million is required. At 31 December 20X8, the tax base of
Weiser's net assets was $7 million less than their carrying amounts.
This excludes the effects of the revaluation of the leased property.
The income tax rate of Weiser is 30%.

Required:
Prepare a statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

a statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 20X8,
and a statement of financial position as at that date.

4 UK Syllabus Focus

m UK Syllabus Focus
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Chapter summary

[ TAXATION ]

IAS 12
Income taxes

[ ACCOUNTING

ENTRIES
Dr income tax

expense
Cr income tax

payable.

\,

N

J

on estimates; unde
or over-provisions

year:
Tax charge

Current year charge
last year’s
under-provision

Or

—last year’s
over-provision.

g

'ﬁ
UNDER- AND

OVER-PROVISIONS

Tax charge is based

dealt with in following

Current year charge

r.

+

J

[ DEFERREDTAX

the estimated future
tax consequences of
transactions and events
recognised in the
financial statements
of the current and

L previous periods. )

f W

ACCOUNTING PROFIT
# TAXABLE PROFIT

Due to

e permanent
differences

e temporary
differences.

ﬁ

DEFERRED TAX
LIABILITIES

e recognise for all
taxable temporary
differences, with
minor exceptions

e the liability is to be
calculated using
full provision

e no discounting is

\ permitted. )

[ DEFERRED TAX ASSETS)

e recognise for
all deductible
temporary
differences if
probable that
taxable profit will
be available

e no discounting is

€ permitted. )
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Test your understanding answers

"i Test your understanding 1
(a) Statement of profit or loss extracts
1 2 3
Profit before tax 1,000 1,000 1,000
Tax (288) (297) (315)
Profit after tax 712 703 685
Workings
(W1)
1 2 3
Accounting profits 1,000 1,000 1,000
Depreciation 200 200 200
Capital allowance (240) (210) (150)
Taxable profits 960 990 1,050
Income Tax @ 30% 288 297 315
(b) Statement of profit or loss extracts
1 2 3
Profit before tax 1,000 1,000 1,000
Tax (300) (300) (300)
Profit after tax 700 700 700
Statement of Financial Position extracts
1 2 3
Non-current liabilities
Deferred Tax (12) (15) 0
Current liabilities
Income Tax (288) (297) (315)
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Workings

(W1) — as before
Accounting profits
Depreciation
Capital allowance

Taxable profits

Income tax @ 30%

1
1,000
200
(240)

960

288

(W2) Temporary differences and deferred tax

1
Carrying value (CV) 400

2
200

(600 — 200) (600 — 200 — 200)

Tax base 360

(600 — 240) (600 — 240 — 210) (600 — 240 — 210 — 150))

Temporary difference 40
Deferred tax provision 12
@ 30%

Increase (Decrease) 12

(W3) Tax expense

Income Tax
Deferred Tax

Tax expense

150

50

15

288
12

300

2 3
1,000 1,000
200 200

(210) (150)

990 1,050

297 315

3
Nil
200
(600 — 200 — 200)
Nil

0
0
(15)
2 3
297 315
3 (15)
300 300
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Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

extract

Tax expense (W2)
Other comprehensive income:

Revaluation gain (80,000 — 65,000)
Deferred tax (15,000 x 25%)

Statement of financial position extract
Non-current assets
Land

Equity
Revaluation reserve (as above)

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax (W1)

Current liabilities
Income tax payable

Statement of changes in equity extract

Revaluation gain (80,000 - 65,000)

Deferred tax on revaluation (15,000 x 25%)

(W1) Deferred tax

Balance b/f
Balance c/f (27,000 x 25%)

Increase in deferred tax

KAPLAN PUBLISHING

15,000
(3,750)

19,800

11,250

80,000

11,250

6,750

19,400

15,000
(3,750)

11,250

2,600
6,750

4,150
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Tutorial note: Of the total increase in deferred tax, $3,750 ($15,000 x
25%) relates to the revaluation reserve and should be reported in other
comprehensive income. The remainder should be charged to the

statement of profit or loss.

(W2) Income tax expense

$
Year end estimate 19,400
Increase in deferred tax 400
(4,150 (W2) — 3,750 tax on revaluation)
19,800
Test your understanding 3
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December 20X8
$000
Revenue 190,000
Cost of sales (130,000 + 1,500 (W1) + 3,000 (W3)) (134,500)
Gross profit 55,500
Distribution costs (7,100)
Administrative expenses (23,200)
Profit from operations 25,200
Finance costs (400)
Profit before tax 24,800
Taxation (13,250)
Profit for the year 11,550
Other comprehensive income: _—
Revaluation of property (W1) 4,000
Transfer to deferred tax (W4) (1,200)
2,800
14,350
N 4
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December
20X8
Share Revaluation Retained
capital reserve earnings Total
$000 $000 $000 $000
Balance at 1 January 20X8 30,000 nil 4,150 34,150
Total comprehensive income 2,800 11,550 14,350
Balance at 31 December 20X8 30,000 2,800 15,700 48,500
Statement of financial position as at 31 December 20X8
$000 $000
Non-current assets
Leasehold property 22,500
(25,000 — 5,000 + 4,000 (W1) - 1,500 (W1))
Plant and equipment 12,000
(22,250 — 7,250 — 3,000 (W2))
34,500
Current assets
Inventory 27,400
Receivables 16,500
—— 43,900
78,400
Equity
Share capital 30,000
Retained earnings 15,700
Revaluation reserve 2,800
48,500
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax 3,300
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Current liabilities
Trade payables 13,500
Bank 1,100
Taxation 12,000
_— 26,600
78,400
Workings:
(W1) Leasehold property
$000
Revaluation:
Carrying value at 1 January 20X8 20,000
(25,000 — 5,000)
Valuation 24,000
Gain on revaluation 4,000
Depreciation:
24,000 / 16 years remaining 1,500
(W2) Plant and equipment
$000
Depreciation charge 3,000
(22,250 — 7,250) x 20%
(W3) Tax expense
$000
Year end estimate 12,000
Under provision 500
Increase in deferred tax (W4) 750
13,250
9

274
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(W4) Deferred tax
$000

B/f 1,350

C/f 3,300

(7,000 + 4,000) x 30%)

Increase in deferred tax 1,950
Tutotial note: The increase in deferred tax must be split between the
revaluation reserve $1,200 (4,000 x 30%) and the balance must be
taken to the statement of profit or loss $750 (R).
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Earnings per share

Chapter learning objectives

Upon completion of this chapter you will be able to:

* define basic earnings per share (EPS)

* calculate EPS with a bonus issue during the year

* calculate EPS with an issue at full market value during the year
* calculate EPS with a rights issue during the year

* explain the relevance of diluted EPS (DEPS)

* calculate DEPS involving convertible debt

e calculate DEPS involving share options (warrants)

* explain the importance of EPS as a stock market indicator

* explain why the trend in EPS may be a more accurate indicator
of performance than a company’s profit trend

¢ explain the limitations of EPS as a performance measure.
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IAS 33
EPS
ﬁ ﬁ
BASIC EPS DEPS
E ﬁ
ﬁ ﬁ
BONUS ISSUE CONVERTIBLES
\, W, \, _J
ﬁ é
OPTIONS AND
RIGHTS ISSUE WARRANTS
\, Wy, \, _J
*
PRESENTATION OF EPS
\ J
4 \
IMPORTANCE OF EPS
. J

1 Introduction

Earnings per share (EPS) is widely regarded as the most important
indicator of a company’s performance. It is important that users of the
financial statements:

* are able to compare the EPS of different entities and

* are able to compare the EPS of the same entity in different accounting
periods.

IAS 33 Earnings per Share achieves comparability by:
* defining earnings

* prescribing methods for determining the number of shares to be
included in the calculation of EPS

* requiring standard presentation and disclosures.
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The scope of IAS 33

2 Basic EPS

The basic EPS calculation is simply:
Earnings
Shares

This should be expressed as cents per share to 1 decimal place.

* Earnings: group profit after tax, less non-controlling interests and
irredeemable preference share dividends.

* Shares: weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period.

Earnings should be apportioned over the weighted average equity share
capital (i.e. taking account of the date any new shares are issued during the
year).

Example 1 - Full market share issue

Test your understanding 1

Gerard's earnings for the year ended 31 December 20X4 are
$2,208,000. On 1 January 20X4, the issued share capital of Gerard was
8,280,000 ordinary shares of $1 each. The company issued 3,312,000
shares at full market value on 30 June 20X4.

Calculate the EPS for Gerard for 20X4.

Bonus issue

A bonus issue (or capitalisation issue or scrip issue):

* does not provide additional resources to the issuer

* means that the shareholder owns the same proportion of the business
before and after the issue.
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the bonus shares are deemed to have been issued at the start of the
year

comparative figures are restated to allow for the proportional increase
in share capital caused by the bonus issue.

Example 2 — Bonus share issue

Example 3 — Bonus share issue

Test your understanding 2

Dorabella had the following capital and reserves on 1 April 20X1:

$000
Share capital ($1 ordinary shares) 7,000
Share premium 900
Revaluation reserve 500
Retained earnings 9,000
Shareholders’ funds 17,400

Dorabella makes a bonus issue, of one share for every seven held, on
31 August 20X2.

Dorabella plc’s results are as follows:

20X3 20X2
$000 $000
Profit after tax 1,150 750

Calculate EPS for the year ending 31 March 20X3, together with
the comparative EPS for 20X2 that would be presented in the
20X3 accounts.
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Rights issues present special problems:

* they contribute additional resources

* they are normally priced below full market price.

Therefore they combine the characteristics of issues at full market price and
bonus issues.

Determining the weighted average capital, therefore, involves two steps as
follows:

(1) adjust for bonus element in rights issue, by multiplying capital in issue
before the rights issue by the following fraction:

Actual cum rights price

Theoretical ex rights price

(2) calculate the weighted average capital in the issue as above.

H

Example 4 - Rights issue

N

Test your understanding 3

On 31 December 20X1, the issued share capital consisted of 4,000,000
ordinary shares of 25c each. On 1 July 20X2 the company made a rights
issue in the proportion of 1 for 4 at 50c per share and the shares were
quoted immediately before the issue at $1. Its trading results for the la